
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting:   Thursday, February 26, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 
 
Place of Meeting:     Washoe County Health District 

1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89512 

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 
Time/ 
Item 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 
p.m.  
*1. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Invitation 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*2. Roll Call 
 

Ms. Dawn Spinola 

*3. Public Comment  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

4. Approval of Agenda  
February 26, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes  
January 22, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*6. Recognitions  
A. Years of Service  

1. Paula Valentin, 15 years of service, hired 2/3/2000 – EHS 
2. Maria Magana, 20 years of service, hired 2/13/1995 - CCHS 

B. New Hires 
1. Charlie Gray – Environmental Health Specialist Trainee 1, 

hired 1/5/15 – CCHS 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Ms. Kitty Jung 

 
 
 
 
 

1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512 
P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada  89520 

Telephone   775.328-2410 • Fax   775.328.3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

 
Leslie Admirand 

Deputy District Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kitty Jung, Chair 
Julia Ratti, Vice Chair 

Neoma Jardon 
George Hess, MD 
David Silverman 

John Novak, DMD 
Michael D. Brown 

 
 
 

 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

2. Andrea Esp – Public Health Emergency Response 
Coordinator, hired 1/26/15 – EPHP 

3. Cara Argall – Health Educator, hired 1/26/15 – EPHP  
4. Heather Kerwin – Part-Time Statistician, hired 2/17/15 – 

EPHP EMS 
C. Transfers 

1. Mary Clauson, OAII – Transferred from Vitals to EHS Front 
Desk effective 1/12/15 

D. Departures 
1.   Megan McKinlay, 1/29/07 - 1/12/15 - EPHP 

E. Presentation of Award 
1. Extra Mile Award presented to the Reno Housing Authority  

F. Achievements 
1. Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC) Presentation 

of Accomplishments 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Kelli Goatley-
Seals 

Ms. Christina Conti 
 

7. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority  
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for 

January, 2015. 

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities During January, 
2015. 

 

Mr. Jim Gubbels 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial 
Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date January 31, 2015 
 

Ms. Anna Heenan 

9. Approval of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

10. Review, discussion and direction to staff regarding the 
provisions of the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) entered into by 
the Cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County for the 
creation of the Health District.  Take action to accept the ILA in 
its current form or direct staff to forward any recommendations 
for possible amendments to Reno, Sparks and Washoe County. 
 

Ms. Leslie Admirand 

11. Presentation, Discussion and Possible Adoption of the draft 
Washoe County Health District 2015 Legislative Principles, 
Acceptance of the February 2015 Nevada Legislative Session 
Report and Provide input and/or direction as DBOH may feel is 
appropriate.  
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

*12. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Director, Air Quality Management 

Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services  
Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 

C. Director, Environmental Health Services  
Food, Land Development, UST/LUST, Vector-Borne Disease, 
Waste Management and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan 
Review 

D. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 
Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health 
Preparedness, and Emergency Medical Services 

E. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer 
Measles, Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities Conference, 
Fundamental Review, Other Events & Activities and Health 
District Media Contacts. 

 

 
Ms. Charlene Albee 

 

Mr. Steve Kutz 
 

Mr. Robert Sack 
 
 
 

Dr. Randall Todd 
 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*13. Board Comment  
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

14. Emergency Items 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*15. Public Comment  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

16. Adjournment 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 



items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe 
County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County 
Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting 
materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the 
requirements of NRS 241.020. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:dspinola@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


 

 

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING MINUTES 
 
Members Thursday, January 22, 2015 
Kitty Jung, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Julia Ratti, Vice Chair  
Neoma Jardon  
Dr. George Hess Washoe County Administration Complex 
David Silverman Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. John Novak 1001 East Ninth Street 
Michael D. Brown Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Washoe County District Board of Health met in regular session on Thursday, January 
22, 2015, in the Health Department South Conference Room, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada.   

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance 
Chair Jung called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.   
Chief Brown led the pledge to the flag. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Roll Call 
The following members and staff were present: 
Members present: Chair Kitty Jung 

Vice Chair Julia Ratti  
Dr. George Hess 
David Silverman 
Dr. John Novak 
Michael D. Brown   

Members absent: Neoma Jardon 
Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer, ODHO 

Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Charlene Albee, Division Director, AQM 
Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 
Bob Sack, Division Director, EHS 
Jeff Whitesides, Supervisor, EPHP 
Christina Conti, EMS Program Manager, EPHP 
Brittany Dayton, EMS Coordinator, EPHP 
David McNinch, Supervisor, EHS 

 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 



Phil Ulibarri, Public Communications Program Manager, ODHO 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary, ODHO 
 

3. Public Comment 
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Jung closed the public comment period. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Introduction of New Board Members 

Mr. Dick introduced Chief Michael Brown of the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District, 
the City of Reno appointed member replacing Matt Smith.   

Mr. Dick introduced Dr. John Novak, the Sparks appointed member to the District Board of 
Health (DBOH), replacing Denis Humphreys.  Dr. Novak is a retired dentist and is active in the 
community. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Approval of Agenda 
Vice Chair Ratti moved to approve the agenda for the January 22, 2015, District Board 

of Health meeting.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and 
none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Approval of Draft Minutes 
Vice Chair Ratti moved to approve the minutes of the December 18, 2014 District 

Board of Health regular meeting as written.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which 
was approved six in favor and none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

7. Recognitions 
Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Jung  
A. Years of Service  

1. Irene Ramos-Hernandez, 20 years, hired 12/5/1994 – CCHS  

Mr. Dick introduced and congratulated Ms. Ramos-Hernandez.  Chair Jung thanked her 
for her service.   

2. Jessica Cabrales 10 years of service, hired 1/3/2005 – CCHS 

Mr. Dick introduced and congratulated Ms. Cabrales.  Chair Jung thanked her for her 
service.   

3. Rebecca Koster 15 years of service, hired 1/10/2000 – CCHS 

Mr. Dick introduced and congratulated Ms. Koster.  Chair Jung thanked her for her 
service.   

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 15 



8. Proclamations 
A. National Radon Action Month 

Susan Howe and Jaimie Roice-Gomes from the University of Nevada Cooperative 
Extension and Sarah Wainright and Frankie Vigil from the American Lung Association 
accepted the proclamation and shared radon facts.   

Dr. Hess moved to adopt January as National Radon Month.  Chief Brown seconded 
the motion which was approved unanimously.  

7B. New Hires 

1. Charlie Gray – Environmental Health Specialist Trainee 1, hired 1/5/15 – CCHS 
Mr. Gray was not in attendance.  

C.  Recognition of Achievement 

1. Nicole Alberti – completed the Chamber’s 2014 Leadership Reno Sparks Program. 

Mr. Dick introduced Ms. Alberti and stated she is now trained to be a leader so the 
District can expect big things from her.   

D.  Board Retirements 

1. Dr. Denis Humphreys, member since 12/18/02, Chair from 1/22/09 through 12/16/10. 

Mr. Dick stated it had been a pleasure to work with Dr. Humphreys and his input while 
on the Board had always been thoughtful and well-balanced.   

Mr. Humphreys thanked the Sparks Mayor and Council for providing him the 
opportunity to serve on the DBOH.  He stated the quality and professionalism of staff had 
helped make his time on the Board a pleasurable experience.  He also noted how impressed 
he had always been at how well the Board members work together.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
8. Proclamations (continued) 

B. National Heart Month.  

Kelli Seals accepted the proclamation. 

Dr. Hess moved to adopt February as National Heart Month.  Dr. Novak seconded the 
motion which was approved six in favor and none against.  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
9. Consent Agenda 

A. Air Quality Management Cases 
1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control 

Hearing Board: 

a. Alston Construction – NOV No. 5293, Case No. 1169 
b. F&P Construction – NOV No. 5294, Case No. 1168 
c. NITU Arlington Gas – NOV No. 5455, Case No. 1170 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 15 



B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements  
1. Approval of a pilot program to allow open burning within the Truckee Meadows Fire 
Protection District jurisdiction outside of the Truckee Meadows Hydrographic Area from 
February 14 through 28, 2015. 

2. Approve the abolishment of one vacant Intermittent Hourly Licensed Engineer 
position (#70007454) 

3. Approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2015 
through December 31, 2015, in the amount of $317,061, in support of the HIV Prevention 
Grant Program, IO 10013 

Vice Chair Ratti moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Dr. Hess 
seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none against.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

10. Introduction of Jim Begbie as the Consumer at Large District Board of Health 
Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors 
Staff Representative: Ms. Conti 

Ms. Conti introduced Mr. Begbie.  Mr. Begbie apologized for not having been able to attend 
the previous meeting.  He reviewed his experience and qualifications and expounded on his goals 
and achievements as a member of, and eventually Chair, of the REMSA Board.  He noted he was 
also the Chair of the Board of another highly-regulated non-profit organization.   

Chair Jung thanked Mr. Begbie for his service.  Dr. Hess thanked him for his presentation, 
noting it was beneficial to have the background knowledge he had provided.  

Chair Jung requested Mr. Begbie return frequently to provide updates about what was 
happening at REMSA.   

Councilmember Ratti noted the success of the work that had been done over the last few 
years and stated she felt the next phase would be about transparency of data among all parties 
involved.  This would provide the opportunity to more clearly target opportunities for 
improvement.  She stated she would request Mr. Begbie’s and REMSA’s assistance in furthering 
and sustaining that transparency.  She complimented Mr. Gubbels’ willingness to share 
information and work with other agencies.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

11. Introductions, interviews and possible selection and appointment of a candidate as the 
Member of the Accounting Profession District Board of Health Appointed 
Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors 
Staff Representative: Ms. Conti 

Ms. Conti introduced the item, noting that each candidate would be allowed three minutes for 
their presentation and would be available to answer questions afterwards.  The areas of interest 
they would be touching on would include relevant experience, what they view their role would 
be on the Board, their goals, any potential conflicts, and any additional information they would 
like to share.   

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 15 



Candidate Lisa Carlon reviewed her experience and discussed her unique qualifications.  
Vice Chair Ratti asked Ms. Carlon about her familiarity with the franchising process and the 
relationship between REMSA and the Health District.  Ms. Carlon stated she was aware of the 
new Franchise Agreement (FA) and one goal of that was openness and reporting to the Health 
District.   

Candidate Michael Dobrowski discussed his education and experience.  Vice Chair Ratti 
repeated the question posed to Ms. Carlon.  Mr. Dobrowski noted he was aware of the FA but 
was not familiar with the details.   

Dr. Novak asked if Mr. Dobrowski had gained any experience specific to emergency 
departments.  Mr. Dobrowski stated he had not.  He verified he had no known conflicts of 
interest. 

Candidate Nissa Jimenez introduced herself and discussed her experience.  She stated she 
had no known conflicts of interest.  Vice Chair Ratti repeated the question posed to Ms. Carlon 
and Mr. Dobrowski.  Ms. Jimenez explained she understood the FA assisted them in their ability 
to meet the time and financial constraints as well as enhancing communication with other service 
providers.   

Dr. Novak asked Ms. Jimenez if she had had any involvement with the healthcare section of 
her firm.  She replied her day-to-day involvement was with the healthcare aspect of her section.   

Candidate David Morgan explained his background and experience as well as unique 
qualifications.  He had no conflicts that he was aware of.  Vice Chair Ratti asked him how aware 
he was of the relationship between REMSA and the District Board of Health.  He replied only 
that he has been made aware of the reorganization and new FA.  He understood the Board had 
the power to appoint and expected periodic reporting. 

Candidate Tim Nelson described his background, experience and qualifications.  He did not 
believe there were any conflicts of interest.   

Vice Chair Ratti repeated her question regarding Mr. Nelson’s familiarity with the 
relationship between REMSA and the Health District.  Mr. Nelson explained his understanding 
of the need for a FA and the purpose it serves, and echoed the other candidates in understanding 
a new FA had recently been signed and was in effect. 

Dr. Novak asked Mr. Nelson if he had any specific experience working with a health 
authority.  Mr. Nelson replied he had worked with medical practices and small not-for-profit 
healthcare organizations.   

Chair Jung requested the Board weigh in on how the decision should be made.  She thanked 
the candidates for being willing to be interviewed in front of the Board.  Vice Chair Ratti echoed 
her sentiments and stated that it was a tough decision as all of the candidates were well-qualified.   

Vice Chair Ratti requested the candidates speak of any specific experience with public-
private partnerships.  None of the candidates came forward with further information.  Vice Chair 
Ratti briefly reviewed each candidate’s qualifications and reiterated that all were excellent.  Her 
selections were Mr. Nelson and Ms. Jimenez.   

Dr. Hess’ selections were Ms. Jimenez and Mr. Morgan. 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 15 



Mr. Silverman reiterated it was a difficult process and they all had done a great job 
representing themselves.  His choice was Mr. Nelson.   

Chief Brown agreed they were all excellent candidates.  He selected Ms. Carlon and Mr. 
Nelson.   

Dr. Novak also thanked the candidates.  His choices were Mr. Dobrowski and Mr. Nelson.   

Chair Jung opined a vote was not necessary, as Mr. Nelson had already received four votes.  
She encouraged the other candidates to consider volunteering for one of the other numerous 
available Board positions through the County.   

Chief Brown moved to reflect the Board’s vote for the appointment of Mr. Nelson.  Dr. 
Novak seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none against.   

Dr. Novak asked if Mr. Nelson had any obligation to return to the Board and report 
information.  Chair Jung stated the Board had wanted to interview and select the candidate was 
because they do expect periodic reports.  She and Mr. Dick will work with Mr. Begbie and Mr. 
Nelson to develop an optimum schedule.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

12. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
Presented by Mr. Jim Gubbels 

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for November and 
December, 2014. 

Mr. Gubbels reported for the month of November.  Priority One compliance in Zone A 
was 93 percent.  For Priority One Zones B, C and D, it was 100 percent.   

Average Priority One response times in minutes was 5:17 for Reno, 5:56 for Sparks and 
8:40 for Washoe County.  Average Priority Two response times in minutes was 5:54 for 
Reno, 6:21 for Sparks and 9:00 for Washoe County.  Average bill for November was $1,073, 
bringing the year to date total to $1,070. 

Mr. Gubbels reported for the month of December.  Priority One compliance in Zone A 
was 93 percent.  For Priority One Zones B, C and D, it was 97 percent.   

Average Priority One response times in minutes was 5:20 for Reno, 6:07 for Sparks and 
9:16 for Washoe County.  Average Priority Two response times in minutes was 5:49 for 
Reno, 6:43 for Sparks and 9:15 for Washoe County.  Average bill for December was $1,072, 
bringing the year to date total to $1,070. 

Mr. Gubbels pointed out a graph that had been added which depicted response times each 
month by jurisdiction.  Vice Chair Ratti suggested she had not been clear regarding her 
previous request for more information, as this provided approximately half of what she 
needed.  At the bottom of each table of the graph she would like to see a year-to-date 
average.  The Board does receive the monthly snapshots but those may be affected by 
outliers.   

Mr. Gubbels suggested they reproduce the middle graph based on average response time.  
He explained it depicted ongoing, year-to-date info for Priority 1 compliance for Zone A and 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 15 



Priority 1 compliance for Zones B, C and D.  Vice Chair Ratti expressed her appreciation for 
that graph but explained the tables should contain the cumulative year-to-date average.   

Chair Jung suggested that, prior to the next meeting, Mr. Gubbels contact Vice Chair 
Ratti to clarify the specifics of what she is asking for.  Mr. Gubbels asked if the Board still 
wished to see the monthly reports and they stated they did.  He offered to share what 
REMSA produced prior to submittal.   

Dr. Novak noted a consistent difference in response times between Reno and Sparks and 
asked if Mr. Gubbels had any idea why that might be happening.  Mr. Gubbels pointed out 
the FA required a 90 percent compliance and the difference had to do with the average 
volume of calls to each of the jurisdictions.  He noted Reno calls constitute approximately 
two-thirds of all calls received.   

Chief Brown moved to approve the November and December reports.  Dr. Hess 
seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none against.  
B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities During November and December, 2014 

Mr. Gubbels noted he had one more item for the Operations report.  Over the years, 
comment cards had been utilized to obtain feedback.  In an attempt to improve that process, 
in November they had initiated a contract with a company called EMS Survey.  The first 
report will be submitted with the February Board packet.   

Mr. Gubbels reported that the new process included information about how to contact the 
Health District if the customer was unsatisfied with REMSA’s service.  Dr. Hess asked if the 
new system would provide reports regarding the number of surveys completed and whether 
there are any negative comments.  Mr. Gubbels stated the negative comments are all 
followed up on.   

Mr. Silverman opined the negative comments provide good feedback and asked if those 
would still be seen by the Board.  Mr. Gubbels stated the responses would be scaled.  He 
went on to explain that on occasion the people offering negative comments were subject to 
personal challenges that may influence their perceptions.   

Chair Jung asked how the response requests were being offered to the customer and 
where the information about who to call in case they were not satisfied could be located.  Mr. 
Gubbels replied the response requests were mailed and were accessible on the website.  The 
contact information was on the website.  Chair Jung noted that information was also 
supposed to be available in the survey packet.  Mr. Gubbels stated he would follow up.   

Chair Jung stated there needed to be a policy decision about where any negative 
information goes after it is received by the EMS staff.  Mr. Dick stated it could be reported 
within the Division updates.   

Mr. Gubbels reported he had attended the gathering honoring the 30th anniversary of the 
Galaxy crash and stated it was very moving. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

13. Presentation, discussion and possible approval of the Regional Emergency Medical 
Services Authority (REMSA) Franchise Compliance Report for the period of 7/2/2013 
through 6/30/2014 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 15 



Staff Representative: Ms. Dayton 

Ms. Dayton presented the staff report, noting REMSA had been in compliance with all 26 
auditable items.  She noted this was the final compliance report for the 2005 REMSA franchise.  
All future reporting would be based on the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for 
Ground Ambulance Service which was approved by the DBOH in May, 2014 and became 
effective July 1, 2014.   

Chair Jung noted an item regarding replacement of a Board member who misses three 
meetings, but that was not an auditable item.  She asked how an item that could not be audited 
could be included in an agreement.  Ms. Dayton explained it had been designated not an 
auditable item in past compliance reports.   

Chair Jung asked Deputy District Attorney (DDA) Admirand why it was in the FA.  Ms. 
Admirand replied that was one of the conditions the Board had agreed to.  She stated if the Board 
would like that to be reported on, it could be changed.  Chair Jung reiterated her concern about 
the auditability of an item in an Agreement if it could not be proven or disproven.  Ms. Dayton 
explained that would be addressed under the new FA.   

Chair Jung noted the competitive bid process was also not applicable to audit and asked why 
it was part of the audit.  Ms. Dayton replied it was not applicable because it was not reviewed 
every year.  Chair Jung opined that should be noted. 

Chair Jung pointed out the report stated REMSA had met Requirement 9 and showed 
percentages, but the graph did not clearly demonstrate that they had met it.  Ms. Dayton noted 
that had been an oversight on her part.   

Chief Brown asked if the educational opportunities shown in the report were training sites, or 
if REMSA taught all the classes.  Ms. Dayton stated REMSA teaches off site as well as on site.  
Chief Brown asked if asked if the staff from the companies listed were receiving their cards from 
the training center, which was REMSA, and the training sites refers to them doing their own 
teaching.  Ms. Dayton explained it was REMSA employees going to the sites to conduct the 
training.   

Mr. Gubbels noted REMSA was the lead agency for the American Heart Association (AHA), 
so all of the cards that are authorized and released come back through REMSA.  The majority of 
the classes are taught by REMSA facilitators or contract facilitators.  The list represented 
students that had gone through the agency-sponsored training or were affiliated with REMSA.  
Chief Brown explained he was attempting to determine which were REMSA-sponsored 
programs versus AHA programs using the training center.  Mr. Gubbels explained it would be a 
combination of both.  Chair Jung requested that be reflected in the report as well.   

Chair Jung noted Item 28 was also not auditable.  Ms. Dayton explained she was working 
towards finding a way to make everything auditable under the new FA.  DDA Admirand stated 
the next report will provide information for each item.   

Chair Jung reiterated if an item was not auditable it was not enforceable under the new FA.  
Mr. Dick clarified this was the last year’s performance under the former FA and that was why 
they were being presented.  Ms. Conti reiterated the new FA was being reviewed for auditable 
versus non-auditable items and requested direction from the Board in helping to determine which 
were and which were not auditable and which were critical to the Franchise.  

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 15 



Chair Jung requested that, in the future, staff should request direction from the Board if 
something is not auditable so they can work with the other governing bodies to renegotiate the 
FA if necessary.  Ms. Conti stated staff will bring the process that will be applicable to the 
current franchise year to the Board prior to submitting the compliance report. 

Dr. Hess opined certain items within a contract are background and cannot be quantified.  
DDA Admirand noted there would be things that were not auditable by numbers or actions, but 
that does not alter the fact it is still an exclusive franchise.  She suggested language should 
possibly be changed in the compliance report.  Instead of saying that it is not auditable, stating it 
is in existence and in compliance with the language of the FA.  

Vice Chair Ratti noted the previous FA had very little legal language.  She supported Chair 
Jung’s instructions, stating that prior to the submittal of the next report, the Board would like to 
see how it is going to be approached, based on franchise language.  She opined it is important to 
be providing significant information.   

Dr. Hess complemented the report.  

Dr. Novak moved to approve the report.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was 
approved six in favor and none against. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Possible Reappointment of Dr. George Hess to the District Board of Health for a second 
term beginning January 2015 and ending December 2018 
Chair Jung asked Dr. Hess if he wished to continue to serve and he stated he did.  

Mr. Silverman moved to reappoint Dr. Hess. Vice Chair Ratti seconded the motion 
which was approved six in favor and none against.  

Chair Jung announced Item 15 would be heard after Item 18 as Vice Chair Ratti was pressed 
for time and had seen the presentation previously.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

16. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 
year to date December 31, 2014 
Staff Representative: Ms. Heenan  
Ms. Heenan presented the report.  She noted it was typical for expenditures to exceed revenues 

during the first months of the year as grant reimbursement can be slow.  During the fourth quarter, the 
opposite will be true.   

Chair Jung requested Ms. Heenan break down revenues other than reimbursements.  Ms. 
Heenan replied the General Fund contributed a little over 50 percent, 27 percent comes from grants 
and the remainder comes from licenses, permits and fees.   

Chair Jung complemented Ms. Heenan’s presentation of the monthly report.   

Dr. Hess moved to acknowledge the receipt of the report.  Chief Brown seconded the 
motion which was approved six in favor and zero against.  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

17. Presentation and discussion of follow-up report regarding direction provided at the 
December 18, 2014 meeting with respect to benchmarking statistics and request for 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 15 



Board to direct staff to continue with or make adjustments to uniform methodology 
approved June 26, 2014. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Heenan 

Ms. Heenan introduced the report.  For the benefit of the new members, she noted the 
District had undergone a Fundamental Review process.  One of the recommendations from that 
review had been a cost-benefit analysis of the District programs.  Methodology approved in June 
of 2014 had been utilized to create a cost analysis for the Administrative Health Services (AHS) 
Division which was presented to the Board December 18, 2014.   

Ms. Heenan explained that during that meeting, there had been discussion as to whether or 
not NACCHO benchmarks were appropriate for the District’s purposes.  Staff was directed to 
bring back the minutes from the FR and the June 26, 2014 staff report, which was when the 
Board approved the methodology for the cost analysis.  Upon review of the information, staff 
determined the Board had not provided specific direction as to what to use for benchmarks.  The 
June 26 staff report indicated staff would utilize the Public Health Uniform National Data Base 
System which is generated by NACCHO.  The system is capable of generating data that provides 
results from areas with similar characteristics to Washoe County.  

Ms. Heenan stated staff’s goal is to attempt to locate as many measurement tools as possible 
to compare the District to other like agencies.   

Mr. Dick noted the selection of AHS for the initial cost analysis may not have been the 
optimal way to start the process, as there were few benchmarks for Administration outside of 
NACCHO.  Other organizations may have benchmark statistics for the other programs.   

Mr. Dick suggested the Board consider whether staff should continue along the current path 
and determine if there is merit in the approach, or if it should be adjusted.   

Chair Jung noted she appreciates goals but prefers them to be realistic.  She reiterated her 
opinion that NACCHO benchmarks did not align with the composition of Washoe County.  She 
opined that, considering budget limitations, the District does a good job for the citizens.   

Dr. Hess suggested the benchmarks may indicate the District is out of balance and may need 
adjustments, but they also may indicate that things are fine.  He reiterated statistics from similar 
counties could be located and utilized.   

Ms. Heenan stated that if the Board accepted the direction introduced at the previous 
meeting, no motion was needed.  Chair Jung emphasized the direction was fine, as long as the 
caveats were incorporated.   
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
18. Acceptance of the January 2015 Nevada legislative session report and providing input 

and/or direction as DBOH may feel is appropriate.  
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick 

Mr. Dick stated this report was a continuation of Bill Draft Requests (BDR) that have been 
released since the last Board meeting.  He noted it was a broad list of proposed bills that may have 
impact on the District or public health, but with less than a sentence description it was difficult to 
tell what the bill will be.  Staff will be watching them and trimming the list down as the full 
language is provided and will continue to provide the information to the Board. 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 15 



Mr. Dick noted some tracked BDRs had converted to Bills and staff is working with the County 
Legislative Liaison responding to Fiscal Note Requests.  To date, he had no Bills to report that had 
any significant impacts on the District.   

Chair Jung asked if there were staff members dedicated to this task.  Mr. Dick stated Ms. 
Spinola is taking the lead on coordinating efforts, conducting the initial review of bills and BDRs, 
distributing the information to the Division Directors (DD) who provide comment, and entering the 
information into the Washoe County bill tracking system.  Washoe Bills allows the District to 
review the position of other departments to assure that its position is in alignment with them, or to 
initiate discussion.   

Mr. Dick explained the DDs and Supervisors will also be engaged in providing subject matter 
expert testimony and he has registered as a Lobbyist.   

Chair Jung strongly urged him to work with the Washoe County Lobbyist and the contract 
Lobbyist.  She stated she was fully committed to supporting emergency Board meetings as 
necessary.  She felt a guiding statement or principles should be developed for the Board to adopt so 
that when staff cannot access the Board for direction, there is guidance available.   

Additionally, Chair Jung stated she would support electing an official Liaison who would be the 
person from the Board that could be contacted at any time if there was a question about the Board’s 
direction on a specific Bill.  She requested an offline meeting with Mr. Dick or an item at the next 
meeting to establish the guidelines and policies so staff has the ability to make the decisions.   

Mr. Dick stated he would be happy to have that discussion.  He had met with Liane Lee, the 
County Legislative Liaison and Lobbyist, and they plan to coordinate closely so they can provide a 
united front at the Legislature.   

Chair Jung urged Mr. Dick and staff to consider the best approach to potentially partisan issues 
and to utilize the Board members and their expertise.   

Vice Chair Ratti pointed out the approach taken by Sparks City Council was to not get involved 
with everything but to take a strategic approach regarding the things that are most important.  
However, if something the District is working on has momentum and action by Sparks can help 
push it through, their lobbyist could likely assist.  She opined Reno had a similar person and 
process.  She requested the District utilize this assistance only for items of importance.   

Chief Brown stated he had met with Mr. Dick and was pleased to hear of the networking 
planned for Legislative issues.  He echoed Vice Chair Ratti’s comments, noting that there would be 
a quite a number of associations working very hard in Carson City on different issues.  He was 
happy to have received the combined list of BDRs and Bills being tracked and stated the 
information sharing would be continued.   

Chair Jung explained she would be representing the County at a meeting of the Nevada 
Association of Counties and the Nevada League of Cities on January 22.  The meeting was being 
convened to discuss the Legislative agenda and working towards unity of direction.  Vice Chair 
Ratti stated she would be attending as well.   

Chief Brown moved to accept the report. Dr. Novak seconded the motion which was 
approved six in favor and none against.  

[Vice Chair Ratti left the meeting at 3:04 p.m.] 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 11 of 15 



_____________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Presentation of significant findings of the Washoe County Community Health Needs 
Assessment 
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick 

Mr. Dick introduced the Community Health Needs Assessment (CNHA), which had been 
produced in cooperation with Renown.  Contributions from the District, Renown, Washoe 
County Social Services and Schwab Bank had funded the project.  The Nevada Public Health 
Foundation was the fiscal agent, and they had employed Heather Kerwin to compile the report.  
Mr. Dick introduced Ms. Kerwin and provided an overview of her achievement.  He stated he 
appreciated everything she had done for the report.   

Mr. Dick reviewed the Executive Summary of the CHNA through a Power Point 
presentation.  (Attached Exhibit A).  He explained more detailed information was available in the 
full report.  It was hoped the report would be a resource that community organizations could use 
as documentation to support grant applications and demonstrate the community needs being 
addressed.   

Mr. Dick noted the report had identified key issues and concerns that could initiate 
discussion regarding how they should be addressed and an improvement plan developed.  The 
identified issues are complex social and health issues that will require cross-sector collaboration 
and coordination.   

Mr. Dick explained the plan is to move from the CHNA into an engagement with other 
organizations and agencies to develop a Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP).  This 
will be implemented by the community at large, not just the Health District.  The District will 
take a leadership role.  A new position called Director of Projects and Programs has been created 
and is currently in recruitment, and the individual in the position will help coordinate that effort, 
as well as others.  Additionally, a Steering Committee will be created to engage others in 
developing the plan.   

Dr. Hess asked if the information received at the Healthy Community Conference had been 
consolidated.  Mr. Dick stated the results of the CHNA had been presented at the conference.  
The 89502 zip code area had been highlighted.  During the afternoon session, most of the 
participants remained and worked diligently in a facilitated exercise, discussing what they could 
do to address the needs of that area.  The input has been compiled.  Additionally, Mr. Dick has 
received correspondence from attendees that are already pursuing collaborative efforts initiated 
at the conference.   

Mr. Dick noted he would be meeting with the Conference Planning Committee to discuss 
what project ideas came out of the conference, and they will establish a similar steering 
committee for the 89502 zip code to begin pilot projects.  Funding has been located to support 
the projects.  The media has expressed interest in continuing to follow the progression so they 
may keep the community appraised.   

Dr. Hess passed out information about a community that had reversed their cardiovascular 
disease trend (Exhibit B).  He suggested the District at some point should focus on the issue.  He 
opined overcoming the issues brought out in the CHNA was a huge undertaking.   

Mr. Dick agreed it was and stated he was pleased it had begun.  He felt there had been a pent-
up demand and people had been pleased the conference was held.  The Federal Reserve Bank is 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 12 of 15 



working in collaboration with the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation to establish funding for 
communities such as Washoe County to be used for planning efforts.  More information is 
expected later in the year.  

Chair Jung expressed her appreciation for the CHNA.  A smaller assessment had been 
conducted previously that provided some direction towards health improvements for children in 
the community.   

Chair Jung asked if the District was recouping Medicaid reimbursement.  Mr. Dick explained 
the District was billing Medicaid for services provided.  Chair Jung requested a report displaying 
the difference in revenue prior to and after the increase in Medicaid enrollment.   

Chair Jung asked if the information contained in the CHNA would be customized and 
presented to agencies such as the Washoe County School District (WCSD) Board of Trustees, 
Food Bank of Northern Nevada and specialty courts such as Juvenile Justice, in the interest of 
gaining their involvement.  Mr. Dick stated there would be presentations; a WCSD Board 
member is on the planning committee, and WCSD and the Food Bank had been participants in 
the planning segment of the conference.   

Mr. Silverman stated some of the information in the presentation was disturbing and 
complex.  He requested what level of confidence the Board could hold regarding the accuracy of 
the results, as that would drive action.  Mr. Dick explained Ms. Kerwin had been extremely 
diligent while pulling together the supporting data.  Citations, appendices and additional 
information are included and data that was questionable was not used.   

Ms. Kerwin emphasized she had utilized measures that have been in existence for some time 
so they have been tested and will be available for comparison in the future.  She extended an 
invitation to contact her regarding any questions.  Mr. Silverman indicated he was not 
questioning her methods, noting it was challenging to get accurate data.  Her statements had 
helped provide him with the confidence he needed.   

Dr. Hess noted that 10-15 percent of information regarding cause of death is incorrect.   

Chair Jung agreed with Mr. Silverman’s comments, noting that some data is self-reported, 
providing the opportunity for outside influences to affect the content of the information that is 
provided.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

19.  Staff Reports and Program updates 
A. Director, Air Quality Management  

Ms. Albee had nothing to add.  She welcomed the new members and offered her services 
and those of her staff if there were any questions. 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services 
Mr. Kutz welcomed the new members and offered his time to meet with them to 

introduce him to his division.   

Mr. Kutz explained that on February 9 a press conference would be held regarding 
Human Papillomavirus Free Nevada in partnership with Immunize Nevada.   

C. Director, Environmental Health Services 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 13 of 15 



Mr. Sack explained the new food regulations had been released to staff for internal 
review.  Mr. Silverman has been participating in that process.  The next steps will involve a 
public process that will culminate with the regulations coming to the Board for adoption. 

EHS has worked with the Department of Wildlife to create a bear video highlighting the 
problems with bears and trash in the community.  It will be made widely available.   

D. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 
Mr. Whitesides explained that since his report had been distributed, the EMS quarterly 

data report had been finalized.   

E. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer 
Mr. Dick stated he had recently received the latest weekly influenza report and the levels 

of flu in the community are declining.   

He noted that since his report had been finalized, he has had the chance to meet with both 
new Board members and looks forward to working with both of them.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

20. Board Comment 
Chair Jung stated she wanted to see implemented a means to ask clients if they had enough 

food to last them through the end of the month.  If they did not, then to have the ability to offer 
them food coupons or referrals to other free food sources.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

21. Emergency Items 
None. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

22. *Public Comment 
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Jung closed the public comment period. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
23. Adjournment 
 
  

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 14 of 15 



 

At 3:48 p.m., Dr. Novak moved to adjourn.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which 
was approved five in favor and none against.   
Respectfully submitted, 

   
Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Secretary to the District Board of Health 

  
 Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary 

Recording Secretary 

Approved by Board in session on February 26, 2015. 

 
January 22, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 15 of 15 



IHCC 
Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council 

DATE: January 30, 2015 

TO: IHCC Members 

FROM:   Kent Choma, IHCC Chairman 
Michael Munda, IHCC Vice Chairman 

SUBJECT: IHCC Accomplishments for calendar year 2014 

In preparation for our annual review of achievements, Christina Conti reviewed the IHCC 2014 
meeting minutes and compiled a list of IHCC’s major accomplishments.  Kent Choma and Michael 
Munda fine-tuned the list of accomplishments.  It is very important that we take the time to 
recognize the strides the group has made and the impact it has on the community.  The IHCC 
achieved and/or began working on all of the annual goals and trainings established for 2014.  The 
goals for this year were quite ambitious and required multi-month and multi-agency coordination 
which is why a few have not been fully completed.  The District Health Officer and the District 
Board of Health along with the leaders of IHCC appreciate the hard work the Inter-Hospital 
Coordinating council does to prepare our community to provide the best health care possible at all 
times, and especially during times of disaster.   

I. REAL WORLD RESPONSES 

Hospital Shortage of IV Solution/Saline Fluid:  February 2014.  It was noted at the February 
meeting that there was a national shortage of saline solution through March that began to affect 
our hospitals’ supply.  The IHCC members discussed and shared various ideas on conserving the 
current supply while maintaining patient care.  Through the process the State and CDC were 
notified of the potential for a shortage locally.   

Discovery Museum Multi-Casualty Incident: On, September 3, 2014, an explosion occurring 
during an experiment at the Discovery Museum and caused a “flash fire” in the facility.  The total 
number of injured was thirteen, which activated the MCI Plan.  All hospitals received notification 
and activated their Incident Command System in response.   

II. ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Regional Emergency Water Restoration Plan:  In collaboration with Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority, Washoe County Health District, and members of the IHCC, this plan that began in 
2013 was completed and finalized in June 2014.  This guidance gives hospitals a template for 
emergency planning relating to the loss of water to their facility.   

Healthcare Requesting Procedures:  The previous hospital requesting procedures were updated 
and expanded to include any healthcare facility or organization that might need resources or 
personnel.  These are statewide procedures that would be used locally.   

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.F.1



Public Information/Public Warning Annex Plan: This plan was developed by healthcare partners 
and is an annex to the Regional Public Information/Public Warning Annex.  The plan provides 
information on how to coordinate messaging during an emergency.   

Mutual Aid Evacuation Annex (MAEA) Update:   Using a revision sub-committee of various 
IHCC members, the group began to work on the annex update.  This update will be completed by 
June 30, 2015 and will include information relating to the evacuation of multiple facilities. 

Active Assailant Response “Go-Bags”:  Based on recommendations from MTAC, emergency 
medical supplies were provided in bags to the health care facilities.  The outreach was intended for 
the hospital areas or buildings that are not close to the Emergency Department to include medical 
offices and long-term care facilities.  In a real life scenario, transport to ED is not always possible 
if active assailant is still in the building and this provides means of immediate help. 

MRC MOU with Saint Mary’s: In preparation of the Broken Wing exercise, MRC Program 
Coordinator gave a presentation to the IHCC regarding the volunteers and the capabilities of the 
MRC.  As a result, the capability was tested during the Broken Wing exercise and a MOU was 
signed with Saint Mary’s in September 2014. 

Regional Active Assailant Protocols:  In response to the Sparks Middle School shooting, planning 
began among regional law enforcement partners, including EMS, schools and hospitals, to develop 
a regional response protocol.  These protocols ensure the region responds together and under the 
same guidance regardless of the agency the individual responder works for. 

Mass Fatality Planning:  In response to the Broken Wing Exercise, the IHCC members have begun 
working on a Family Assistance Center Annex to the MCI Plan.  This annex is anticipated to be 
completed by June 30, 2015. 

Recognition at National Conference:  This coalition was recognized in December 2014 at the 
National Healthcare Coalition Preparedness Conference for the continual collaboration on projects 
and planning.  A presentation on behalf of the IHCC was a poster depicting the theme of “Playing 
well together in the sandbox”.   

Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan:  Member of the IHCC began participating in the update to this 
plan, which is under Washoe County Emergency Management.  This plan looks at the previous 5 
years of mitigation projects and the status of them while looking ahead to the next 5 years and 
what projects our region would like to do to mitigate disasters. 

III. EXERCISES

ARkStorm Flood Tabletop Exercise:  Held March 14, 2014 and was presented by Washoe 
County Department of Emergency Management (DEM). The tabletop drill tested three stages over 
time of the impact and response within the community, including the hospital setting, for the back-
to-back storms resulting in major citywide flooding. 

Active Shooter Training Drill:  Held March 28, 2014 by Northern Nevada Medical Center after 
two day training on March 25-26.  This drill provided opportunities for hospital staff to prepare 
and practice for a real life active shooter scenario. 



FCC Plan Training:  Held May 7, 2014 and was a partnership with VA Sierra Nevada Health 
System, Reno Airport Authority, REMSA, and other critical care staff.  This training with scenario 
discussion provided an opportunity for regional healthcare and critical partners to learn more 
about FCC’s and provide input into the developing plan. 

Triennial Airport Exercise:  Held May 29, 2014 as a community exercise involving the Reno 
Airport Authority, EMS agencies, healthcare partners, emergency management, as well as other 
key regional partners.  This is a triennial test of emergency response to include: triage in the field, 
transport, medical surge, and mass fatality.  This enables testing of current plans in place and 
provides learning opportunities for improvement to the emergency plans. 

POD Full-Scale Exercise: Held on October 9, 2014, this exercise tested the coordination and 
collaboration of private POD partners to open a large public POD.  Members of the IHCC 
participated in various roles for the exercise and planning meetings.   

Great Shake Out Exercise: Held October 16, 2014.  This regional drill tested earthquake 
response within facilities and the use of WebEOC during an emergency.   

Regional POD Table Top Exercise:  Held on December 11, 2014, this exercise focused on the 
private POD 
partners, specifically healthcare, on what their internal operations in the event of an emergency 
response. The scenario allowed for the head of household to be issued prophylaxis and tested 
“dry” dispensing for the first time.   

IV. TRAINING

Asiana Aircraft Training:  Held April 14, 2014 and presented by a United Airlines 
representative, this was a learning exercise designed for community partners to review the 
response, liaison, and lessons learned from the Asiana aircraft incident.  Items learned to impact 
our plans involved patient tracking, use of Red Cross and credentialing of volunteer staff. 

ICS 400:  January 21-22, 2014 
ICS 300:  January 27-29, 2014 
Public Information/Public Warning 
workshop: January 29, 2014  
Health and Medical Workshop:  January 
30, 2014 
Triage Tag Training:  February 19-20, 2014 
ICS 400:  February 20-21, 2014 
Cyber Security for Awareness for Public 
Safety:  February 27, 2014 
ICS 400:  February 27-28, 2014; March 18-
19, 2014 
COOP Training:  March 25-26, 2014 
Active Shooter/Situational Awareness:  
March 26-27, 2014 
ITERC Fire and Hazard Mitigation 
Planning Workshops:  March 31 – April 4, 
2014 

WebEOC and HavBed Training:  April 11, 
2014 
Pubic Warning Communication Event for 
Special Needs Groups:  May 30, 2014 
MAEA Training:  June 5, 2014 
HICS5 Training:  June 18-19, 2014  
Requesting Procedures Training: various 
dates particular to each healthcare facility 
Rural Preparedness Summit:  June 25-26 
in Fallon 
Public Information/Public Warning 
(PI/PW) Workshop:  July 17-18, 2014 
PI/PW for Media with the Rurals:  in Elko 
August 19, 2014 
Balloon Race Table Top Exercise:  August 
14, 2014 
WebEOC Patient Tracking: September 30, 
2014 
MAEA Training: October 16, 2014 



ICS 400: October 21-22 
ICS 300: November 18-20 

ICS 300: December 16-18 

V. GRANT ACTIVITIES 

Through the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) grant, the Washoe 
County Health District was able to work on several projects and provide equipment to the IHCC 
partners.  Planning projects included the Emergency Water Restoration plan and the Public 
Information/Public Warning Annex for the region.  Equipment includes the update and printing of 
the regional response guides, which have information for citizens on emergency preparedness and 
community numbers and the active assailant response kits.   



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



REM SA 

Fiscal 2015 

Month I #Patients I Gross Sales I Avg. Bill I YTD Avg. 

------~-~-~t .. ?..9.~-~---······ _____ ___ }_!_§.! ......... -------~~-!g?._~ .. -~-~-? ........ ······-~-~ .... 9..§.~---· ······ ······--·~-~-!.9..§.~---········· 
Aug. 3965 $4,234,791 $1,068 $1,069 

···········-······························· ·······························-· · · ··-·····--···-------········ ··············--·- ................................................................................. . 
Sept. 3674 $3,942,547 $1,073 $1,070 

Oct. 3806 $4,059,917 $1,067 $1,069 ............................................................................. ................................................ ............................................................................ 

Nov. 3535 $3,791,791 $1,073 $1,070 

Dec. 3843 $4, 119,979 $1,072 $1,070 
--·----------·····------------------·----- .................. ................ -------------····· ···················· ·-···--·- ··· - ··-· - ··----~··················· ........................................ . 

Jan. 2015 3870 $4, 142,489 $1,070 $1 ,070 
•h••••••• •••••••••••h••••••••••••••••••• ••••••••••••• •••••••••••••••••••• ••--•••••• ••••••••o•••o••••• ••••--••••••*'• •••• •••• •••-• ••••• ••••••••••••••••••••••• ••• ••••••• • ••••• • • ••••••• • u•• • ••• •••••• 

Feb. $0 $1 ,070 

Mar. $0 $1 ,070 

------~-P.~~---······················· .................................. .............................................................. ~.Q ............... ···· · ···-~-~--!_Q?..9. .......... . 
May $0 $1 ,070 

June 2015 $0 $1,070 

Totals I 26460 I $28,320,004 I $1,070 

Allowed ground avg bill - $1 ,076.00 



Fiscal 2015 

M th I Priority 1 System-Wide I Priority 1 I Priority 1 
on Avg. Response Time Zone A Zones B,C,D 

Jul. 2014 5 mins. 41 secs. 93% 93% 
••••••••·•O • ••o•••oo.0000.0000 000000000.0000000.0000000000.000000.ooooooooo.oooooooooooooooHOOOOOOOOOO •OOOOOOHOOO ••o. 000.0 .0000000000 0 

------~-~-~=---·········· · ··---~--~!~~:--~-~-~~-~-: ................ ~.?.~---· ·· ········---~-~~---······· 
...... ?-~!?-~: ______ _____ ·····-~--~!~~: .. ~.?.-~~-~-~-: ................ ~.?.~------ ········---~_!.~---······· 

Oct. 5 mins. 54 secs. 92% 98% 
Nov. 5 mins. 59 secs. 93% 100% 
Dec. 6 mins. 5 secs. 93% 97% 

·············-------------- ----···-·······-·-···········-·-·--------·----·-------------···--····· ·-----· ···················-··· 
Jan. 2015 5 mins. 53 secs. 93% 99% 

............................ ·······-···· · ··················· ··············-······-······-···---------------······-·············· 
Feb. 
Mar. 

·················-········· ··································-································· ··-·········-······-·····-···· 
Apr. 
May 
June 2015 

Year to Date: July 2014 through January 2015 

Average Response Times by Ent ity 

_ _ R_e_no--11----Sp_a_rk_s_"";w"":)""~:~""H""-Q~"'"J;'""~p""3""1}1.;.;.;h'.~:·~ 
July 2014 

1 
___ P-_1 _--+_5_:o_7_+ __ 5:_5_9_-1-__ s_:3_4_--1 

P-2 6:33 6:55 9:53 

Aug.2014 P-1 6:06 6:11 9:07 

P-2 6:54 6:51 10:03 

Sept. 2014 ........... '..~-~---········ .... ~'.~-~---· ··· · ---~-:.?..~--- ···· .......... ~?'.~-~---······ 
P-2 5:54 7:02 10:19 

Oct. 2014 P-1 5:20 5:56 9:23 

P-2 5:46 6:57 9:22 

5:56 8:40 Nov. 2014 
1-------11--------1------1------1 

P-1 5:17 

P-2 5:54 6:21 9:00 

Dec. 2014 P-1 5:20 6:07 9:16 
··················~· -······ ················· ···················-··· ··-··-····-·-·--·-·-···-··-··· 

P-2 5:49 6:43 9:15 

Jan. 2015 P-1 5:13 5:55 9:42 

P-2 5:27 6:42 9:53 

Feb. 2015 P-1 

P-2 

Mar. 2015 P-1 
1-------lf----J-----1------~ 

P-2 

Apr. 2015 P-1 
t------1•---t-----r------ 1 

P-2 

May 2015 ........... '..~-~--- · ······· ...................................... ............................. . 
P-2 

June 2015 P-1 
····-·······--··-·--···-·-· ··· ······-·-··--·-- ·-· -··········· ····-··-· ···--·-········-·-··--····-··· 

P-2 

Year to Date: July 2014 through January 2015 
-R-e-no-~S-p-a-rk-s-~.IW=1;r""'-s""Wo"""~e""'~~,...-;'O='*b""·,15""•ry=.~ 

~n'""'''·---~;}xv>..:-, ... : . ., ... :: 

5: 16 5:59 9:32 



REMSA OCU Incident Detail Report 
= 

.-0 

~REMSA .• 
Period: 01/01/2015 thru 01/31/2015 

12. 1 Monthly Reports (b) CAD Edits & Call Priority Reclassification 

Response 
Zone Clock Start Clock· Stop 

Stop Clock 
"Fhreshold 

Re~ponse 0verage 
Area Unit Time 

A-OB-IC 
01/04/2015 01/04/2015 Washoe Co N- Zone A 

04:36:36 04:44:17 
409 00:08:59 00:07:41 -00:01:1B 

NW 

A-08-IC Reno Zone A 
01/05/2015 01/05/2015 

441 00:08:59 OO:OB:59 00:00:00 
17:46:39 17:55:3B 

A-08-IC Reno Zone A 01/17/2015 01/17/2015 
126 00:08:59 00:06:50 -00:02:09 

14:3B:06 14:44:56 

A-08-IC Reno Zone A 01/20/2015 01/20/2015 
320 00:08:59 00:08:59 00:00:00 

06:29:02 06:38:01 

A-OB-IC Sparks Zone A 01/21/2015 01/21/2015 
33B 00:08:59 00:07:40 -00:01:19 

14:23:40 14:31:20 

UPGRADE 
A-08-lC Reno Zone A 01/11/2015 Reno Fire Dept Upgrade P-1 



GROUND AMBULANCE OPERATIONS REPORT 

January 2015 

1. OVERALL STATISTICS: 

Total Number Of System Responses 

Total Number Of Responses In Which 
No Transport Resulted 

Total Number Of System Transports 

2. CALL CLASSIFICATION REPORT: 

Cardiopulmonary Arrests 
Medical 
OB 
Psychiatric I Behavioral 
Transfers 
Trauma 

Trauma-MVA 5% 
Trauma - Non MV A 19% 

Unknown/ Other 

Total Number of System Responses 100% 

3. MEDICAL DIRECTOR'S REPORT: 

The Clinical Director or designee reviewed : 

• 100% of cardiopulmonary arrests 

5605 

1764 

3841 

2% 
54% 
1% 
6% 

11% 
24% 

2% 

• 100% of pediatric patients (transport and non-transport patients) 
• 100% of advanced airways {outside cardiac arrests) 
• 100% of STEM! Alert or STEM! rhythms 
• 100% of deliveries and neonatal resuscitation 
• 100% Advanced Airway Success rates for nasal/ oral intubation and King Airway placement 

for adult and pediatric patients. 
• 100% of TAP {paramedic orientee) charts during orientation period and 10% in the first 

month post orientation clearance. 

Total number of ALS calls resulting in a system transport: 3841 
Total number of above calls receiving QA reviews: 331 
Percentage of charts reviewed from the above ALS transports: 9% 

Note: In addition to the above manually reviewed charts, all call system responses with a documented PCR are 
electronically reviewed for protocol compliance. Chris Barton, EMD, Communications Education and CQI 
Coordinator completed all follow up deemed necessary resulting from Communication CQI. 



EDUCATION AND TRAINING REPORT 



----~REMSA 
Total 

Discipline Classes 

AC~ 11 

ACL~ ~p 3 

A<;~ EP I 1 
~ 

A~lfi I 3 

AQ:S P 1 

ACLS R 25 

ACL:S s 10 

AEMT 1 

AEM!f T 0 

BLS 49 

~~I 3 

BtS R 58 

Bt:S S 62 . " " 

' CE 0 

EMAPCT 0 

I 6MF?AsJ" I 0 

EMS I 0 

~M1 2 

ffMlf T 
~ ..... 0 

FP 0l>R 2 

FF CPR F.A 0 

FF FA 0 

HS B~P 2 

H.8 CPR 44 

lilS CPR FA 48 

HS CPR FA .S 1 

HS CPR PFA 8 

HS CPflS 2 

~ P.A 11 

H~ FAS 0 

t;:tS PF.A 0 

1(1~ 2 

i liJiLS A 0 

ff~ I 0 

ih°l!S R 0 

PA~ 7 

PA:'=5 I 0 

PALS R 11 

I PALSS 7 
I Pl?:AiRS· 3 

PM 2 

REMSA Education 

Monthly Course and Student Report 

Month: January 2015 

Total REM SA REM SA 

Students Classes Students 

88 5 57 

19 2 11 

6 1 6 

19 1 12 

19 1 19 

103 6 42 

15 6 6 

30 1 30 

0 0 0 

259 7 61 

11 1 5 

276 26 138 

126 19 28 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

26 2 26 

0 0 0 

23 2 23 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

15 1 7 

249 6 48 

339 5 44 

1 1 1 

64 2 10 

2 2 2 

so 1 1 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

25 2 25 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

42 3 30 

0 0 0 

40 2 23 

12 4 5 

28 0 0 

27 2 27 

Site Site 

Classes Students 

6 31 

1 8 

0 0 

2 7 

0 0 

19 61 

4 9 

42 198 

2 6 

32 138 

43 98 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

' 
0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

1 8 

38 201 

43 295 

0 0 

6 54 

0 0 

10 49 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

4 12 

0 0 

9 17 

3 7 

3 28 



ACLS 

ACLS EP 

ACLS P 

ACLS R 

ACLSS 

ACLS I 

AEMT 

AEMTT 

BLS 

BLS I 

BLS R 

BLS S 

CE 

EMA PCT 

EMPACT I 

EMSI 

EMT 

EMT T 

FF CPR 

FF CPR FA 

FF FA 

HS BBP 

HS CPR 

HS CPR FA 

HS CPR FA S 

HS CPR PFA 

HS CPR S 

HS FA 

HS FAS 

HS PFA 

ITLS 

ITLSA 

ITLS I 

ITLS R 

PALS 

PALS I 

PALS R 

PALSS 

PEARS 

PM 

PMT 

Legend 
Advanced Cardialc Life Support 

Advanced Cardiac! Life Support for Experience Providers 

Advanced Cardiac! Life Support Prep 

Advanced Cardiac Life Support Recert 

Advanced Carddiac Life Support Skills 

Advanced Cardiac Life Support Instructor 

Advanced Emergency Medical Technician 

Advanced Emergency Medical Technician Transition 

Basic Life Suppot 

Basic Life Support Instructor 

Basic Life Suppot Recert 

Basic Life Support Skills 

Continuing Education : 

Emergency Medical Patients Assessment, Care, & Transport 

Emergency Medical Patients Assessment, Care, & Transport Instructor 

Emergency Medical Services Instructor 

Emergency M edical Technician 

Emergency M edical Technician Transition 

Family and Friends CPR 

Family and Friends CPR and First Aid 

Family and Friends First Aid 

Heartsaver Bloodborne Pathogens 

Heartsaver CPR and AED 

Heartsaver CPR, AED, and First Aid 

Heartsaver CPR, AED, and First Aid Skills 

Heartsaver Pediatric CPR, AED, and First Aid 

Heartsaver CPR and AED Skills 

Heartsaver First Aid 

Heartsaver First Aid Skills 

Heartsaver Pediatric First Aid 

International Trauma Life Support 

International Trauma Life Support Access 

International Trauma Life Support Instructor 

International Trauma Life Support Recert 

Pediatric Advanced Life Support 

Pediatric Advanced Life Support Instructor 

Pediatric Advanced Life Support Recert 

Pediatric Advanced Life Suppor Skills 

Pediatric Emergency Assessment, Recognition, and Stabilization 

Paramedic 

Paramedic Transition 

I 

274 

REMSA CPR 
Classes 

70 

REMSA CPR 
Students 

355 



COMMUNITY RELATIONS: 

Community Outreach: 

Point of Impact 

Date Description Attending 

Child Safety Seat Checkpoint, Whole Foods Market, 12 volunteers; 5 
1/24/15 Reno; 16 cars and 19 seats inspected. staff 

2 NUI employees; 1 
1/27/15 Basic Car Seat training with Nevada Urban Indians staff staff 

Safe Kids Washoe County 

Date Description Attending 

Cribs for Kids assist with planning of 2015 Nevada 
1/6/15 Health Conference 1 staff 

Safe Kids Coalition annual planning meeting hosted by 10 volunteers; 2 
1/8/15 Renown Children's Hospital staff 

1/12/15 
Cribs for Kids assists planning for Annual Child Safety 

Conference 2015 1 staff 

Cribs for Kids Co-Chairs the Northern Nevada Maternal 
1/12/15 Child Health Coalition Meeting 1 staff 

14 volunteers; 2 
1/13/15 Safe Kids Washoe County monthly coalition meeting staff 

Cribs for Kids attends Northern Nevada Hopes 
1/13/15 Groundbreaking Ceremony 1 staff 

Esther Bennett Safety Patrol Photojournalism field trip to 8 students, 3 
1/16/15 downtown Sparks and the Sparks Marina volunteers, 1 staff 

1/20/15 Join Together Northern Nevada Meeting 2 staff 

Cribs for Kids attends Statewide Maternal Child Health 
1/21/15 Adolescent Health Symposium 1 staff 

1/21/15 Cribs for Kids at Fetal Infant Mortality Review meeting 1 staff 

1/27 /2015- Cribs for Kids rolls out Cops and Cribs Program with 
1/30/2015 Reno Police Department at briefings meetings 1 staff 



-c> 

::5 REMSA~ 

Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 

INQUIRIES 

FOR 

JANUARY 2015 

450 Edison Way • Reno, NV 89502-4 117 

775.858.5700 • fax 775.858.5726 



INQUIRIES 

January 2014 

There were no inquiries in the month of January. 



-=o 
~REMSA. 

Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 

FOR 

JANUARY 2015 

450 Edison Way • Reno, NV 8950 2-4 117 

775.858.5700 • fax 775.858.5726 



1515 Center St. 
Lansing, MI 48096 
1-877-583-3100 
service@EMSSurveyTeam.com 
www.EMSSurveyTeam.com 

4£'&) 
uw1s~ 1 

PRC> 

REM SA 
Reno, NV 

Client 
7299 

EMS System Report 
Januaiy 2015 

Number of Your Patients in this Report: 

Monthly Score 

94.62 

35 



Monthly Report 

This section provides demographic information about the patients who responded to the survey for the current and the 
previous periods. The information comes from the "Background Questions" section of the questionnaire. Compare this 
demographic data to your eligible population. Generally, the demographic profile will approximate your service population. 

El Male 

liil female 



Monthly Report 

Monthly Breakdown 
Below are the monthly responses that have been received for your service. It details the individual score for each question as 
well as the overall company score for that month. 

Jan-15 

Helpfulness of the person you called for ambulance service 93.52 
Concern shown by the person you called for ambulance service 92.00 
Extent to which you were told what to do until the ambulance arrived 91.67 
Extent to which the ambulance arrived in a timely manner 94.70 
Cleanliness of the ambulance 97.66 
Comfort of the ride 89.84 
Skill of the person driving the ambulance 94.70 
Care shown by the medics who arrived with the ambulance 96.88 
Degree to which the medics took your problem seriously 97.58 
Degree to which the medics listened to you and/or your family 98.28 
Skill of the medics 96.88 
Extent to which the medics kept you informed about your treatment 95.69 
Extent to which medics included you in the treatment decisions (if applicable) 96.74 
Degree to which the medics relieved your pain or discomfort 93.52 
Medics' concern for your privacy 94.64 
Extent to which medics cared for you as a person 95.97 
Professionalism of the staff in our billing office 92.71 
Willingness of the staff in our billing office to address your needs 90.63 
How well did our staff work together to care for you 94.53 
Extent to which our staff eased your entry into the medical facility 94.53 
Appropriateness of Emergency Medical Transportation treatment 95.00 
Extent to which the services received were worth the fees charged 88.39 
Overall rating of the care provided by our Emergency Medical Transportation service 95.31 
Likelihood of recommending this ambulance service to others 96.88 

REM SA 94.62 

Responses 35 



GROUND AMBULANCE CUSTOMER COMMENTS JANUARY 2015 

What Did We Do Well? 
What Can We Do To Serve You 

Description I Comments 
Better 

1 Everyone was kind & very helpful 

Very nice, helpful, entertaining toward my baby. 
2 Thank you I 

I could not have had a better exp. Thanks, EMS. 
Really happy with medics 

3 Near Perfectll 

4 They saved my life .... Thanks ..... 

5 All that could be done was done; saved my life! I would recommend services 

I have absolutely no recollection of the experience 

as I should have been dead, so thank you all the and are responsible for saving my life!!!! 
6 team that responded 

The pain is why I indicated the comfort poor. 
The ride in the vehicle seemed to be very shocking 

(poor suspension) I feel that my pain was beyond 

7 
Not the skill of the medic. 

the medic's ability to manage. 
Nice gentlemen who were really more concerned 

8 than I was. It was a positive experience 



-c> 
::5 REMSA .. 

Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 

REMS A 

PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT 

FOR 

JANUARY 2015 

450 Edison Way • Reno, NV 89502-4 117 

775.858.5700 • fax 775.858.5726 



PUBLIC RELATIONS 

January 2015 

ACTIVITY RESULTS 

Worked with Brenda Staffan on a Journal of JEMS article will be published in 
EMS article on Community Health Programs. February. 

Began planning and scheduling of media Training will take place in February. 
training for 12-16 REMSA supervisors. 

Coordinated Community Health Programs Meeting took place In January. 
presentation with Washoe County Board of 
County Commissioners. 

Rescheduled Community Health Programs Meeting is now in April. 
presentation for Reno City Council. 

Assisted in coordination of KOLO interview 
and story on Community Health Paramedics. 

Story aired the last week of January. 

Wrote and distributed media alert on Preview story ran on Channel 2 TV, 
Running Red for Heart event on Feb. 7. Alice radio and Reno Gazette Journal. 



WCSD Police: Pepper Spray Affects 6 Dilworth Middle Students 
Posted: Jan 27, 2015 9:44 AM PSTUpdated: Jan 27, 2015 1:59 PM PST 

By Kellene Stockwell 

Washoe County School District Police say a student accidentally discharged pepper spray 
causing 6 Dilworth Middle students to complain of burning throats and a dry cough. 

WCSD Police tell us 22 students total were inside a classroom before 9 a.m. Tuesday when the 
incident happened. 

No other students were impacted, and the students were evaluated by ·REMSA at the nurse's 
office. No students were transported to the hospital. 



? 

1 Eum~DAILY FREE PREss 
~ e lkodaily.com 

Community CPR class at GBC 

c 
GREAT BASIN COLLEGE 

16 HOURS AGO JO.Y\- - c:2.. '7 J 02010" 

ELKO -- Great Basin College and Newmont 
Mine Rescue have teamed together to bring the 
community a low-cost basic adult, child and 
infant CPR course on Feb. 7 in the Great Basin 
College H~alth Science Building. 

The time for the course is from 9 a.m. to 12:30 
p.m. The cost is $5 and can be paid online with 
a debit or credit card to REMSA or at the door 
directly before the class. The cost of the class 
will pay for American Heart Association 

certification cards. You can preregister and pay the $5 by going to 
www.remsaeducation.com. The name of the event is Elko GBC Community CPR event. 

The American Heart Association's CPR and AED programs teach community members how 
to respond in a cardiac emergency. By training community members in the emergency care 
skills, the survival rate of victims they encounter who have stopped breathing, suffered 
cardiac arrest or are choking increases dramatically. 

With this in mind, Newmont Mine Rescue and GBC Nursing hope to train at least 100 
people in the area how to respond in these types of emergencies. Children over the age of 
12 are encouraged to attend and help create a next generation of lifesavers. 



Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
January 28, 2015 

CONTACT: Scott Walquist, KPSl3, 77S-686-2116, scott@kps3.com 

REMSA PRESENTS "RUNNING RED FOR HEART SK" 

RENO, Nev. - In honor of February's National American Heart Month, the Regional Emergency Medical 
Services Authority (REMSA) will present the third annual Running Red for Heart SK run/walk on Saturday, 
Feb. 7. The SK run/walk will begin in front of Scheels and will follow a route that will include the Sparks 
Marina. The run begins at 8 a.m. and all runners are asked to wear all red running gear. Awards will be given 
for best-dressed runner during a special awards ceremony at the completion of the run. Registration is $3S and is 
available at runningredforheart.org. Discounts will be given for teams. Same day registration begins at 7 a.m. in 
front of Scheets. 

Proceeds raised from this year's run/walk will go to the implementation of CPR (cardiopulmonary resuscitation) 
kits in Washoe County schools. The CPR kits will provide teachers the tools and resources needed to teach CPR 
in the classroom. This initiative will help ensure more people are trained to respond and provide help when it is 
needed most in our community. Additional funds from the run/walk will go directly to the local American Heart 
Association to support their mission to reduce death and disability from cardiovascular disease. 

For more information or questions, contact REMSA at (77S) 3S3-0772 or www.remsaeducation.com. 

### 

450 Edison Way • Reno, NV 89502-4117 
'7'7r::. o r::. o C:. '7 f"\f"\ • • - ·· '7'7r::. or::.o r::.'7n£: 



STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: February 26, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 
2015 year to date January 31, 2015 

SUMMARY 

The first seven months of the fiscal year 2015 (FY15) ended with a cash balance of negative $236,180.  
County General Fund support was not transferred in January to cover the shortfall at month end but was 
later transferred in February.  Total revenues were $9.1 million, 47.1% of budget and an increase of 
4.7% compared to fiscal year 2014 (FY14).  With 58.3% of the fiscal year completed the expenditures 
totaled $11.3 million, 54.2% of the budget and 4.0% more than FY14.  Salaries and benefits continue to 
be the single largest category increase over FY14 at an increase of $495,772, 6.3%, for a total cost of 
$8.4 million.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

Fiscal Year 2015 Budget was adopted May 19, 2014. 

BACKGROUND 

Review of Cash 
The available cash at the end of 
the seven months of FY15 was 
a negative $236,180 down 
141.6%, $803,773, compared 
to FY14.  The County General 
Fund has transferred $4.3 
million for the year; however, 
no transfer was done in January 
to cover the cash shortfall prior 
to the end of the month.  
General Fund support was 
transferred in February to bring 
the cash balance to a positive 
position. 

Note: December FY13 negative cash is due to 50%, $1.3million, of the County Overhead being 
charged in December with just 8.3%, $719,000, of the County Support being transferred to the fund. 
January FY15 no County General Fund support was transferred to the Health Fund leading to a 
negative cash situation.

 $(1,000,000)
 $(500,000)

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000

Beg Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Trend of Available Cash

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


Date: DBOH meeting February 26, 2015 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, January Financial Review 
Page 2 of 4 

Review of Revenues (including transfers from General fund) and Expenditures by category 

Revenues for FY15 year to date 
January of $9.1 million were up 
$406,229, 4.7%, from the same time 
last fiscal year and were 47.1% of 
budget.  The following revenue 
categories were down: licenses and 
permits by 1.0%, $7,281; charges for 
services by 2.1%, $15,476; 
miscellaneous revenue by 62.2%, 
$35,096; and, General Fund support 
by 0.7%, $30,199.  The revenue 
categories that were up over last fiscal 
year are as follows:  federal and state 
grants by 19.9%, $432,527; and, tire 
fees and pollution control fees by 
9.5%, $62,406.  

Expenditures of $11.3 million for 
year to date January increased 4.0%, 
$437,560, compared to the same time 
frame for last fiscal year 2014.  
Salaries and benefits expenditures for 
the seven months of FY15 were $8.4 
million, 6.3% increase, $495,772, over 
the prior year.  Salaries and benefits 
are 74.1% of the total expenditures for 
the fiscal year.  Total services and 
supplies of $2.9 million were down 
$17,196, 0.6%, over fiscal year 2014. 
Capital spent year to date was 
$25,452.   

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $10,000,000

Revenues
FY15 January Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Jan
Year to

Date

Revenues 
(including General Fund support)

GF Operating Support Grants
GF Overhead Subsidy Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits Tires & Pollution Control
Miscellaneous

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $11,000,000
 $12,000,000

Expenditures
FY15 January Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $22,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Jan
Year to

Date

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages Benefits
County Overhead Misc. Services & Supplies
Professional Services Chemical Supplies
Biologicals Capital



Date: DBOH meeting February 26, 2015 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, January Financial Review 
Page 3 of 4 

Review of Revenue and Expenditures by Division 

AQM division revenue has a 7.4% decline, $107,465, over FY14 mainly due to one-time funding from 
DMV excess reserves for pollution control that was received in FY14.  EHS is up 24.1%, $206,894, over 
FY14 with the majority of that increase due to the tire fee revenue; excluding the tire fee revenue the 
increase over FY14 is 6.1%, $41,686.  EPHP is up from FY14 by 1.3%, $9,384.  County General Fund 
transferred $4,271,747 of the budgeted transfer, down $30,199 compared to FY14.     

With 58.3% of the fiscal year completed the total expenditures of $11.3 million were slightly less at 
54.2% of total budget. ODHO and CCHS were running at a level spending pattern for the year.  AHS 
continues to be high due to the unbudgeted retirement payouts and AQM was low due to unspent capital 
funding.  EHS is low due to unspent funding in the tire fee revenue restricted account.  The EPHP is 
down from what would be a level spending pattern due to the recruitment time that was required for new 
staff in the Vital Statistics and Emergency Medical Services program.  The County General Fund 
overhead charges for the seven months totaled $1.4 million, 58.3% of budget, but down 5.4% from 
FY14 due to the overall decline in the overhead charge. 

2011/2012 2012/2013
Actual          

Year End
 January               

Year to Date 
 Adjusted 

Budget 
 January               

Year to Date 
 Percent of 

Budget 

 FY15 
Increase 

over FY14 
Revenues (all sources of funds)

ODHO -              -              -              -               -              -               - -
AHS 8 33,453         87,930         32,929         61,113         41 0.1% -99.9%
AQM 1,966,492     2,068,697     2,491,036     1,450,224     2,116,070     1,342,759     63.5% -7.4%
CCHS 3,706,478     3,322,667     3,388,099     1,326,243     3,528,098     1,686,746     47.8% 27.2%
EHS 1,755,042     1,828,482     1,890,192     859,957       1,931,774     1,066,851     55.2% 24.1%
EPHP 1,670,338     1,833,643     1,805,986     706,983       1,630,280     716,367       43.9% 1.3%
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     3,426,946     7,666,420     3,274,838     42.7% -4.4%
GF Overhead Subsidy -              2,000,000     1,750,000     875,000       2,333,772     996,909       42.7% 13.9%
Total Revenues 16,349,208$ 17,710,834$ 18,267,134$ 8,678,281$   19,267,526$ 9,084,510$   47.1% 4.7%

Expenditures
ODHO -              -              -              -               442,477       249,028       56.3% -
AHS 1,202,330     1,305,407     1,247,924     693,353       1,004,343     635,668       63.3% -8.3%
AQM 1,955,798     2,297,077     2,170,911     1,207,169     2,752,520     1,264,427     45.9% 4.7%
CCHS 6,086,866     5,757,304     5,779,003     3,263,261     5,982,646     3,485,850     58.3% 6.8%
EHS 4,848,375     4,772,942     4,804,597     2,909,301     5,603,142     2,969,801     53.0% 2.1%
EPHP 2,084,830     2,129,310     2,022,331     1,105,777     2,350,969     1,103,216     46.9% -0.2%
GF Overhead Charge -              2,553,372     2,898,034     1,690,520     2,741,061     1,598,952     58.3% -5.4%
Total Expenditures 16,178,200$ 18,815,411$ 18,922,800$ 10,869,384$ 20,877,158$ 11,306,944$ 54.2% 4.0%

Revenues (sources of funds) less Expenditures:
ODHO -              -              -              -               (442,477)      (249,028)      
AHS (1,202,322)   (1,271,953)   (1,159,994)   (660,424)      (943,230)      (635,627)      
AQM 10,694         (228,380)      320,125       243,054       (636,450)      78,332         
CCHS (2,380,389)   (2,434,637)   (2,390,904)   (1,937,018)   (2,454,548)   (1,799,105)   
EHS (3,093,333)   (2,944,460)   (2,914,405)   (2,049,345)   (3,671,368)   (1,902,950)   
EPHP (414,492)      (295,666)      (216,345)      (398,795)      (720,689)      (386,849)      
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     3,426,946     7,666,420     3,274,838     
GF Overhead Subsidy -              (553,372)      (1,148,034)   (815,520)      (407,289)      (602,043)      
Surplus (deficit) 171,008$     (1,104,577)$  (655,666)$    (2,191,103)$  (1,609,632)$  (2,222,433)$  

Fund Balance (FB) 3,916,042$   2,811,465$   2,155,799$   546,168$     
FB as a % of Expenditures 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 2.6%
Note: ODHO=Office of the District Health Officer, AHS=Administrative Health Services, AQM=Air Quality Management,  CCHS=Community and Clinical Health 
Services, EHS=Environmental Health Services, EPHP=Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, GF=County General Fund

Fiscal Year 2014/2015

Washoe County Health District
Summary of Revenues (including County General Fund transfers) and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2011/2012 through January Year to Date Fiscal Year 2014/2015 (FY15)
Fiscal Year 2013/2014Actual Fiscal Year



Date: DBOH meeting February 26, 2015 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, January Financial Review 
Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact associated with the acknowledgement of this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund 
Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date January 31, 2015. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to 
date January 31, 2015. 

Attachment: 
Health District Fund summary report with line item detail 



Run by: AHEENAN 
Run date: 02/13/2015 09:53:34 
Report: 400/ ZS16 

Period: 1 thru 
Acc:ounts: GO- P -L 
Business Area: 

7 2015 
P&L Accounts 

Ac:coun ta 

422503 Environmental Peraita 
422504 Pool Permits 
422505 FN Permits 
422507 Food Service Peraits 
422508 Wat Well Const Perm 
422509 Water Company Permits 
422510 Air Pollution Permits 
422511 ISDS Perm.its 
422513 Spec:ial Event Permits 
422514 Initial Applic Fee 

* Licenses and Permits 
431100 Fadaral Grants 
431105 Federal Grants - Indirect 
432100 State Grants 
432105 State Graats-Indirect 
432310 Tire Fea NRS 444A. 090 
432311 Pol Ctrl 4458.830 .. Intergovernmenta l 
460162 Servi ces to Other Agencies 
460500 Other Iamuni%ations 
460501 Meclic:aid Clinical Services 
460503 Childhood I mmunizations 
460504 Ha ternal Child Beal th 
460505 Non Title X Revenue 
460508 Tuberculosis 
-460509 Water Quality 
460510 IT Overlay 
460511 Birth and Death Certific:ates 
460512 Duplication Service Fees 
460 513 other Bealt Servic:e Charqes 
460514 Food Service Certification 
460515 Medicare R.eiJDbu.rs8lll&llt 
460516 Pqm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 
460517 Influenza IlllDlunization 
460518 STD Fee a 
460519 outpatient Services 
460520 Eng Serv Realth 
460521 Plan Review - Pools & Spas 
460523 Plan Review - Food Services 
460524 Family Planning 
460525 Plan Review - Vec:tor 
460526 Plan Review-Air Quality 
460527 NOE-~ 

2015 Plan 

46,317 -
9 7,000-
11 ,000 -

420 , 0 00-
30,000-

5,000-
474,103-

75,000-
105,000-
31,000-

1,294,420-
5,194,659-

235,667-
311,068-
16,026-

468,548-
318,667-

6,544,636-

89,000-
8,200 -

2 0 , 00 0 -

4 ,100-

35,34 4 - . 
4 80,000 -

18,000 -

1,750-
7,000-

21, 000-

50,000-
3,600-

20,000-
32,000-
42,000-
57,889-

116,984-

W;sahoe Cowity 
Plan/Actual Rev- Exp 2-yr (FC) 

Fund: 2 02 
Fund canter: 00 0 

Func:tional. Area: 000 

2015 Actuals Balance 

25,697- 20,620-
22,486 - 74, 514 -
7,53 3- 3,467-

253,460 - 1 66,540 -
20,156 - 9 , 844-

7,286 - 2,286 
3 00,767- 173,336-
46,466 - 28,534-
45, 846 - 59, 15 4 -
18,426 - 12 , 5 74-

748, 123 - 546 , 297 -
2,318,763- 2 , 87 5 ,996 -

126,342 - 1 09 , 325 -
157,82 7 - 153 , 241-

3,734- 12 , 292 -
342 , 523 - 126, 025-
376,573 - 57,906 

3 , 325,763 - 3,218,873 -

2 1 ,533 - 67,468 -
1,162 - 7,038-
6,996 - 13.004-

3,252 - 848-

18,487- 16.857-
261 ,326- 218,674-

301- 301 
359- 359 

10,950 - 7,050 -

18,522 - 16, 772 
53 - 6,948-

7 , 020 - 13,980-

27, 541 - 22 ,4 59 -
3 , 033- 567 -

11, 166 - 8 ,834-
17, 957 - 1 4 ,043 -
27,260 - 14 , 720 -
30, 981- 26,908 -
70, 063 - 46,92 1 -

Health Fund 
Default Washoe county 
Standard Functi onal Area Hiera 

Ac:t\ 2014 Plan 2014 Actual. 

55 63,177 - 35,201 -
23 7 4 ,690 - 2 1 , 4 80 -
68 13 , 306 - 7,461 -
60 492 , 181- 249,969-
6 7 23,567- 19,474 -

146 3,200- 4,434 -
63 584,012- 296,450 -
62 66,522- 50,902 -
44 99,623- 50,412-
59 35,226- 19 , 620 -
58 1,455,504- 755,403 -
45 5,301,515- l,023, 923 -
54 243,178- 131, 933-
51 741,802- 217 , 518 -
23 2,205- 766 -
73 468,548- 177, 3 16 -

118 300,000- 479 , 375-
51 7,057,248- 2, 830,830-

24 69, 00 0 - 29,432 -
1 4 8 , 200 - 1,678-
35 2 0,00 0 - 9,692 -

79 4 ,100 - 2,846 -

52 35.344 - 20 ,572 -
54 450,000- 261 ,051 -

70 2 -
112 

61 19,994- 11,635-

1 , 058 1,750- 18,880 -
1 7,000- 3,510 -

3 3 21,000- 10,977 -

55 50,707- 29,240 -
84 3,816- 3 , 173-
56 18,765- 11,26 7 -
56 27,000- 19, 789-
65 36,021- 31, 670-
54 65, 272- 17, 730-
60 113,934- 71, 527 -

Paqe: 
Horizontal Page: 

Variation: 

Bal.anc:e Act\ 

2 7 ,976- 56 
53,210- 29 

5,845- 5 6 
242,2 12 - 5 1 

4,093- 8 3 
l,234 1 39 

287 , 562 - 51 
15,620- 77 
49, 211 - 51 
15 , 606 - 56 

700, 10 1- 52 
3 ,477 ' 592 - 34 

111,246 - 54 
524 , 284 - 29 

1 , 4 39- 35 
291, 232- 38 
179,375 160 

4,226,419- 40 

59,568- 33 
6,523- 20 

1 0,308- 46 

1, 254- 69 

14. 772- 58 
188,949- 58 

702 
112-

8 , 34 9 - 5 8 

17,130 l , 0 79 
3,490- 50 

10,023- 52 

21 ,46 7- 58 
64 3- 83 

7 ,498- 60 
7,211 - 73 
4 ,351- 88 

47 , 542- 27 
42 , 407- 63 

1/ 4 
l/ 1 
1/ 112 



Run by: AHEENAN 
:Run date: 02/13/201 5 09:53:34 
Report: 400/ZS16 

Period: 1 thru 7 2015 
Accounts: 00-P- L 
Business Area : 

P&L Accounts 

Accounts 

460528 NESHAP-~ 

460529 Assessments-AQM 
460530 Inspector RA!lgiat:r-AQ 
460531 Dust Plan-Air Quality 
460532 Plan Rvw Hotel /Motel 
460533 Qui.ck Start 
460534 Child Ci:i.ra Inspection 
460535 Pub Acc:om.od Inspectn 
460570 Education Revenue 

- Charges for Services 
483000 Rental Income 
484050 Donations Federal Pgm Income 
484195 Non-Govt'l Grants 
484197 Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect 
485100 Reimbursements 
485121 Jury Rei.mbursements 
485300 Other Misc Govt Rev . Miscellaneous 

** Revenue 
701110 Base Salari.es 
701120 Part Time 
701130 Poo1ed Positions 
701140 Holiday Work 
701150 zoContractual Wages 
701200 Incentive Longevity 
701300 overtime 
701403 Shift Diffarential. 
701406 Standby Pay 
701408 Call. Back 
701412 Salary Adjustment 
701413 Vac Payoff/$ic:lt Pay-Term 
701417 Comp Time 
701419 Comp Time - Transfer 
701500 Merit Awards 

* Salaries and Wages 
705110 Group Insurance 
705210 Retirement 
705215 Retirement Calculation 
705230 Medicare April 1986 
705320 Worlcmena Comp 
705330 Unemply Comp 
705360 Benefit Adjus tment 

* Employee Benefits 

2015 Plan 

99,333-
51,336-
2,162-

142,403-

9,514-
19,000-

1,329,615-

37,550 -
55,988 -
S,125 -

98,663-
9,267,334-
9,207.669 

408,927 
508,176 

4, 319 

155,100 
62,405 

1, 000 
60, 733 

10.408.329 
l,457,971 
2,509,362 

134,717 
67,787 
15,179 
31,202 

4,216,218 

Washoe County 
Plan/Actual Rev- Exp 2-yr (FC} 

Fund: 202 
Flmd Centar : 000 

Functional Area: ooo 

2015 Act\lala Bal.anc:e 

58,037 - 41, 296-
27,342 - 23,994-

855 - 1,307-
74,348 - 68,055-

3,010- 3,010 

5,251 - 3 . 263 -
10,732- 9,268-

717,556 - 612 ,059-
41 - 41 

15,247- 22,303-
55,988-
5,125-

4,446 - 4,446 
90- 90 

1, 4 97- 1,497 
21,322- 77. 341-

4,812,764- 4,454,570-
5,286,296 3,921,374 

240,312 168,614 
221,974 286,202 

2,690 1,629 

8 1 ,672 73 ,428 
32,918 29 ,487 

45 45-

l,000 
60,733 

123,195 123,195-
11, 950 11,950-

6,001,053 4,407,276 
834,347 623 ,624 

1, 413, 958 1,095 ,404 

82,007 52,709 
39,543 28,244 

8,855 6,325 
31,202 

2' 378' 710 1,837,508 

Health Fund 
Default Washoe County 
Standard Fu nctional Area Rier a 

Actt 2014 P1an 20°14 Actual. 

58 135, 389- 48,011 -
53 57,888- 26,350-
40 14,655- 2,113 -
52 187,690- 84,540 -

62 10,560- 4,592 -
56 22,540- 11,286 -

2,900- 882 -
54 1,403,515- 733, 03 2 -

41 37,550 - 21,546-
88,263 - 32,276 -
5,125-

eo-
62,229- 2,515-

22 193,167- 56,418 -
52 10.109,435- 4,375,683 -
57 9,191.190 4,964, 557 
59 565.940 239,826 
44 464,481 253,819 
62 2,819 3,178 

53 165,426 82,244 
53 69,920 33,161 

100-
1, 0 00 

230, 085-
54,118 

3,334 
1,886 

58 10,230,689 5,636,0 22 
57 1,422,035 772, 093 
56 2,515,667 1,346,377 

61 136, 701 75,739 
58 66,992 38,581 
SB 15,375 15, 179 

56 4' 156. 770 2,247,969 

Page: 
Horizontal P<MJ6: 

Variation: 

B&l.ance Act% 

87,378- 35 
31,538- 46 
12,542- 14 

103,150- 45 

5 ,968- 43 
11,254- so 
2,018- 30 

670,483- 52 

16,004- 5.7 
55,987- 37 
5,125-

80 
59,714 - 4 

136' 749- 29 
5,733,752- 43 
4,226,633 54 

326,114 42 
210,661 55 

359- 113 

83, 181 50 
36,759 47 

100 
1,000 

230,085-
54,118-

3,334-
l ,886-

4,594,668 55 
649,942 54 

l,169 ,290 54 

60,962 55 
28,411 58 

196 99 

1,908,801 54 

2/ 4 
l/ 1 
1/ 112 



Run by: AHEENAN 
Run date : 02/13/ 20 15 09 : 53 :34 
Report : 400/ZS16 

Period : l thru 
Accounts : GO - P-L 
Business >.rea: 

7 2015 
P&L Accounts 

Accounts 

710100 Professional Services 
710105 Medical Se:r:-Yices 
710108 MD Consultants 
710110 Contracted/Temp Services 
710119 Subrecipient Payment.a 
710200 Service Contra ct 
710205 Repairs and Maintenance 
710210 Software Maintenance 
710300 Operatinq Supplies 
710302 Small Tools & Allow 
710308 Animal Supplies 
710312 Special Dept Expense 
710319 Chemical Supplies 
710325 Signs and Markers 
710334 Copy Machine Expense 
710350 Office supp:lies 
710355 Books and Subscriptions 
710360 Postaqe 
710361 K~ress and Courier 
710391 Fuel & Lube 
710412 Do Not Use 
710500 Other Expense 
710502 Printing 
710503 Licenses & Permits 
710505 Rental Equipment 
710506 Dept Insurance Deductible 
710507 Network and Data Lines 
710508 Telephone Land Lines 
710509 Seminars and Meetings 
710512 Auto Expense 
710514 Raqul.atory Assessments 
71051 9 Cellular Phone 
710524 Util.ity rel.ocation 
710529 Dues 
710535 Credit card Fees 
71054 6 Advertising 
710551 cash Discounts Lost 
710563 Recruitment 
710577 Uniforms & Special Clothi ng 
710585 Undesignated Budget 
710598 Telaco111111 Charqe-out contra 
710600 LT Lease-Off ice Space 
710620 LT Lease-Equipment 

2015 Plan 

708,286 
9,323 

83,908 
31 , 581 

1 20, 720 
5,538 

15,235 
117,795 

22,685 
1,600 

231,900 

25,885 
58,744 
7,464 

23 ,200 
560 
100 

26,200 
22,322 
6, 331 
1,800 

11,295 
42,878 
4 9' 048 
14,741 
11.920 
1 5 ' 714 

11 ,867 
12, 66 5 

306,250 

12,350 
90,64 2 

109,115 

Washoe County 
Plan/Actual Rev-Bxp 2 -yr (FC) 

Heal th FUnd 
De fault Washoe County 

Fund: 202 
Fund Center: 000 

Functional Area: 000 Standard Functional Area Hiera 

2015 Actuals Balance Act\ 2014 Plan 2014 Actual 

181,53.9 526,747 26 1,211,770 184, 311 
2,547 6,777 27 9,173 3,572 

21,93 1 61,977 2 6 46,950 28,063 
20,066 11,515 64 53,500 31,41 1 

40,257 80,463 33 103,593 44 , 536 
6,710 l, 172 - 121 l l,470 5,951 

15, :no 25 100 15,636 15,530 
44.,930 72,865 38 134,870 5 5,400 

443 22,24 2 2 10,685 473 
92 1,508 6 1,600 583 

300 300 -
231, 827 73 100 232,300 232,070 

15, 458 10,427 60 28,447 14 ,840 
17,332 41,412 30 41,074 17,88 0 

2,208 5,256 30 7,594 4,073 
10,337 12,863 45 24,435 11 , 127 

134 426 24 735 85 
100 100 

16 , 819 9,382 64 24,932 13' 271 
5,908 16,414 26 33,970 9 ,336 
4,945 1,386 78 7,887 3,240 

1,800 1,900 
150 150 - 334 

5 ,400 5,807 49 5,530 6, 108 
2 0,211 22,667 47 42,484 20,442 
12,099 36,950 25 36,065 18,523 
3, 424 11,317 23 19,102 7,041 

13,979 2,059- 117 11,920 5 , 960 
7 ,780 7,934 5 0 15,660 7,650 

4, 161 7,706 3 5 10,756 2,84 0 
8,857 3,808 70 11, 925 5,224 

121,743 184,507 40 47,600 10,628 
240 240 - 41 
301 301 -

l,472 10,878 12 25,500 2,979 
90,642 62,229 

53 ,128 55,987 49 109,115 4 7,170 

Paqe: 
Horizo.ntal Paqe: 

Variation: 

Balance Act\ 

1,027,458 15 
5,601 39 

18,888 60 
22,089 5.9 

59,057 43 
5 ,519 52 

106 99 
79,470 41 
10,212 4 

1,017 36 

230 1 00 

13,607 52 
23, 193 44 

3,521 54 
13. 308 46 

650 1 2 
100 

11 , 661 53 
24,634 27 

4,64 7 41 
1,900 

334 -
578 - 110 

22,042 48 
17,542 51 
12,061 37 

5,960 50 
0,010 49 

7,916 26 
6,701 44 

36,972 22 
41 -

22,52 1 12 
62,229 

61,945 43 

3/ 4 
1/ l 
1/ 112 



Run by: AHEENAN 
Run date: 02/13/2015 0 9:53:34 
Report: 400/ZS16 

Period: 1 th.ru 7 2015 
Accounts : GO-P- L 
Business Area : * 

P&L Accounts 

Accounts 

710703 Bi.ol.oqicals 
710714 :Referral. Services 
710721 Outpatient 
710872 Pood Purchases 
711010 Utilities 
711020 Water/Sewer 
711100 BSD Aaaet Management 
711113 Equip Srv Replace 
711114 Equip Srv 0 & M 
711115 Equip Srv Motor Pool. 
711117 ESD Fuel CharqD 
711119 Prop & Li.ab Billings 
711210 Travel. 
711300 cash over Short 
711399 ProCard in Process 
711400 Overhead - General Fund 
711504 Equipmant nonCapital. 

* Services and Supplies 
781004 Equipment Capital. 
791007 Vehicl.es Capital. 

* Capital Outlay 

** Expenses 
485193 Surplus Supplies Sales 

* Other Fin . Sou rces 
621001 Transfer From General. 

* Transfers In 
818000 Transfer to Intrafund 

* Tra nsf ers out 

** Ot her Financing Src/Ose 

I·*· Total 

2015 Plan 

224.482 

88,786 
4 ,889 

66,526 
27,586 
41,538 
5,000 

48,591 
74,502 

220,668 

2,741,061 
100,626 

5,853,917 
373,694 
25,000 

398,694 
20,877,158 

10,000,192-
l.0,000,192-

10,000, 192-

I 1 ,609,632 

Wash oe County 
Plan/Actual Rev-Exp 2-yr (FC) 

Health Fund 
Default Washoe County 

Fund: 202 
Fund Center: 000 

Functional. Area: 000 Standard FUnctional Area Hiera 

2015 Actuals Bal.anoe Act• 2014 Plan 2014 Actual 

127,166 97, 316 57 246,791 125,112 
l. , 356 l.,356- 6,328 

35,657 53,129 40 93,093 37,055 
1,368 3,520 28 10,176 344 

180 

37,825 28,701 57 47,436 28,944 
15,763 11,823 57 27,084 16, 104 
25, 924 15,614 62 46,869 25' 779 

5,000 16,741 
29,04.1 19 , 550 60 55,492 26. 148 
43,460 31,042 58 74,502 43,460 
46,069 174,599 21 269,811 40,768 

20- 20 20 
690 690-

1,598,952 1,142,109 58 2,896,034 1,690, 520 
46,454 54' 172 46 135,712 73' 979 

2,901,729 2,952,188 so 6,.328, 754 2,918,925 
25,452 348,242 7 332,748 66,468 

25,000 100,000 
25,452 373,242 6 432,748 66,468 

11,306,944 9, 570,214 54 21,148,962 10,869,384 
653 -
653-

4,271 ,747- 5,728 ,445- 43 8,603,891- 4 ,301,946 -
4,271",747- S,728,445- 43 8,603,891- 4,301,946-

4,271,74 7 - S,728,445- 1 43 8,603,991- 4,302,598 -

2,222,434 I 612,802- 138 2,4 35, 636 2,191,103 

Page: 
aorizon tal Page : 

Variation: 

Bal.ance 11ct• I 
121,679 51 I 

6,328 
56,037 40 

9,831 3 
180 

18,492 61 
10,980 59 
2 1,090 55 
16 ,741 
29,344 47 
31 ,042 58 

229,043 15 
20-

1,207,514 58 
61,733 55 

3,409,829 46 
266,280 20 
100,000 
366,260 15 

10,279, 578 51 
653 
653 

4 ,301,945- 50 
4 ,301,945 - 50 

4 ,301 ,293- 50 I 
244, 533 90 I 

4/ 4 
1/ 1 
1/ 112 



STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: February 26, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

THROUGH: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Approval of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget 

SUMMARY 

Presented in this staff report is the Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  The budget 
includes the anticipated revenues and expenditures for twenty-two programs within the Health 
District with 150.01 full-time equivalents (FTEs) authorized to provide the services.  The total 
revenue is projected to be $19,348,167 for an increase over fiscal year 2015 (FY15) of 2.4%.  Total 
expenditures projected for FY16 is $19,989,285 which is a 2.8% increase over FY15.  It is 
anticipated that FY15 will have an ending fund balance of $810,528 of which $641,118 will be 
used for FY16 to cover the gap between revenues and expenditures.  

Included in the FY16 Recommended budget: 

• The existing authorized positions of 150.01 FTEs with no additional staff being
requested.

• A full year of the 1% salary adjustment that took effect January 1, 2015.
• Increase in the Retirement contribution (PERS) from 25.75% to 28.00%.
• Cost adjustments (plus/minus) where necessary for existing contractual obligations

that required adjustments.
• 12.6% increase, $23,285, for fleet operation billings from the County to be offset

with anticipated savings from the results of a Quality Improvement project in FY16
to lower costs for FY17.

• 2% increase, $54,821, for County indirect cost allocations.
• County General Fund transfer for FY16 of $10,076,856.

Not included in the budget but will be added in prior to the budget being delivered to the 
Department of Taxation is the adjustments to the Risk Management billings (workmen’s 
compensation, unemployment insurance and property and liability insurance).  If increases take 
place in these billings it is anticipated that the additional funding will be absorbed in the existing 
recommended budget. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us
mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 2 of 10 

BACKGROUND 

Mission 
The Washoe County Health District 
protects and enhances the physical 
well-being and quality of life for all 
citizens of Washoe County by 
providing health promotion, disease 
prevention, public health emergency 
preparedness and environmental 
services. 

2012-2015 Strategic Plan 
• Demonstrate the value and contribution of

public health
• Strengthen Countywide infrastructure to

improve public health
• Secure and deploy resources for sustainable

impact
• Strengthen Washoe County Health District as

an innovative, high-performing organization
• Achieve targeted improvements in health

outcomes and health equity

Health District Accomplishments 
• Completing a Fundamental Review of the Health District and embarking upon

implementation of the recommendations contained in the review.
• Received the EPA Clean Air Excellence Award-Gregg Cooke Visionary Program for

the Keep it Clean Campaign.
• Improved daily reporting of air quality conditions in response to the King Fire utilizing

Social Media (Facebook & Twitter) in addition to EPA’s EnviroFlash tool.
• Moved the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) program to Community and Clinical

Health Services to coordinate broader service delivery to our clients.
• Expanding access to on-site services for vital records and immunizations (IZ) to 5 days

per week, and offering evening hours for IZ.
• Moving forward with the cities and county through a formalized interlocal agreement to

develop a new regional Internet platform for permitting and inspection activities.
• Negotiating an amended and restated franchise agreement with REMSA that improves

our oversight capabilities and eliminates the controversial “evergreen” clause.
• Established a new Regional Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Oversight Program

through an interlocal agreement with the cities, county and the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District.

• Worked collaboratively with Renown Health and other regional partners to develop a
Community Health Needs Assessment and planned the Truckee Meadows Healthy
Communities Conference held on January 8th.

• Improving time-accounting practices to begin program analysis and assessment.
• Expanding our quality improvement knowledge and capabilities and gaining experience

through the Quality Improvement Team (Q-Team) and project implementation.
• Continued to build our public health preparedness by working with other organizations

in the community to assist with points of dispensing (PODs) for distribution of
medicine in the event of pandemics or bioterrorism attacks.

• Responding to the West African Ebola Outbreak by developing a local response plan
and monitoring travelers.

• Ensuring public health protection to residents and visitors attending the region’s
numerous special events.



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 3 of 10 

Interlocal Agreement establishing the Washoe County Health District 

As outlined in the Health District Interlocal agreement the Washoe County Health District is a 
Special Revenue Fund within the books of Washoe County.  The Special Revenue Funds account 
for revenue sources which are legally restricted for specified purposes.  All revenues and 
expenditures associated with the health function of the Washoe County Health District are 
accounted and budgeted for within the Health Fund. 

The Interlocal Agreement concerning the Washoe County Health District requires the Board of 
County Commissioners to adopt a final budget for the Health District, which must be prepared 
using the same time frames and format used by other County Departments. 

The Division Directors and Program staff met with Administration to review projected revenues 
and expenditures for the remainder of the Fiscal Year 2015 and to identify budget requests for 
Fiscal year 2016.  The proposed budget reflects the discussion of the Program Manager’s, Division 
Director’s and direction by the District Health Officer. 

The Interlocal Agreement requires a preliminary budget be transmitted to the Managers of the City 
of Reno, City of Sparks and Washoe County for their review and comment.  The meeting with the 
Managers will be held on Thursday March 5, 2015.  The District Health Officer will present the 
Managers’ comments to the District Board of Health at the regularly scheduled meeting in March, 
2015. 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY16) Recommended Budget  

The FY16 recommended budget includes anticipated revenues and expenditures for 22 programs as 
outlined below.   

Washoe County Health District Programs 

Office of the District Health Officer 

Administrative Health Services 

Air Quality Management 

Community and Clinical Health Services 
Chronic Disease Prevention 
Community & Clinical Health Services 
Family Planning  
Immunizations 
Maternal, Child & Adolescent Health 
Sexual Health – HIV 
Sexual Health – STD 
Tuberculosis 
Women, Infants and Children 

Environmental Health Services 
Environmental Health Services 
Food Protection 
Safe Drinking Water 
Solid Waste Management 
Underground Storage Tanks 
Vector Borne Diseases 

Epidemiology and Public Health 
Preparedness 

Emergency Medical Services 
Epidemiology Surveillance 
Public Health Preparedness 
Vital Statistics 



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 4 of 10 

The five Divisions and the Office of the District Health Officer budgets are summarized below.  
The details of the twenty-two program budgets within the Divisions are located in Appendix A.  
A summary report by revenue category and total expenditures is found in Appendix B.  The 
budgeted FTE history and classifications are in Appendix C and the organization charts are 
found in Appendix D. 

Office of the District Health Officer 

Chapter 439 of the Nevada Revised Statutes prescribes the organization and functions of the 
Health District.  The Health District operates through five divisions and the Office of the District 
Health Officer.  

Total program Full-time equivalents:  4.0 
Total FY 2016 Program Revenues:  $0 
Total FY 2016 Program Expenditures: $558,908 

Administrative Health Services Division 

Administrative Health Services Division provides administrative guidance and oversight for 
financial activities, risk management, purchasing, human resources, facilities management, and 
information technology for the District.   

Total program Full-time equivalents:  10.0 
Total FY 2016 Program Revenues:  $0 
Total FY 2016 Program Expenditures: $1,034,019 

Air Quality Management Division 

The Air Quality Management Division implements clean air solutions that protect the quality of 
life for the citizens of Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County through community partnerships along 
with programs and services such as air monitoring, permitting and enforcement, planning, and 
public education. 

Total program Full-time equivalents:  18.00 
Total FY 2016 Division Revenues:  $2,253,177 
Total FY 2016 Division Expenditures: $2,710,807 



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 5 of 10 

Community & Clinical Health Services Division 

Community and Clinical Health Services Division (CCHS) focuses on disease prevention, 
community and individual education and wellness, and partners with other community 
organizations and health care providers to improve the health of our community.  

Total program Full-time equivalents:  54.76 
Total FY 2016 Division Revenues:  $3,480,526 
Total FY 2016 Division Expenditures: $7,141,915 

Environmental Health Services Division 

The Environmental Health Services Division (EHS) enforces sanitation standards in regulated 
facilities, monitors potable water quality, performs mosquito and vector-borne disease control, 
assures that local solid waste management conforms to Local, State and Federal Laws, and 
maintains a high state of preparedness to respond to public health threats including releases of 
hazardous materials.  

Total program Full-time equivalents:  43.70 
Total FY 2016 Division Revenues:  $1,937,876 
Total FY 2016 Division Expenditures: $6,060,792 

Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 

The Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness Division (EPHP) conducts surveillance on 
reportable diseases and conditions, analyzes communicable and chronic disease data to identify 
risk factors and disease control strategies, investigates disease outbreaks, serves as the local 
registrar for births and deaths, and develops departmental capabilities for response to biological 
terrorism and other public health emergencies, and the Emergency Medical Services Programs.  

Total program Full-time equivalents:  19.55 
Total FY 2016 Division Revenues:  $1,599,732 
Total FY 2016 Division Expenditures: $2,482,844 



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 6 of 10 

Total Health Fund revenues are projected to be $19,348,167 and the expenditures are budgeted at 
$19,989,285 which is a $641,118 structural deficit that will be funded with savings from this 
fiscal year and have been anticipated in the estimated year-end financials.   The total full-time 
equivalents (FTEs) for the Health District are budgeted at 150.01, which is the existing 
authorized staffing level.  No additional positions are being requested for FY16. 

The $19.3 million in revenues is a 2.4% increase over FY15 and includes: 

• Licenses and Permits - $1,372,583, up 6%, over fiscal year 2015 adopted
budget

 Includes the $100,000 anticipated revenue for the new fees being
work shopped in February and will return to the Board in April for
possible adoption

• Grants - $5,460,898, up 1.3%

 No new grant funding is anticipated

• Tire Fees and Pollution Control revenue - $1,018,548, up 29.4%, increase is
due to restricted excess reserves from the DMV that were not previously budgeted
in the adopted budget for FY15 and have now been included in FY16 budget

• Charges for services - $1,332,827, up 0.2%

• Miscellaneous Revenue - $86,455, down 12.4%

• County General Fund Support - $10,076,856, no additional transfer anticipated

% of Total 
Revenue

Birth&Death Certificates 470,000$     2.4%
Dust Plan 142,403       0.7%
Federal & State Grants 5,193,471     26.8%
Federal & State Indirect 267,427       1.4%
General Fund Support 10,076,856   52.1%
Licenses and Permits 1,372,583     7.1%
Miscellaneous 86,455         0.4%
Other Charges for Services 720,424       3.7%
Pollution Control 550,000       2.8%
Tire Fees 468,548       2.4%
Total Revenue 19,348,167$ 100.0%

FY16 Budgeted Revenue

Licenses and 
Permits,  

$1,372,583 , 7%

Federal & State 
Grants,  

$5,193,471 , 27%

Federal & State 
Indirect,  

$267,427 , 1%

Tire Fees,  
$468,548 , 2%

Pollution 
Control,  

$550,000 , 3%
Dust Plan,  

$142,403 , 1%

Birth&Death 
Certificates,  

$470,000 , 2%

Other Charges 
for Services,  

$720,424 , 4%

General Fund 
Support,  

$10,076,856 , 
52%

Miscellaneous,  
$86,455 , 1%

Washoe County Health District
FY16 Budgeted Revenue



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 7 of 10 

Total budget expenditures are $19,989,285 which is a 2.8% increase over FY15 and includes: 

• Salaries and Wages - $10,415,954, up 1.1%, over FY15 adopted budget
 150.01 FTEs up from 149.83 in FY15 due to adjustments in the

intermittent hourly & seasonal staff funding available for FY16
 Includes merit increases for those not at the top of the pay range

• Employee Benefits - $4,492,931, up 7.1%
 Assumes no increase in group insurance
 Retirement up from 25.75% to 28.00%

• Services and Supplies - $4,980,353, up 2.1%, $100,722, largest dollar
increases

 Operating Supplies - $23,295, up 22.8%, from grant funding
 Advertising - $58,117, up 49.6%, from grant funding
 Fleet Operations - $23,285, up 12.6% due to County billings
 County Overhead - $54,821, up 2%
 Miscellaneous accounts down $58,796, 3.4%

• Capital - $100,047, up 49.2%
 Equipment for Air Monitoring and Electronic Health Records

The budgeted FTEs are for the existing authorized FTEs of 150.0.  The detail for the FTE 
classifications can be found in Appendix C.  The Washoe County Health District FTEs per 100,000 
population is at 33.7 a decline of 33% since fiscal year 2007. 

% of Total 
Exp.

Salaries & Wages 10,415,954$ 52.1%
Employee Benefits 4,492,931     22.5%
GF Overhead costs 2,795,882     14.0%
Biologicals 225,961       1.1%
Chemical Supplies 231,500       1.2%
Contract/ Professional Srvs 396,852       2.0%
Cost of District Fleet 197,849       1.0%
Other Services & Supplies 1,132,309     5.7%
Capital 100,047       0.5%
Total Expenditures 19,989,285$ 100.0%

FY16 Budgeted Expenditures

Salaries & Wages,  
$10,415,954 , 52%

Employee 
Benefits,  

$4,492,931 , 22%

Capital,  
$100,047 , 1%

Contract/ 
Professional Srvs,  

$396,852 , 2%

Cost of District 
Fleet,  $197,849 , 

1%

Chemical 
Supplies,  

$231,500 , 1%

Biologicals,  
$225,961 , 1%

Other Services & 
Supplies,  

$1,132,309 , 6%
GF Overhead 

costs,  $2,795,882 , 
14%

Washoe County Health District
FY16 Budgeted Expenditures

 -

 10.0

 20.0

 30.0

 40.0

 50.0

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16

49.9 49.1 46.2 45.7 
39.5 38.7 36.3 34.2 34.0 33.7 

Washoe County Health District 
FTEs per 100,000 population

Decline of 33% since 
Fiscal Year 2007



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 8 of 10 

With calculating in the opening fund balance for FY15 of $2,155,799 (detail in Appendix E) and 
combining the anticipated resources and uses for both fiscal year 2015 and 2016 the ending fund 
balance for FY15 is projected to be $810,528 that will be available for the budget in FY16.  The 
total resources and expenditures for FY16 are generating a fund balance of $169,410.  The detail of 
the sources and uses are as follows: 

ETC Recommended

FUND SUMMARY:
 FY 2010-

2011 
 FY 2011-

2012 
 FY 2012-

2013 
 FY 2013-

2014 
 FY 2014-

2015  
 FY 2015-

2016 

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Opening Fund Balance 3,194,988      3,745,034   3,916,042    2,811,464    2,155,799    810,528 
Revenue:
Licenses and Permits 1,042,434      984,267 1,179,756    1,406,086    1,310,833    1,372,583    
Federal & State Grants 5,944,967      5,968,145   5,772,186    5,795,912    5,670,868    5,460,898    
Tire Fees 450,911        513,800 432,642       314,136       468,548       468,548 
Pollution Control (Note (1)) 306,945        313,965 314,903       634,731       618,667       550,000 
Birth & Death Certificates 359,725        439,910 476,829       457,596       465,000       470,000 
Other Charges for Services 928,440        825,839 837,422       881,963       812,881       862,827 
Miscellaneous 44,676          52,432       73,204 172,819       47,344 86,455        
Total Revenue 9,078,098      9,098,358   9,086,942    9,663,243    9,394,141    9,271,311    

Total General Fund transfer 8,192,500      7,250,850   8,623,891    8,603,891    10,000,192  10,076,856  
Total Sources of Funds 20,465,586    20,094,242 21,626,875  21,078,599  21,550,132  20,158,695  

USES OF FUNDS:
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages 10,502,906    9,861,088   9,803,867    9,591,107    10,229,748  10,415,954  
Employee Benefits 3,749,582      3,745,285   3,794,135    3,829,396    4,135,517    4,492,931    
Contract/Professional Srvs 614,224        557,610 713,360       809,059       641,657       396,852 
Chemical Supplies 321,497        265,304 231,490       231,398       231,437       231,500 
Biologicals 130,575        180,620 226,789       247,975       214,322       225,961 
Cost of District Fleet 164,958        176,543 136,051       161,263       190,241       197,849 
Other Services and Supplies 1,151,440      1,075,820   1,143,722    1,007,779    2,248,911    1,132,309    
GF Overhead costs - - 2,553,372    2,898,034    2,741,062    2,795,882    
Capital 85,369          315,930 212,624       146,788       106,709       100,047 
Total Uses of Funds 16,720,552    16,178,200 18,815,411  18,922,800  20,739,604  19,989,285  

Ending Fund Balance (FB) 3,745,034     3,916,042 2,811,464    2,155,799    810,528 169,410 
FB as a percent of Uses of Funds 22.4% 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 3.9% 0.8%

Actual

Note: (1) Pollution Control funding increase from FY13 to FY14 is due to a shift from the revenue being reported
as a grant to reporting as a separate restricted source of revenue.



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 9 of 10 

Three year projection 

In December, 2014, staff reported to the Board that the ending fund balance for FY17 is projected to 
be $780,256; with the recommendations for the FY16 budget and the assumptions noted below the 
revised projection for FY17 ending fund balance is down to a negative $249,146 (see projections 
below) closing the gap by $531,110.  The assumptions used for the projections include: 

1) Assumes a greater cost recovery approach for licenses and permits.
2) Growth in salaries and benefits of 5.5% due to merit increases, medical insurance (FY17-

19), and cost of retirements due to accumulated vacation and sick leave payouts.
3) Anticipated reduction in fleet operations as a result of a Quality Improvement project that

will focus on reducing the cost of the fleet operations.
4) Assumes grant reimbursement is flat and expenditures will be adjusted to match the grant

award amount with no transfer of costs to the local dollars.

FY16 has an ending fund balance of $169,410 which is sufficient going into the fiscal year; the 
anticipated negative $249,146 ending fund balance projected for FY17 will be evaluated during 
FY16 as we complete projects from the Fundamental Review that can lead to efficiencies in the 
operations allowing for reduction in expenditures and growth in revenues where appropriate. 

ETC Recommended

FUND SUMMARY:
 FY 2014-

2015  
 FY 2015-

2016 
 FY 2016-

2017 
 FY 2017-

2018 
 FY 2018-

2019 

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Opening Fund Balance 2,155,799    810,528 169,410       (249,146) (986,974) 
Revenue:
Licenses and Permits 1,310,833    1,372,583    1,747,785    1,865,074    1,990,235    
Federal & State Grants 5,670,868    5,460,898    5,474,557    5,474,557    5,474,557    
Tire Fees 468,548       468,548 468,548       468,548       468,548       
Pollution Control (Note (1)) 618,667       550,000 555,500       561,055       572,276       
Birth & Death Certificates 465,000       470,000 474,700       479,447       484,241       
Other Charges for Services 812,881       862,827 862,827       862,827       862,827       
Miscellaneous 47,344 86,455        86,996 88,226 88,730 
Total Revenue 9,394,141    9,271,311    9,670,913    9,799,734    9,941,414    

Total General Fund transfer 10,000,192  10,076,856  10,076,856  10,076,856  10,076,856  
Total Sources of Funds 21,550,132  20,158,695  19,917,179  19,627,444  19,031,296  

USES OF FUNDS:
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages 10,229,748  10,415,954  10,487,708  10,566,253  10,659,354  
Employee Benefits 4,135,517    4,492,931    4,594,224    4,903,589    4,970,751    
Contract/Professional Srvs 641,657       396,852 396,852       396,852       396,852       
Chemical Supplies 231,437       231,500 231,500       231,500       231,500       
Biologicals 214,322       225,961 225,961       225,961       225,961       
Cost of District Fleet 190,241       197,849 178,064       188,652       195,255       
Other Services and Supplies 2,248,911    1,132,309    1,128,500    1,119,625    1,116,021    
GF Overhead costs 2,741,062    2,795,882    2,851,800    2,908,836    2,967,012    
Capital 106,709       100,047 71,715 73,149 74,612 
Total Uses of Funds 20,739,604  19,989,285  20,166,324  20,614,418  20,837,319  

Ending Fund Balance (FB) 810,528 169,410 (249,146)     (986,974)     (1,806,023)  
FB as a percent of Uses of Funds 3.9% 0.8% -1.2% -4.8% -8.7%

Projected



February 26, 2015 
DBOH Budget Approval for FY 2016 
Page 10 of 10 

External Challenges not included in FY16 Recommended Budget 
Many budgeting challenges are pending.  Several due to external issues: cost to implement medical 
marijuana regulations; Affordable Care Act; and impacts of the Legislative Session.  Adjustments 
that will be done by the County, given that the Health District budget is part of the overall budget 
for the County, include adjustments for the workers compensation insurance, unemployment 
insurance, property and liability insurance, group health insurance and any labor negotiation 
adjustments.   

Next Steps 

• February, 2015
 Recommended FY16 Budget due to the County

• March, 2015
 District Health Officer delivers FY16 budget to County and City Managers
 DBOH update on the Managers meeting for FY16 Budget

• April, 2015
 If required, budget presentation to the Board of County Commissioners(BCC)

• May, 2015
 May 12, BCC meeting, Manager’s recommendations for FY16 budget,

General Fund support should be finalized
 May 18, BCC Public Hearing and possible adoption of the FY16 Budget

• June, 2015
 June 2, Final Budget due to the Department of Taxation

FISCAL IMPACT 

Approval of the proposed FY16 recommended budget will provide a budget for $19,348,167 in 
revenue and an additional $810,528 in fund balance anticipated in FY15 to appropriate a total of 
$19,989,285 for the costs to provide the Health District services to the community.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Move to 
approve the Washoe County Health District Fiscal Year 2016 budget as outlined by staff.” 

Should the Board amend staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Move to approve 
the Washoe County Health District Fiscal 2016 budget as outlined by staff with the following 
adjustments………” 

Attachments: Appendix A - History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget & Projections to FY19 
Appendix B FY16 Recommended Budget 
Appendix C History of Budgeted Full-time equivalents (FTEs) 
Appendix D Organization Charts 
Appendix E Components of Fund Balance 



Appendix A 
Washoe County Health Disti·ict Fund 

History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FY19 

Table of Contents 

Division Program 

Health District Fund Summary 
ADMINISTRATION 

Office of the District Health Officer 

Administrative Health Services Division 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
Air Quality Division 

COMMUNITY & CLINICAL HEAL TH SERVICES DIVISION 
Chronic Disease Prevention 

Community & Clincal Health 

Family Planning 

Immunizations 

Maternal, Child, & Adolescent Health 

Sexual Health - HIV 

Sexual Health - STD 

Tuberculosis 

Women, Infants and Children 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 
Environmental Health Services 

Food Protection 

Safe Drinking Water 

Solid Waste Management 

Underground Storage Tanks 

Vector Borne Diseases 

EPIDEMIOLOGY & PUBLIC HEAL TH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION 

Emergency Medical Services 

Epidemiology Surveillance 

Public Health Preparedness 

Vital Statistics 

Appendix A_ I 
Page 

Number 

2 
2 

3 

4 
4 

5 
5 
6 

6 

7 
7 
8 

9 
9 
10 

10 
1 t 
t l 

13 
13 
14 
15 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current .t:stimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FYI 9 

r""~~~~~~~~-i~::::::::::::::~A~c~tu~ru~::::::::::::::::l1 •J,~!!!J!~!!{lrllliii'~~ 1~ 
l'Y :.:urn- llY l.Ull· l' Y :.:ul2- J''Y :.:oil · l'Y :ZOl4· ~i.rn.-• .,.. + .... ""r":zl'lio~ll 6-jli 

ed 
l'Y ZU17-

2018 
l'Y :ZOlll• 

2019 201 l 2012 2013 2014 201S 2016 2017 
FUND SUMMARY: 
SOURCES OF FUNDS: 
OpcnJ_ng Fund Balance 
Revenue: 
Licenses and l'em1its 
J:<edernl & State Grants ---
Federal & Stale Jntlirect Rev. 

I• --
3,194,988 3, 745,034 

-- -- 1·:042,454 - 984,267 
5}i68-;i59 5,861 ,928 

-- 76,808--106,217 

Tire foes 450,911 - 513,800 
Pollution Control (NN.54451.l.830) 306,~ 313,965 

--

3,916,042 2,811,464 

1,179,756- l ,406,086 
5,630,il 7 ->-5,438,048 

- 142,069 357,86 4 
432,642 3J4,136 
314,903 >- 634,731 

Dust Plan 1~680 14 1,672 
Birth & Dealh ~rtificatcs 359,725 439,910 -

12~364 147,678 
476,829 457,596 

0 ther C'liargc.s for Services - - 786;760 684,167 
Miscellaneous ,_ 44,676 52,432 
Total Revenue 

General Pund (GF) transfer
Operating 

-

Gl:i lransfer Overhead Subsidy 
Total General Fund transfor 

Total Sources of Funds 

USES OF FUNDS: 
E!9_lcndUures: -
Salaries & Wages 
!'!~ennittent Hourly Positions 
Group Insurance 
Retirem'ent 
Other Employee Benefits 
Contract/l'roft:ssional Srvs 
Chemical Supplies (Vector only) -

Biolog~als -
Fleet Ma~gernent billings 
Outpatient 
Propert}'._ & Liability billings 
Other Services and Supplies 
GF Overhead costs 
caPltal 
Total Expenditures 

Endin11: Fund Balonce (FB) 

FR as ~crccnt ofUse3 of Funds 

9,078.098 9,098,358 

-- I-

lh192,500 - 7,250,850 
. -

8,192,500 7,250,850 

20.465,586 I 20.094.242 

- I 
10,120, 151 9,525,698 

382,755 - 335,390 
I ,406,215 ~1334:706 
2, 116,730 2,205,442 

- 226,638 205, 137 
61 4,224 557,610 
321,497 

~ 

265}04 

-- 130,575_ 180,620 
164,958 176,543 

_!_02,101 90,911 ,_ 
71,512 77,036 

977,827 907,873 
- ----

85,369 315,930 
16,720,552 I 6, 178,200 

3,745,034 3,916,042 

22.4% 24.2'Y• 

7 14,058 - 734,285 
13:2o4- - 172,819 

9,086, 942 9,663,243 

--·--

6,623,891 6,853,891 
·2.000~60o- 1,750,000 
8,623,891 I 8,603.891 

21.626.875 I 21.078,599 

-

--- -
9,458,93_'.?_ 9,169,680 

344,928 421,427 --
1,336,381 _1,307,483 
2,189.491 2,310,772 

268,263 __ 211,142 
713,360 __!09,059 
231,490 231 ,398 
226,789 247,975 
136,051 -~1,263 --
85,6JO __ 7_9,036 -
80,283 74,502 

977,769 854,241 
2,553,372 _,__ _ 2,898,034 

212,624 146,788 
18,815.411 18,922,800 

I 
2,8 11.464 2,155,799 

14.9~ 11.4% 

_,_ 

2,155,799 - 810,5~ - 169.410- -(249,14_<~1(986,974) 

1,3 10,833 1,372,583 
5,~_1 ~55~ 2 ,193,41.L 

257,3 16 267,427 
468,548 -- 468,548 
6 18,667 __ 550,000 
133.~7 142,403 
465,000 470,000 _ 

1,747,785 ~,074 - !_i990,235 
5,193,471 5,193,471 5,193,471 

281 ,085 281,085 f-0281,085 
468,548 468,548 468.548 
555,500 56J,Os5,__ 572,276 
142,403 142,403 142,403 
474,700 -479,447 484,241 

679,554 - 130,424 -- 720,424 720,424--720,424 
86,996 --8-8,226 - 88,730 47,344 86,455 

9,394,141 9,27 1,311 9.670.913 9,799,734 9,941.414 

-
7,666,420 _1743,084 7,743,084 ~ 2.14_3,~08_4_,_~7 ,_743,084 
2,333.772 2,333,772 2,333,772 2,333,772 2,333,772 

10,000, 192 10,076,856 10.076,856 I 0,076,856 10,076,856 

2 1,550, 132 20.158,695 19,917,179 19,627 444 J 19,031,296 

_ ,_ --

lo)53.~s2 J0,346,553 9,892,309 10, 103, 153 10, 174,907 
337,439 -m,801 312,801 3~,801_ 3.1..?.801 

1,450,926 _1 ,486,749 1,523,694 l,561,563 _ J,600,378 ---
2,463,786 2,?85,9?9 2,849,44'7 3,120,944 3,149,290 

220,805 _ _ 1_21 i0~3 - 221,083 221 ,083 - 221,083 
641 ,657 32_6,852 396,852 396,852_ - 396,852 
231 ,437 23 1,500 231,500 231,50Q_ 231,500 
214,322 ~961 225,961 225,961 225,961 
190,241 197,84~ 178,064 ,_ 188,652 --- ~255 

81,564 __ 91,582 91,582 91,582 -·- 91,582 --
74,502 74,502 74,50~ 74,502 - .J4,502 

2,092,845 966,225 962,416 953,541 __ 949..!937 
2,741 ,062 2,795,882 - 2,851,800 2,908,836 2,967,012 --

106,709 100,047 71,715 73,149 74,612 
20,739,604 19,989,285 20,166.324 20,614.418 20,837.3 19 

810,528 169.410 (249.146' (986,974' ( 1,806,023) 

3.?% 0.8% -1.2% -4.8% -8.7'Y• -

Appendix A Page I of 14 H:\Mv Docum•nts\Speclal ProJeets\F<>rec••t•\Feb 2015 Health Di!trict 3 Year Foreca;t.•ls 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, F\'16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FY19 

Actual 
llY .:uI0-

2011 
r I'. ~u 11- .. '"''" J;- r T :i:uJJ.. 

2012 2013 2014 

-I Expenditures by Div ision: 
ADMINISTRATION: -·I 
O(lice oftl1e District Hea/111 Offlcer roeen"" Jwlr J, 101<1J 
Expenditures: ___ _ 

Salaries & Wage-; - ~ ,__ ----+----~ ,_ --
-·----~--Group fm1uraoce 

Retirement 
- - --- - -+-----·- -----

Other Employee Benefits _ __ ----:.1--
Contract/Professional Srvs - - - -

ETC BRSC Pro Jeered 
I! I :ZOJ4• l' "I ~Ut:t- I' I ~UtG- J1 T J;U H • ll'Y :.i:UUI· 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

-
~,--1--

298,185 41 1,51 I '415,626 419,782 423,980 
3Q_.795 = 31,375 - _ 3~.159 32,963 - 33,1_87 
2?.80±_ _ __!_8,024 93,375 104,809 106,088 
~.~44_ - _ 4,507 4,507 --4,507- - 4,507 

- -------- --- 15,000 - 13,196 13,l~ .___l1,196 13J 96 
Property & Liability billings _____ - _, - -
Other Services and Supp_h_'es_-+-- __ :_ __ 
GF Overhead costs 

-- t--- - ~-

7,528 __ 1_0~,2_95_ 10,295 10,292_ 10,295 

--- - -f- --

Capital 
Sub-total ExpenditureH 431,556 558,908 569,159 585,553 591,853 

lftlm/11/sti·atlve Healllt Se1·vlces Dlvisiim _, ____ , ___ _ Revenue: ~ 
Other Chnrg_es for Services _ __- --1-

--- ____ , _____ , __ 

8 
M iscel laneous 
Sub-total Revenue 

_,__ 
Expenditures: _ -1-----

Salaries & Wages _ __ 8~2,962 816,336 
Group Insurance _ 108,063 _ _2,2,965 
Retirement _ 184,951 192~29 

Other Employee Benefits _ 20,453 18,765 
Contract/Professional Srvs 3,405 30,575 
Pleet Management bill ings - --=-:::- -- __ 1,684 
Pro_perty & Liability billings 5,772 7,005 
Other Services and Supplie.!_ _ _ _]_"7,029 ,__ 42,97'C 
GF Overhead costs - --- -- -
CaoitnJ -
Suh-tntal Expenditures 1,242,635 1,202.329 

---·- . 

5 
33,448 
33,453 

.. 
827,959 ----· 

91,261 

... 187,127 
74,403 
80,786 

-
6,383 

37,487 
61,135 

. 
1.366.542 I 

87,930 
87,930 

-
792,486 

87,983 
200,852 

17,590 
115,940 

. 
5,772 

27,301 
88,816 

. 
1,336,740 

-4l ______ _ ----
41 

707,960 642,611 649,037 
-~~.778_ ~ 87,324 ~ 89,507 '-
161,591 ~,3.i!_ 181,730 

17,077 - ___! 6,1 81 16.181 
_!Q,000 - -

. - ---- - ----
5,771__ _ 5,772 5,772 

45,304 24,335 24,335 
77,892._ __ 79,455 - 81,044 -- - -

1,110,379 1,034,019 1,047,607 I 

655,527 - 6.62.083 
91,745 94,038 

I 99,586 201,582 
16, 18l - 16,181 

-
5,772:_ 

24,335 
82,665 

-
1,075,811 

5,772 

~.335 
84,318 

1,088,309 

Revenue Less Expenditures (I ,242,635) (1 ,202,321) ( 1,333,089) (1,248,810' 0 ,110,338) (1,034,019) (l ,(}4 7 ,607) ( 1,075.811 l (1,088.309' 

I I 

Appendix A Page 2 of 14 H:\Mv 0e<;Umenta\Specil,I ProjecU\f0<eca•h\Feb 2015 tieahh Dlstrt<l 3 Year Foreca.l xl• 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FV16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FY19 

Actlulf E'JlC BR;se P-rolected 
11'¥ ~010. l''l' 'Zu.J J'- .. y, .t.U.• ili" rt' LU l J- lf l' .t1u ,14- r .r :1.u ,1<::1- l"l' .:CUii'()• 111Y .:un· l''l'1< ~0113. 

2011 1012 20'1'3 ~014 2015 2-016 20,117 2018 2019 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DlVISION I I -· ' I I 
Air Qualif'C. Di1Jisio11 ' 
Revenue: - ~ -- - ------- ---
Licenses and Permits 364,998 _336,46~ 456~30 532,135 506,086 477,443 -611 ,380 652,408_ - 696,189 
Federal & Stute Grants 801,706 914,623 -~,875 __ 832,542 - 826,650 711 ,003 _-1!...) ,003 -· 711 ,Q03 711 ,003 -- - - --"-
Federal & State Indirect Rev. - 26,9~ _ 22,844 ~ _?:7~09 ~ 63,334 31 ,542 31,542 ___ 31,542 - 31,542 31,542 
Pollution Control (NRS44S0.830)_ 306,945 ~ _3 13,9~_ ] _14,903 - 634,731 618,667 550,000 _ J55,_5_QQ_ _ 561,055 572,276 -- -
Dust Plan 141,680 141,672 123,36~ 147,678 - 133,327 142,403 - J_4_2,~~ 142,403 142,40~ -- i-- -- ~--- -
Other Cha.!.1$e..:'._ for Services - 215,619 236,353 - ~54,802 280,536 - 316,850 340,786 ]40,7~ 340,786 - 340,786 
M isccllaneous 56 573 15 80 156 - - - -
Sub-total Revenue 1.857,926 1,966,492 1 2,068,697 2,491 ,036 2,433,278 2,253,177 2,392,614 2,439,197 2,494,199 

- -- ---- ---- - --- - --- - - --
~~cndit~cs: - --'- - ---- -- -- - --Salaries & Wages 1,350,132 - !._171_2~1 ~24lY23 - 1,239,932 - 1,331,704_ l,400,640 1,414,6~ I- 1,428,7~ - 1,443,081 
lntennittcnt Hourly Positio~ ~,421 - 10,32_8 2 ,421 6,449 8,032 - - '---- --- ----Group Insurance:: 166,943 145,207 162,975 - __!.H,644 - - ._ __ - __ 198,609 - 193,826 - 198,672 203,638 2_28,729 
Rt:tircmcnt 276,897 _260,23~ ~294,7..!i_ 306,953 338,863 _ _119,586_ 396, l_Q.!__._ 435,019 439,36~ 
Ot her Employc::e Benefits - -- -

29,661 27,334 __ 25,541 __ 26,948 ~5~ - 29,019_ 29,661 -- 29,~l-'- _1?,661 
Cnntract/Profussional Srvs -

-~ = 76,51[ --- ---- 82,520 _ 36,137 - 156,119 133,892 - 288,855 -~~ L -

76,525 76,525 
Fleet Managc::mcnt billin!l_S - 3~_:582 38,365_ - 31,24~_ 37,9~ - 39,340 ~o,5~ 36,482 ~.652 --40,005 
Propert)' & Liability billings 7,600 9,247 9,525 - 9,322 _ _1,322_ - _ 9,122 9,322 ._ 9,3~ 9,322 
Other Sc::rvices and Supplies _ 102,841 - 106,556 _!46,638 ~476 686,90~ 164,851 164,851 _ '- 164,851 164,851_ ,__ ____ 
f apital __ 60,232 _ 152,587 -- 211,274 119,972 - __ ,!7,42!._ 70,309 71,715 _ ~ 73,149 74,612 --- J.- -- - -

, ___ 
GF Ovc::rhcad costs - - 3'.12,303 353.791 338,776 345.551 352,462 359,511 366,701 
Sub-total Exoc::nditures 2,130,502 1,955,798 2,629,381 2,524,703 3,366,913 2,710,807 2,750,438 2.819,122 I 2,852,857 

I I I 
Rc::vcnuc Less Expenditures I (272,577) 10,694 (560,684} (33,667) (933,6351 (457,630) (357,824) i379,925) (35/l,658) 

I I I 

Appendix A Page 3of14 i'i:\My Documonts\Special Proj&cts\Forecasts\Feb 2015 i'iealth District 3 Year Forecast.xis 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FYt9 

l!•Y'''ZUIJ- l''f ' ~lt:U- lfY ..:u1;,- l'l' '20.l4; 1•·y ~Ul~- i<'Y' 2,01'6- I'' \' -..:ul?- l• ll 2Ul lf· 
20~ ZOJS 2014 2015 2016 i o11 201s w 19 

COMMUNITY & CLINICAL HEAL TH SERVICES DIVISION 
Clironic Disease Preyentitin 
Revenue: 

'~r-"""·cd'-e"""r~al=&=--S-ta-te-=G-'r_an_t_s __ _.._ - 129)99 _ 182,11 1 
Federal & State Indirect Rev. 
Sub-total Revenue 120,299 182,111 

·----------

113,678 ~-:: 
113,678 

2?~}48 285,769 285,769 __ 2~5,76~+ 
12,8"34 13,821 13,821 13,821 

---!-----
~85,769 '- 285,769 

13,821 !3,821 
267,182 299,590 299,590 299,590 299,590 299,590 

ExJ>cnditurcs: 
Salaries & Wages - - 219,51_!_ ,__147,499 152,507 . l 20,98S_,_ - 177,593- 184,580 ___ i86,426,_ 188,290 '90,173 
Intermittent Hourly Poi;itions - - - - 27,184 - - 25,127 25,394--2 5:3"94·-·- - 25,394 25,394 
Q ro!!_p Insurance _ ~ 37,150 - 27,1 36 27,751 16,758 25,058- 26,091 =_1.6,~3 - 27,4ll - __28,097_ 
Retirement _ 47,06_1_ _ 33,921 3"6,218 _ 27,571 45,010 __ 51,~8~ _ J?_,1~,_ 57,328 _27,901 
Other EmJ>!~yee Benefits 5,726 3;4of -- 3,248 3,053 3,707 3,464 3,464 3,464 3,464 
Contract/Profossional Srvs - 4 8,99l i---86,45<'r,__ 40,431 - - 185,753 69,608 --79,408 ---79,408 ~ 79,408 79,408 
Property&Liabilitybillings -'-- 2,280~'2,3%~-1,473 - - 1,1-7{ ___ 1,1?8 ____ 1;118 ___ 1,118_,_ 1,178 1,178 

Othe~ser'1iees-andSup~iie~ 12,151 1 24,86[:_ _ ( 028-_ 10J!05 -=-111,~ __ 11_8,726 --118,726'- 118,726 1181726 
GF Overhead costs - -

- - --
Capital - -
Sub-total Expenditures 373.480 504,342 

Revenue Less Expenditures I (253,1811 (204,752) 

I 
Comm11nltf & Clinwo/ Health ~ , _ 
Rev~uc_:___ _ _ _____ -~ _ . _____ , _________ -~ - --1-----
9!~r_f~r~c2 for Scrv:..:i..:..ce:...:.s _ _._ --~,'!_30 .~ _

4
3,,(

5
)
8
5(

1
) _ '

1
1 •• 3

30
87
5 

54
1
0
5
_ __-_ ____ - _ ,_ - --- -t--- -- _,_ - -

Miscellaneous - - - - -
Suh-total Revenue 8,430 I 8,540 2,692 555 -

-----1--- _______ , _____ , __ ---+----
Expenditures: __ _ _ _ _ _ _____ ---1-----1--
Salaries & Wages 180,146 195,303 _1!!9,560 _ 179,~6 __ 121,197 _ 134,070 __ l;;;.;35:..!,4..:..l:....:1-1-_-"13::..;6=,765 138,132 
Grouplf!.sumnee ._ 17,378 16,029 20,477 20,297 _!2,271 12,796 13,116 13,444 13,780 
Retirement - ·---- -38,538-- ~ill --39,990 ._ 46,068 30,874 35,~24 _ - 37,915 ~640_,_ 42,057 
Other Em!!loyee Benefits- 4,589- ---3,5SO --J,545 --~6- 2,<i61-=-_.±,782 2,782 2,782 _1,782 
Contraet/Profossional Srvs ·--·· 751) 10,585 --1:sss ,_ 836 31,702 9,875 9,875 9,875 9,875 
Fleet Management billings - ""ill: :_ ~ :----- 1,724 ~ -~~~j_if7 _ _ 3,220 4,847 4,362 4,622 4,783 
Proper!)' & Liabilit)' billings 1,900 817 1,350 842 842 842 842 842 ,_ -x4Z 
Oihe-;:8~ and Supplies -~ --8- ,87 6- - 8 ,841 5,104 22,707 - 10,726 17,394-- 17,394 -1-7,394 ! 7,394 
GfOverheadcosts -- - - ~-1%,110 · l :i?o,065 - 1,103,319 ___ 1,liS,447- 1,147,956 1,170,1)15 1,194,333 
Canital - - ,_ -- __ ,_ - - __ ,__ - . 2J.948---1,257 29,738 -

Sub-total Exnenditure8 252,648 278,978 1,039,476 1,470,351 1,318,129 l ,373,615 1,369.653 I 1,398.278 1,423.979 

Revenue Less Expenditures (244,218) (270.439) 0 ,036,784) (1,469,796) (1,318,129) (l,373,615) {l,369,653) (t,398,278) (1,423,979) 

Appendix A Page4 of14 H:\My Oocumonts\Specl•I Projecu\Forecam\Feb 2015 Health District 3 Year Foreco>t.xl> 



Washoe County Health District J:t"und 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FY19 

Actual ETC Base Projected 
If\' ;.:UlO- I' \' ZUI I- H 2012- l"Y 2013- n 2014- r 1 2U~ I' I lUl (J- I' I J,UI/• r \' 2UUJ-

2011 2012 2013 2014 201!1 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Famil'I!. Pla1111i111:. 
Revenue: - - '---
Federal & State Grants 

--
9o4,151 - - 78Q_.68f - 887,653 _ 859,328 785,268 78_9.~8 780,688 780,688 780,688 

Federal & State Indirect Rev. - . . 18,637 23,312 23,31~ 23 •. ~ ,_ 23,31~ 23,312 -
Other Cha~cs for Services 55,454 - 34,414 27,454 

'--
34,370 30,623 38,000 38,000 --~~QOO_ - 38,000 

Miscellaneous 25,795 26,3 18 22,601 24,230 18,000 21 ,000 21 ,000 21,000 21,000 
Sub-total Revenue 968,902 964,883 909,383 862,505 852,623 863,000 863,000 863.ooo I 863,000 

I-

Expenditures: - - -- '--
Safarie< & Wages 528,159 524,453 _,_ __156,9JQ. ~~33~ 481,840 ~7,619 492,495 491..~20 502,394 
Totcrmi~t Hou~ Po.~itions 83,320 55,667 80,619 101,970 46,197 16,313 16,31~ - 16,~13 16,313 
Grnup Insurance - 88,350 82,689 80,850 _73,609 89,886 98,93q_ - 101 ,403 103,938 106,537 
Retirement - 113,309 123,709 108,01.i_ .__ 106,676 116,665 135,750 137,899 151,448 152,962 

Qt~1~i:_Em~l~yee Ben~.~.~~ .. 
-

- - - l~Q? - 10,817 ~415 !_1,607 11,669 - 11,357 11,357 11,357 11,357 
Contract/Professional Srvs , __ 8,448 31,689 23,098 24,967 16,108 23,600 23,600 __1:1,600_. 23,600 
Bioi~_gic-;;[~ - · -··- - -

129)87 
-

105,408 102,412 159,047 - 103,312 92,461 92,461 __ 9~~i!._ 92,461 
Outpatient _____ 23,o<i)_ 23,961 15,043 - 15,424 15,500 20,00( 20,000 20,000 - 20,000 

Pr.operty & L:!a.hJ}.i.!-2'..E~Uing~ -- -· 4,5~0 3,993 4,910 4~661 4,661 __ 4,661 4,661 - 4,661 4,661 
Other Services and Supplies -- ~.!.4.?J 61,273 50,41 7 53,703 42,659 __ 4_1,180 41,180 41,180 41 ,180 
Capital . 17,467 1,350 2,869 . . . . -
Sub-total Expenditures 1,032,833 1,038 129 990,8 14 942,710 928,497 931,871 941,369 962,378 I 971 465 

Revenue Jess Exoenditures (63,931) (73,246) (81 ,431) (80,205) (75,874) (68,871) (78.369) (99.,378) (108,465) 

I I I I I 
b11111u11i~atio11s 

Revenue: - - - -
2_2.S,6t 9 

---
,f ederal & State Grants - 336,300 337,135 ~ . _273.·m ,,, .. 87 303,031 - 295,619 j 295,619 295,619 
Federal & State Indirect Rev. 21 ,072 11,778 14,069 25,601 39,434 _l9,434 .12i434 - _12.,434 39,434 
Other Cl~i:&cs for Services 

-
196,5.o( 97,~?8 _ 160,125 143,428 10~,87~ - ~500 116,500 ~Q.0_ 116,500 

Miscellaneous 14,064 14 105 12,878 8,490 5 000 14,000 -- 14,000 14,000 14,000 
Suh-total Revenue 567,941 506,446 398,325 473,903 457,338 465,553 465,553 465,553 465,553 

- '-- ·- -
Expenditures: 

. -
~~.349 

'-- - --
Salari~ & Wages - 619,365 596,496 600,842 632,261 _ 61i,068 622,229 628,451 _ 634,735 
Intermittent Hourly Positions 86,329 --68,365 64,9'!Q_ .. _??J.?3_ 68,274 68,274 68,274 68,274 68,274 
Gro_':!_p Insurance - - -~?i977 91,921 94,01 1 - 93,382 107,381 107,3 15 - 109,998 - 112,748 115,567 
Retirement l ~_._212_ _ 145,996 13~,982_ 149,346 160,§_~9 110,([01 174,224 191,342 193,255 -- -- ---e. 
Other Eml'loyee Benefits - 18,220 10,430 14,498 14,210 14,962 _ 14,205 14,2.<l?_ 14,205 - 14,205 
Contract/Professional Srvs 32,357 13,103 21,14~ __ ,25,476 16,788 15,913 15,91'.l 15,913 15,9 i3 
Biologicals __ 

-
122,000 18,498 64,542 59,22~ 1.13.!.31 .. ~ - l 00,000 122,000 . . 122,00Q_ ,__ 122,000 

Fleet Management billings . 75 - . . . . . --- - - - - -- --
l'.~t?.erty & -~J.~~~Hty billings •... - 6,840 · - 3,736 5,696_ '- 5,243 5,243 5,243 5,243 -1._2~-~ 5,243 
Other Services and Supplies ~7 71,958 38,~ '- ___±8,530 46,459 54,898 54,898 ,_ __ 54,~ 

I-
54,898 

Capital . . . . . . . . . 
Sub-total Expenditures 1,080,202 l,089,491 1,034,302 1,128,117 1, 152,037 1,174,523 1,186.983 ' 1,2 13,074 1,224,090 

I . 
Revenue lesi> Exocnditures (5 12,260) (583,046) (635,977) (654,215 (694,6991 (708~970' (721,430)1 (747,5211 (758,537 

Appendix A Page 5of14 H:\My 01)cuments\Speclal Pro)ects\Forecosb\Feb 2015 Hdolth District 3 Year Forecast.<ls 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projcdlons to FYl9 

Actual ETC Base ProJcclcd 
1n ·:.:u 10- l' Y ~II- 1r y :.:u 1v l' Y ZOl J- l'Y :.:u14- l' Y ,:.:u15- J<Y :.:u16- .. . ·:.:u n- l''Y :.:u 1B-

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

I 
Matemal, Clti/d & Atlolescent Health 

l I I 
~ - I I 

Revenue: 

I 57,~84 1:- 58, ~17 Fodera! & State Grants 
-- - -

63,622 52,856 52,8.?£ __ 53,118 . 53,111! - 53,118 53.ill_ 
Federal & State Indirect Rev. - 5,141 5,144 5,144 5,144 5,144 5,144 
Sub-total Revenue 57,884 58,117 63,622 57,997 58,000 58,262 58,262 58.262 58,262 

--- - >- --- - - --
Expenditures: 

->-- - -- -~· ,,_._ ·- - ,__ --Salaries & Wages - 295,926 305,367 288-;642 - ·· .?~-~!~!!~ .. -108~Q~~ - __!Q4,017 105,057 106,108 107,169 
Intennittent Hourly Positions _ . . 102 274 Q04} - . . -- - - -W,015 -- 21,619 Groue._Insurance 34,236 - 33,835 40,316 29,566 20,73 l 20,577 21,091 
Rt:tirt:ment ~1.542 _ _J},632 68,539 62,60i 26,887 28,905 29,416 32,306 32,629 

·~ - - -
Other Employee Benefits 

- 1-
5,464_ -- 5,786 5,943 5,806 4,704 - 4,670 - 4,670 4,670 4,670 

Contract/Professional Srvs 312 312 1,759 3, 11 4 600 600 600 600 600 -- ,, - . 
Biologicals . 219 389 222 540 250 250 250 250 - -- - 2,285 -- - - - -Property & Liabilily billings 

I•- -
1,520 2,148_ 2,259 2,285 - - _b285 2,285 - 2,285 2,285 

Other Service.~ and Surplics_ -- 15,223 11 ,918 11 ,892 10,871 8,58~ - _ 12,120 -- 12,1 20 12,120 12,120 
Capital - - - - - . . - -
Sub-totul Expmditurcs 414,223 432,216 419,840 359,233 172,330 172,922 174,975 179.430 181,341 

Revenue less Expenditure.~ (356,338) (374,099) (356,218) (301,236) (114.330' (114,660) (116,713' (121,168) (123,079 

I 
Sexual Health - HIV 

Revenue: ~ 
- 704,~- -- --- - ---Federal & State Grants 609,084 509,749 425,231 411 ,483 437,1.'.?2 ~7J_72 437,172 437,172 -

Federal & State Indirect Rev. - 14,013 26,706 29,047 33,381 33,381 33,381 33,381 
Sub-total Revenue 704,626 I 609,084 523,762 451,937 440,530 470,553 470,553 470,553 470,553 

--·-- -- - -- --- - ,_ 
Expenditures: -- - - - ..____ -
Salaries & Wages -- 32 1 ,93~ - 307,779 247,038 229,660 203!..105 2~83 217,335 219_,508 221,703 
Iutenniu.ent Hourly Positions _ __ 9,737 15,743 21,082 23,097 ~.?_l!_l_ 27,487 - 27,487 27,487 27,487 
Group Insurance - 40,403 

>-
l.?_. 156 30.258 30,6l 8_ 24,8~ __ 2_8_,204 - 28.909 29.632 - 30,373 - -Retirement 68,835 72,~8!_ _ 49,751 58,982 __ 51,31Q_ 59,902 60,854 66,833 67,~ - - =- 4,399 

-Other Employee Benefits -- 6,481 6,378 5,716 5,854 4,397 4,399 4,399 4,399 
Contract/Professional Srvs 208,625 102,459_ 26,416 29,400 __1,0QQ_ -- 8,426 8,426 8,426 8,426 --- - -- - >-
Outpatient - -- 12,630 - ·- __ 24,443 31,215 '1 4,649 __ 17,860 __ 17,860 __ 17,860 17,860 17,_860 
!.'.~~'!l'.._~_f::- iapility billings ....... - . - - - - - - . - - - - -Other Services 1:1nd Supplies _ 1_5,980_ 42,445 __ 98,274 33,150 82,306 - _ 75,711 71,902 63,027 59.41L 
Capital - f- -- - - - - - . -
Sub-totnl Expenditures 704,626 609,083 509,750 425.470 411,483 437,172 437,1 72 437.172 437.172 

Revenue Jess Expenditure11 {0) 0 14,013 26.467 29,047 33,381 33,381 33,381 33,381 

Appendix A Page 6 of 14 H:\My Oocum<1nb\Spaci1I Projects\forecam\Feb 2015 Health District 3 Vear F0<ecasul1 



Washoe County Health Dislrict Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FYl6 Recommended Budget and Projec tions to FY19 

Actual ETC Base Projected 
l' l' -'U l U· 

2011 
l'l' .jiUll• l'l' .jiUU• l'l' lU l 3- l'l' lU l 4- l'l' ~UI:>- l''l', l UI O• l'l' .jiUj7• l' l' ~U l ll-

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Se.\'11al Health - STD 
Revenue: 
Federal & State Grants __ ,_l 26,228 -- 119,391 

----t--~- -- -
Federal & State Indirect Rev. - -
Other Charges for Services - - 34,406 - 22,31 O 
Miscellaneous T - 4,650._ 4,003 
Sub-total Rt:Venuc 165,285 145,704 

Expenditures: _, ___ _ 
Salaries & Wages _ _ 389,689 352,951 
Intermittent Hourly Pos~tions - !JOT ,___12,344 

Group Insurance ----~,9~ 40,862 
Retirement 83,958 82,899 
Other Employee Benefits 8,265 9,521 
ContraeUPmfessional Srvs ~ =--19,420- _!_2{>59 _ 
Biologicals _ _ _ - _ 3,387 
Outpatient 52,992_ _ 30,656 
Property & Liability billings ,_ 3,800_ 6,445 
Oth~!J~rvic~~-an,d Supplies 20,804 20,228 
Caoital 
Suh-total Expenditures 627,968 578,952 

Revenue less Exoendilures (462,683' (433,248)1 

Revenue: j J 
Federal & State Grants - =- l 97,433 
Federal & State Indirect Rev. F -
Other Charges for Services 9,467 
Mi~llaneous (64 
Sub-total Revenue I 206,835 I 

--
Expenditures: -
Salaries & Wages 334,305 
lntem1ittent Hourly Positions 7,610 
dro~p-insu;:a~ce - 4!_,64'!_ 
Retirement 64,099_ 
Other Employee Benefits 6,31? 
Contract/Professional Srvs 2 1,237 -

(256 Biologicals - -
Outpatient 12,217 

~-e,et ~~!"?gemcnt biUin~~ -·-. 
Property & Liability billings - - 1,900 
Other Services and Supplies - 19,006 
Cnoitul . 
Sub-total Expenditure.~ 514,590 

I 

Revenue less Expenditures 

' 
(307,755) 

. 

71,244 ~ 
__ 4,878 

33 
76,155 

270,314 
44,494 
34,635 
63,932 

5,761 
21 ,196 
9,777 

10,652 
58 

2,242 
14,658 

-
477,717 

(401,563) 

116,925 
4,086 

20,880 
2,376 

144,267 

332,324 
15,196 
48,950 
77,832 

7,612 
18,913 
2,197 

29,050 
4,812 

13,116 

550 002 

(405,736) 

73,477 1 
3,478 
4,624 

II 
81,590 

293,597 
16,771 
45,666 
69,692 

6,600 
21,317 

5,928 
7,928 

-
2,651 

16,861 

-
487,01 l 

(405,421) 

94,919 
7,525 

17,015 
3,067 

12 1,242 __ 1_19,5~- _!_!_9.~ 9_ 
_ _J_0,110 

22,900 
- 2,SOO 

11 9,519 119,519 
10,110 10,11 0 

l 5,500 - - 22,900 
10,110- l_Q~lO 

2,500 - 2.500 
22,900 22,90Q 

2,500 2,500 
121.626 149,352 155,029 155,029 155,029 155,029 

267,808 ~4.056 414,496 418,641 422,827 
25,123 22.QOO _ 22,000 = 2_2,0{m.~ _ 22,000 
40,020 58,773 59,799 61,294 62,826 
68,919 102,6,!0- - -1 (.5,24~ 117,2-l'L 128,737 

7,127 8,~3 -- _8_247 8,347 8,347 
14,9 11 17,150 18,160 18,160 18,160 

614 ~-3,500---4,ooo ---4,ocio 4,ooo 
37t079 --38,004 - - - 40/ l"li 40,712 40,712 
4,930 4,930 --{930 - 4.930 4,930 

24,220 18,467 16,999 J 6,999- - 16,999 

490,752 

(369, 126) 

85,939 
6,186 
4,298 

57 
% ,479 

331,668 
17,721 
49,354 
84,409 

7,117 
18,072 
2,547 

10,306 
-

2,165 
18,061 

-
541,420 

(444,940) 

677,853 

(528,501' 

97,~05 
6,564 
4,700 

50 
108,519 

401,342 
17,000 
52,716 
92,933 

___ 8,~9~ 
20,~00 
6,850 
8,700 

-
2, 1 ~5 

25,595 
7 ,961 

644,356 

(535.837) 

704,692 

{549,663) 

_ __24,431 

~64 
5,350 

50 
106,395 

375,297 -
-- 13.!833 

55,715 
104,30.§ 

7,857 
1-- - ~ --

20,800 
_ t 12_0 

10,875 

-
2,165 

33,175 
. 

631 ,173 

(524,778) 

712,302 

(557.273' 

94,4311 
6,564 

- 5,350 

50 
106,395 

379,050 
13,833 
57,108 

106,134 
7,857 

20;800 
7,150 

10,875 

-
2,165 

33,175 
-

638,1 46 

(531,751' 

729,538 

(574,509) 

94,431 
6,564 
5,350 

so 
106.395 

382,840 
13,833 
58,536 

116,562 
7,857 

20,800 
7,150 

10,875 

-
2,165 

33,175 
-

653,792 

(547,397' 

_ 4p,056_ 
22,000 
64,397 

130,024 
8,347 

18,160 
4,000 
4~,711_ 
4,930 

16,999 

736,625 

(581,596) 

94,431-

~.564 
5,350 

50 
106,395 

386,669 
13,833 
59,999 

117,728 
7,857 

20,800 
7,150 

10,l\75 

-
·- _,_2_!_1~~-

·- _,, __ ~_3.,!._l.?~-
-

(>60,250 

(553,855' 

Appendix A Page 7 of 14 H:\Mv Oocuments\Special Projects\f<>t&COJh \F•b 2015 H<!alth Dlmtet 3 Yeor Forecast.>ls 



Washoe County Health Dlstl'lct Fund 
Hlstol'y, Current Estimates, FYl6 Recommended Budget and Projections to FY19 

Aetu_nl 
II 

ll'Y i?U.11- I' y,·~l!;_l'li• 

2012 201'3 

I L 
Wo111e11, /11faJ1ts tmd Cliilifrei1 

Revenue: + 
fe~eral & State Grants~ - l ,08f;QQT 
Federal & State Indirect Rev. -

l''Y :tU l r.f· 'l l\I i!i'il '4-

!Z0J4 201S 

81\se, 
I' I ' · liU l ':l'-

!ZQl 6 
l'Y M\IJ~ 

2019 

Suh-total Revenue 1,087,008 I 1,155,439 I 1,085,348 l 1,055,916 1,11J.810 1,062,144 1ms.so3 1.015,803 I 1,015,803 

·--------- -- --1------1-- -- -- --------
Expenditures: ______ ----- _,, ____ .. ___ ... _ _ _ _ 
Salaries& Wages _ 765,699 756,028 783,722 74~~804_ _ 773,101 740,401 - 747,8ii5 ~5,2X3 762,83~ 
lntcrmittcntHourlyPositions 24,417 __ 11,92S _ 13,420 13,3~ - J 2,841 ,_ ~OQQ_ __ _!.5,000 15,000 15,000 
Grol!EJ!!:"urance 153,389 159,243 158,086 158,855 _ ~2.724- _ 161 ,81!4 165,931 170,079 174,331 
Retirement - 1<>3.~~1 78,6 16-"- Ts4.so1- 190,005 195,351_ 214.~29 _ 209,385 229,958 __ 232,258 
Other Empl<lycc Be;cfits - - 18,617 17,844 18,571 17,998 18,833 _ 18,806 18,806 __ 18,806 18,806 
Contract/Professioniii Srvs-- - 314 ,_ - 1,24 0 m . __ 26 - 1,27~- _ __4~ __ _ ~ _ 48 48 
Biol~gicals _~ =- _,_ --,~---- -- - ------- --
Outpatient - -
Fleet Management billings--- - 890 2(>0 

7,495 ~ert)' & Liability bill~gt; ~ - - 6,460 
_Qthcr Services and S~lics __ __!!7,159_ - _)__22,977_ 
GF Overhead costs - -----+- - -
Capital -
Sub-total Expenditures 1,250,061 1,256,628 

Revenue less Expenditures (163,053} (101,190) 

f-

- - --- - -- -- - ----
7,856 - 7,398 _7,398 -
85,43~ - _§9,293 - _ 80.J!l _ -

21 1,726 - -- -- - -
1,464,349 1,197,728 1,251,869 

(379,001}1 (141 ,812) (137,999) 

Appendix A Page 8 of 14 

- - - ---- -- - -- - - ----- -- -- - - -- ----
_2,398 _ :Z.,398 - 1_398 __1_,398 
67,658 67,658 67,658 67,658 

- - - ---------- - -- ---

1,225,724 1,232,031 1,264,230 1,278,335 

(163,580} (156,229)1 (t 88,428)1 (202,532) 

H:\Mv Oocumenu\Speclal Projects\Forecasts\Feb 2015 Health District 3 Yoar Forecast.xis 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections lo FYl9 

~dual 

fl Yi; 41~1.llJ- l' ~'!Z!J! I - l'>Y <1.U u- l''Y' Z0.13-
2011 2012 20J3 2014 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION I 
EIU111'011111ental Hell/Ill Servic'es 

~::;1~~c~rmits ~~ 245,517'--232,7~9 - 222,791 250,579 _ 
Other Charges for Services _188,744 ,___.12_6,77]_ __lQ§,704 _ 129,91il_ _ 
Miscellaneous 150 - 525 28,386 
Sub-total Revenue 434,411 399,536 432,020 408,953 

-

J!' l" J.U, 1'4 • 

2015 

241,127 

~79 
1,341 

360,447 

-
3~9,l4Q_ 

- 116,888 
-

446,028 

l•'Y J.UI 0-

2017 

- ---
351 ,228 

- 116,888 

-
468, 116 

Pro.I CG fed 

---
374,798 
116,888 

-
491.686 

I 

ll 'l" ~UHt-

2019 

----
399,949 
11 6,888 

-
516,837 

~pcndi~_!.~- __ _ _ __ - ··--- __ _ 
Salaries & Wag~--~,117,228 l ,036 672 1,038,469 1,075,321 - - 1,267,425 1,047,580- l,Q58,0s6~1:068,636-l,079,323 
lntem1iltent HourlyPositions 10_._15l --8,974-- 7,20S --19,740 ,_ --17)500 - 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 

Gr£!P Insurance___ _ _ 15~206 147,51[ --133,065 - 155,552 177,132 148,370. =--l 52,079 155,881 159,778 
Retirement _ 233,670 234,661 226,432 277,872_ _ 311 ,.983_ 286,766 W§,256 325,363 ~ 328,617 
OtherEn!£LOyee BeE~ls ~,-- _E,84?_~ _ 20,744 _ 22,105 __ 22,~4.Q 25,287 22,481 22,48 1 22,481 22,48 1 
Contract/Professional Srvs 6,988 5,262 2,278 _ 8,874 7,348 6,048 - - 6,048 - - 6,048 - 6,048 
Rlect M;.mgement billings __ ,_ 38Jr7 - 38,642 - 30,4~ 26;8if :=_ 3§;224= 35,41 ( 31 ,877-- - 33,773 34,955 -

Propert~Liabilit~ billings '=._ 9,120_'= __ ?140~ -= ~4~ . _ 7,96~ --·~- 8,783 8,783 - 8,783 _ 8,783 
Olhcr Servi~sandSupplies _ 53,889 51,110 _ 62,884 55,832 84,082 _ 80,800 80,800 80,8.QQ_ ,_ 80,800 
9F Overheadcosts ____ ..:._ _ - __ 84_!,746-· _896,927 --=_ 847285 864,536 --881;827 - 899,463 917:45"3 
C11oital 
Sub-total Expenditures 1,6.48,8 14 1,551,990 2,373,186 2,547,749 2,784,849 2,509,783 2,547,207 2,610,229 2,647,237 

Revenue less Expenditures I 0,214,402) <1 . 152,454) <1 .941.166} (2,138,796) (2,424,402) (2,063, 755) (2,079,091) (2,118,543 (2,130,400' 

Food Pmgram 
Revenu_c_: _____ _ --

~ 45.!.._114 
11,332 

-- -- ---
800,861 854,604 
63,0(}([ 63,000 

~§5.~ 18 - - -~~.620 541,00'L 
~.\2~?J.. 63,000 63,000 

, ,_ 
- --

Licensci; and Permits 
Federal & State Grants 
Pcderal & State Indirect Rev. 
Other Charges for Services .. .,_ - - -

-
39,91.? ·-

-
40,264 

2,620 

1,13~ 

49,3'.3'!_ -

4,185 6,300 6,300 
~~?~?} - - _:>8,ooo· .=_ 38,ooo 

-=JSo,497 - 
~.oo·o -

6,300 
38,000 

6,~ 6,300 
38,oo~ ,_ ~.ooo 

Miscellaneous -
Sub-total Revenue 430,179 415,309 I 
Expenditures: _ _ 
Salaries & Wages 1,065,574 1,055,700 
[ntermillent Hourly Po::;itions 43,724 4?,056 
Gmup fosural!~e !?_?.,On_ 167, l 82 
Retirement 225,498 -241?S6_ 
Other Employee Ben~ti;_· _ _,_ --~3~83 2~654 _ 
ContracUProfcssional Srvs - -_,_ 
Pleet Management billings 32,232 35,595 
~rope~ & LiabililY. billi.'_l.gs__ 7,220 X,593 
Other Services and Supplies 8,771 15,287 
GP Overl;ead c~l!_-- ==--== _::- .-_-- -- · 
Caoi!al - -

512,913 

1,111,~50 

4~.741 
159,026 
261 ,4p 

2'.!i2~1-

29,860 

8,5:11 . 
12,051._ 

Sub-total Expenditures I 1,582,012 1,603,022 1,656,376 

Revenue less Expenditures I 0.151,833) 1 {1,181,113) 0 , 143,463) 

2,500 - -
658,788 645,920 648,300 857,797 908.161 961,904 

1,002,042 980,806 
36,664 16,0_00 

135,822 132,842 
247,974 - - 237,~!_ 

22,240 -- 21,2_75 
33,788 . 42,541 

... 3-91~53 __ ~5.§96 
...... 7!3}5 _2,335 
- 1 ~738 - - 36,~ 

1,186,045 I, 197,905 l ,209,885 1,221,983 
49,000 49,000 ~000- 49,000 

165,501. 169,645 173,886 178,233 

3!.2_,238 _ 335,414 - 368,3.:.:69'-1---=-37:....:2:.!.,0:;.;:.5=-2 
24,351 '---· 24,351 24,351 24,351 
60,00~ 60,000 60~00 60,000 
_4~697 41,127 43,573 45,098 

_ 7,335 __ 7,31 5_ 7,335 , __ 7_c,_335 

34,478_ - 34,478 -- 3-M78_ - 34,478 
, ____ -l-----1 

1,543,555 1,520,923 1,892,151 1,919,255 1,970,876 1,992,530 

(884,766) (875,oo3J (I ,243,8511 <1 ,061 ,458) <1 .062,115 I c1.030,6261 

Appendix A Page 9 of 14 H:\My Documents\Spec"1al Projects\Forecans\Feb 2015 Health Dl•trlct 3 Year Forecast.xi> 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FY19 

Actual ETC Basil ProJcctcd 
r Y :Wl U· l'Y .:u11- "Y .:ul'.Z· Jll' .:1HJ- r Y :.:ul4- I' l' .:UI!)- l'l" ;i;ul f>- 1• Y :.:un- l'l" -'U l lt-

lOll 2012 2013 2014 2015 20J6 2017 2018 2019 

·-- I l I 
-- 1~ I I 

Saft! Dri11k/111,. Water 

R''' ""'' ~ ~ 
-

Licenses and Permits - ---i:Sol - - 4, 122 - - - ,__ --5,336 10,05 1 - - - - -
Federal & State Grants ~ _ - 94,030 79,098 

-- -
90,000 81,230 81,230 81,230 8 1,230 81,230 81,230 

---'---
8,770-Federal & State lndirect Rev. - I 0,902 - 8,770 8,770 8.770 8,770 8,770 

Sub-total Revenue 96,831 I 94,122 95,336 100,051 90,000 90,000 90.000 90,000 90,000 

--- ---- I- ----
Expenditures: 

1 ~ -- - --- -- -- --
Snl11.ries & Wages 138,004 95,090 95,997 60,441 _?5,646 55,481 55,481 55,481 55,481 
lntermittent Hourly Positions 24,279 6,250 . - . . . - -- -
Group T nsurance 14,888 8,432 12,774 8,639 9,398 8,953 8,953 8,953 8,953 
Retirement 3~.?~7 

~ - 19,655 23, 195 13,656 13,311 16,008 - 16,008 16,008 16,008 
Other Employee Benefits 3,364 3,218 2,330 1,862 771 788 788 788 788 
Contract/Professional Srvs 

- 66" - -
12 - - - . - . . 

-- - --- - - - -
f.l.~ct Mana~e-~~~-~illings .... 4,18~ 3,107 2,893 5,411 - . . - . - - -------- ·-. " --
~!.?.P.~i:!L~ .. f..:iability billings_ .. 1,140 1,868 982 818 . . . - . --

_, ___ -- - -Other Services und Su~plics 736 362 1,688 2,487 2,104 . . - . 
- - -

C11.pital - - . - - - - - . 
Sub-total Expenditures 211,213 I 137,996 139.859 93,313 81,230 81,230 81.230 81,230 81,230 

Revenue less Exoenditures (120,383) (43,874) (44,523) 6.738 8.770 8,770 8,770 8.770 8,770 

Solid Wi1Sle Mtmll1:,ement 
Revenue: l 38~56 -- -- -
Licenses and Permits 38,499 44,085 47,503 _25,0Q9 . 25,000 34,681 37,008 39,492 - _.._ 
Tire rees ~0.91 !._ 513,800 432,642 3 14, 136 468,548 468,548 468,548 468,548 468,548 
Other Charges for Services 14 33 344 357 29 . - - ---Miscellaneous - 45 18,064 1,076 . - . . 
Sub-total Revenue 489,782 552,331 1 477,1 16 380,060 494,653 493,548 503,229 505,556 508,040 

-·- -- -- -
Expenditures: ·- - --S11.larics & Wages 

- _ 233,347 282,555 268,091 277,111 303,~5 ~0,216 - 337,539 340,91 s 344,324 
Intennittent Hourly Positions 18,155 . - - 11 ,000_ - - . -, _ 

_ 2s,654 ----
Group Tnsumnce - 43,596 38,611 40,334 45,576 _ 50,l~ __ 5_1?410 52,695 ~.0 1 ~ 
Retirement 49,033 67,215 6i,258 70,034 7~~636 9_?,4_20 94,511 103,797 104,835_ - - -
Other Employee Benefits - 5,837 4,774 6,432 6,969 7,010 7,72J_ -- 7,729 7,729 7,729 
Contract/Professional Srvs 

--
1,014 8,084 981 13,908 - - - . -- ·-·· 

Fleet Management billings _ _ _Q,013 1-2,77~ 12,261 13,144 15,433 .... -- l_L~~-?- 15,513 16,436 ! ~Oil 
Pmperty & 1,inbility billings _ 2,280 1,868 3,437 3,367 3,367 3,367 3,367 3,367 3,367 
Other Services and Supplies - 64,924 37,814 77,277 69,75 1 490,227 3,952 - - -· 3,952 3,952 3,952 
GF Overhead costs - . - 36,349 36,349 37,076 37,818 .... 38,574 39,345 
Capitul - . - . - - - - -
Sub-total Expenditures 416,2s1 r 458,680 468,347 530,966 988,563 567,223 551,839 567,464 574,576 

Revenue less Expenditures 73,524 93,65 1 8,769 l (150.907) (493,910' (73,675) (48,6 l 0) (61 ,908) (66,536) 

Appendix A Paga 10 of 14 H:\My Oocvments\Sµecial Projtcts \ For•cast.\F• b 20l5 Health Olslrl<:t 3 Year F0<ecast.xl! 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FYl9 

V11ilergro111ul Storage Ta11kfi 
Revenue: 
Federal & S tate Grants 
Federal & State Indirect Rev. 
Suh-total Revenue 

Base 
r i'" <:111 l • l!'l " 1'111~ 'r 'I' WJi?• 

20112 2013 ~o t:it 

I 

- 205:46t----i87,ooo 181,000 
l-- -- -- --

226,007 - 208.236 - 268,236 
15:993 - -9.764 . 9,764 

205,461 187,000 187,000 242,000 218,000 218,000 

.FY 2010-
Z()J7 

PrQfected 

_ 208;;..,.::.:23:...::6-1-_ ::..:20:...:8.!..:.2C::..36.o_F 208;236 
9.764 9,764 9,764 

218,000 218,000 218,000 
- - ___ ,__ -1--- - ------1-----1 

~xpendlJ_ur~ --·~-----~ _ _ _ _ ____________ ..__ _______ _ 
Salaries & Wages_ __ 130,127 131,652 _ 133,120 _ 138,~_Q_ ___ 141,96~_,_ __!_1b!.?~- 138,830 135,871 _ _11_52~0I_ 
Grouplnsuranee 19,02l ,_ 18J)i8 · 17,815 18,192 19,738 18,087 18,539 19,003 19,478 
Retirement _.._ 28,112 - 31 ,082 - Jl,655 - 3 4,884 ---34,657--~978 38,872 -- 41,368_ - 41,257 
9ther Employee Bem:fits __ =~ 2,761 2 ,263 -- 2Jo3 -- - - 2,439 - _ 2,422 -~144 ~ 2,344_,_ 2,344 __ 2,344 
Other Scrvices~d Supplies 25,440_ - 1,985 _ _ 2~ 06 32,202 _ 9,455 ___ 9,6..?.Q_ __ 9,650 _ _ 9,650 _ _ ~50 
Prol'erty & Liability billings - _ i-----
GF Overhcad costs-=-_ ~1------t----:--~-
Caoital -
Sub-total Expenditures 

Revenue less Exoenditurcs 

Vector Bome Dtseases 

Revenue: 
Other-Charncs. for Service;-
Suh-total Revenue 

1s1.ooo I 

-'-----~---3-1-~-43_,_I -

31 ,743 

187,000 226,007 208,236 208,237 

15.993 9,764 9,763 

49,096 1- 62,590 - - 4-6-,0-00_ , __ -42-.000-

49,096 62,590 46,000 42,000 

- -·- - ------- ---1---

-----1-----1 
- ----1.-----

208,23(, 208.236 208,236 

9,764 I 9,764 9,764 

42,000 42,000 42,000 
- __ ,_ 

_EX_!.!.CDdltu~·es: ------ - - --- -- f- - _,_ - - - - - - ---

Salaries & Wages 290,759 250,535 21 0,479 225,935 240,912 244,447 246,891 249,360.:.-1---'2:..:5...:;.l,8~ 
Intermittent Hourly_Position-; -f- 4 9,61T - - 47,237 - 42,67r,_ 55,699 --58,299- - 65-,0oo - 65,0(m ,_ _ 65.0oo -~,0°-9_ 
Group Insurance -44:m - "3(),30i .. .__ 25,m ,.__ 26,100 --3-o,fiT-- 29,83f ·- 30,578--31 ,342- 32,126 
Retirement - 61,036 55,lll 49,715-- 57,508 - 61-:056 67,J27 - 69,l JO - - 7'"'5'"",9'-2-2-1---7-6,'--6-8-1

1 

Otl~r EmployccBcncflli - - 6,615 (>,l!OO -s.738_,_ 6.302--6,352 - S,804 -- 5 ,804 5,804- s_,804 
co-;:;tracti f1rofosSiOrnil srv~ -- - 34,606 16,317 17,630 . 13,640 - 9,095- --9,SoO -- 9,s oo 9,500 9,500 
cliemieal Supplies (Vector only) - 3·21.49?----U,S,304 . - 23 t ,490 231,398 - 231,437- - 231,soo 231,5001--231,"'-5.:...00-l--231,500 
Fleet.Managementhillingt;~'--- -3i~73.? 42,46?__=· 22,646-._23,889,_ 14,349 -:Js.!.?90 =34,4~ ._ 36,510 37,78X_ 
Propcrty&Liabil~billings__ _ 1,5~- 2,512 2,151 2,107 _ 2,107 2,107 __ _b!07 2,107 2,107 
Other ServicE!_~md Su~plies 117,238 118,099 __ 106,999 -~1954 I 04,335 108,361 108,361 108,! 6!_ _ 108,361_ 
GP Overhead costs - - - - - - - -
Capital-- ------~ - --_- --- - - -- ----+--- --- - - - - - -- - - -- -=- -
Sub-total Expenditures 959,399 834,689 I 114,918 758,533 778,252 803,332 815,407 820,721 

Revenue less Exnenditures (921,742) (802,946)1 (665,822) (695,943) (732,252' (760,168) (761,332)1 (773,407) (778,721 

Appendix A Page 11 of 14 H:\My Documents\Special Projects\Forecam\F~b 2015 Health DIWlct 3 Year Forecast.xis 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, C urrent Estimates, FVJ6 Recommended Budget a nd Projections to FY19 

Actual ETC Bas~ P1·0Jccted 
l' I ZIHU· l'I -'Vil• I' I -'Ul l• I' I ZUl 3- a•·y :.lUl <t• l'I -'UI:>- r • · .iu1CJ- l'I 1Ul7• l'I ZUHf· 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Hn'{!!.nlous Mntel'/a/s 

Re"""" P~-= 
- -

,_ - - - - -~ ---Federal & State Grants_ _ 75,0<JO 75,000 75,000 1!.750 - - - . . --- - - --Federal & State Jndin:ct Rev. - - - - - - . - . 
Sub-total Revenue 75,000 75,000 75.000 37,750 - - - - . 

--- - ,_ - -- - -- -Expenditures: -- - - - >- -- - - - - - -----Salaries & Wages 56,642 ___22,341_ 53,813 22,698 - - - . . 
-- - - -·--- - ---- -- --lnumnitlent Hourly Positions - . - - - - - - . 

Group Insurance 
-- -- - -- - - 1-----___ 6,407 7,634 7,593 3,012 - - - - -- ---- ----- --- -- -Retirement 10,762_ 12,80~ 12,841 5,916 - . - . . 

Other Employee Benefits - >- -- --- - -- ,__. - -1,19.Q_ 1,217 753 324 - - - . -- - - -- - --- -- ,.... - --Other Services and Supplies . - . 5,799 - - - . . 
GF Overhead costs 

- -- - -- - ---- ----,_ --. . . - - - - - -------- --
____ ,_ 

- - -- - -- -- -- --Capital - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total Bxnenditurcs 75,000 75,000 75,000 37,750 - - - - -
Revenue less Expenditures - . - . - - - - -

- -- I- ---- - -- --

Appendix A Page 12 of 14 H:\My Occum.nts\Specl1I Prcjects\F0ree8Sts\Feb 2015 Health Oi!trlc:t 3 Year Foreca•t.xls 



Washoe County Health Dislrict }'und 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FYl9 

Actual t;TC Base 
l<Y 1'U LU-

20Jl 
r Y "u1 I- l''Y ~u- l''Y :lUIJ- .. • :lUi..- ... l' 20.15- l''l' .tU IO· 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

EPLDEM IOIJOGY & PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION! 
Emerge11c11 Medical Services 
Revenue: 
Miscellaneous 

-t~---· 
19,180 49,446 ~ 

Sub-total Revenue 200 

- __ ,____ 
Expenditures: _ _ _ __ 
Salaries & Wages 60,998 9~,862_ ,_ 95,775 
Intermittent Hourly P.ositions - - -
~-ro~.£.!:i.~ran~c ... . -~~ S,456 10,361 
Retirement 8,310 16670 
Othc=r Employee Benefits _ ,_ - 1,763 ,_ 1,916 -
ContracUJ'rofessional Srvs - - ,_ 8,000 ---- -

10,333 
17,340 
1.980 

Property & Liability billings 760 654 687 

48,905 
19,180 48,905 49,446 

,_ ------ ---1-

----·- --- - -
42.463 __ 121A_I!_ _ J.!7,1 32 _ 1s9,003 

- .. ....!.Q!38~ -- - - -
1,765 -- 17,47!__ __ 26,338 =- J6,996 
7,186 32,483 - 52,034_ - 52,921 
1,353 --- ~552_ - _3 ,437 3,437 

28 -- _2~ __ 25,000_ 25,000 
673 673 673 673 --

ProJcctcd 
Il l' :lUH • 

2018 

50,676 
50,676 

-
190,8~ 

Other Services and Sueplics - =-i!~61~ - 5,794 -· I &6_5_ 

27,67J 
58,121 

3,437 
_ 25,000 

673 
14,fai'" 1,488 __ IO,J 28 _ 14,181 _ ~~I ·-

OF Overhead costs - -
Capital 

_,_ __ 
------·I-

Sub-total Expenditures 79,353 136,264 127,721 71,338 191 ,546 308,795 312,212 319,977 

Revenue lcs~ Expenditures 

Epldemlologv S1m,ei/lance 
Revenue: 
Federal & State Grants 
Federal & Stale Indirect Rev. 
Other Charges for Services 
Miscellaneous 

(79,353) (136.064) 

143,239 
8,931 

546 
25 

288,775 
6,393 

l 

(127,721) 

128,554 
11,226 

(71.338) (l 72,366) (259,890) (262,766) (269,301) 

128,331 
17,617 

35 

124,940 
12,260 

!_24.!?2.Q_ 
15,480 

I 

124,520 
15,480 

I 

Sub-total Revenue 152,741 295,168 139,780 145,983 137,200 140,000 140,000 140,ooo I 
_,_ -

Expenditures: 
Salaries & Wage~ 
Intermittent Hourly Positions 
Group Insurance 
Retirement 
Other Employee Benefits __ 
Contract/Professional Srvs 
Biologicals 

450,936 
237 

- 62,851 
95,766 

9,941 
18,259 

21 
Outpatient ___ l.~4 
Fleet Management billings 
.~!.<!.[>ert~.~--~i!,lb,i lity billin~s _ . 
Other Services und Supplies 
GF Overhead costs 
Capital 
Sub-total Expenditures 

998 
6,080 

653~f -: 

111.854 I 

-
466,770 

_64,069 
109,831 

10,101 
39,992 

1,199 
1,817 
6.!678 

42,?67 

145,876 
888 ,901 

Revenue less Expenditures (559,113)1 (593,733} 

464,034 
454 

63,718 
I 08,900 
10,048 

525 

2,434 
1,065 
8,043 

475,920 

60,708 
121,456 

10,265 
13,429 

554 
1,579 
1,182 
7,480 

444,333 _ 

67,690 
124,329 

10,6[ 9 ,_ 

397 ,22(~ - 401, 192 405,204 
~o 500 soo 

64,152 65,756 67,400 
134,166_ 135,334 146,371 

_!Q,574 _ 10:574 - 1 o,574 
_ 13,600 13,600 13,600 

JOO - 100 100 
2,135 2,135 2,135 

12,672 11,405 12,083 
- 7,480 _2_,480 7,480 

22,025 22,025 22,025 31,005 
310,292 

13,027 
352,086 

. 13,600- -

120 
l ,?00 

10,863 
7,480 

22,101 
337,076 -- 343,817-- 350,69f 351,101 

1,000,5 1!! l,057,686 1,039,711 I.008.441 1,020,794 1,045,178 

(860, 738) (9 l 1,703) (902,511) (868,441) (880.794' (905,178' 

I' 1' :lU 10-

2019 

51,180 
51,180 

192,802 

28,363 
58,702 
3,437 

25,000 
673 

14,181_ 

323,159 

(271,979} 

124,520 
15,480 

140,000 

409,256 
500 

69,085 
147,605 

10,574 
13,600 

100 
2,135 

12,506 
7,480 

22,025 
364,861 

1,059,726 

(919,726) 

Appendix A Pnge 13of14 li:\My Oocum• nt•\Specl•I Projecu\forecasu\feb 2015 Health District 3 Yea r For...:•st.xls 



Washoe County Health District Fund 
History, Current Estimates, FY16 Recommended Budget and Projections to FYl9 

Actual ETC Ba_se Projected 
rl' ww-

2-011 
r Y .iull- 1•Y .iui2- r 'Y ZUIJ- l' Y l?014- •• 20~ I'\'. 2016- l' Y .iU I /• 

2018 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Public llealtll Prepared11ess 

Revenue: _ f 
Federal & Slate Grants 
Pederal & State lndirect Rev. 
Sub-total Revenue 

l ,0~1_.292 
19,884 

1,05l.175 

I 

Expenditures: _ _ 

908,864 
26,196 

935,060 

-
Salaries & Wages 572,694 498,706 
Intermittent Hourly Positions 662 - 3,976 
Group rnsuraiice-- --- --- - 67,085- 60-;939 

Retirement _ .!_!i.469 117,~6 

Other Employee Benefits _ _ 11,792 _l_Q,331 
Contract/Profesr;ional Srvs __ ,_ 12;_422 _ ~ 21, !!9 
Biolo~icn ls _ _ 392 284 
fl_~~ .1':.1!!!!!8£.~£!11 billings 3, 130 _ 1,698 
Property & -'::!.~~!~!!i'_hillings ___ _ - _ -
Other Services and Supplies __ }2~?.8?_ _ 85,767 
GF Overh~d costs - -
Capit11I 25,137 

1,150,279 
66.755 

1,217,034 

491 ,703 
23,300 
52,523 

11 6,366 
11,374 

297,009 

3,901 

152,955 

'1,072,374 
130.033 

1,202,407 

581,273 

67,281 
145,666 

12,843 
167,081 

835 
10,727 

88,651 

960,60~ __ 8_8_0,'--0_22_ ,_ 
44,000 60,805 

1,004,600 940,827 

----

_!!80,022 
60.805 

940,827 

~5,380 588,713 586,826 
9J.92 - 1,000 =-1.ooo 

6 1,420 - 66,084 67,736 
135,!J..~ - 163,761 164,311 
12J77_ - 13.2.!2_ 13,219 

__ 73,560 - 9,553 9,55.l_ 

3,116 3,151 2,836 - ---'--

34,~41 

----- ___ ,_ 

880.022 l-
60,805 i 

94tl,827 

574,392 
1,000 

69,430 
174,883 
13,219 
9,553 

3,005 

34,541 

Sub-tolal Expenditures 1,041,070 900,426 1,149,131 1,074,358 971.479 880,022 880,022 880,022 

Revenue less Expenditures 10,105 34,634 67,904 l28,049 33,121 60,805 60,805 60,805 

Jl/111/ Stlltistlcs 
Revenue: 
Birth & Death Certificates 
Sub-total Revenue 

1--359,72-st- 439,91 0 
I 359,725 439,910 __ ,._ 

-Expenditures: __ 

476,829 1-
476,829 

Salaries & Wages 93,032 94,851 99,889 
Group Insurance __ -_--- 14,391 14,971 14,931 
Retirement _ J9,995 ,_ 22,412 23,699 
Other Employee Benefits .. __ 2,275 2,3 l 7 2,420 
Contraclf Professional Srvs 4,496 5,352 2,664 
Property & Liability billings 760 934 982 

457,596 465,000 l--470,000 - 474.700 - 479,44~ 
457.596 465,000 470,000 474,700 479.447 

l02,26( ~ 153,821 _ 177,648 179,424--181,219 
14 •. 931_ - 20,742 - .l_?,936 26,584 27,249 
26,230 38,642 - ~.425 - 50,239 55,175 
2,533 3,_7~ ___ 4,120 - - 4,1 20 4,120 
5,924 6,600 6,600 6,600 6,600 

962 962 - - -9(,2 962 962 -- ---- --

ry .iu1 ll· 

2019 

_!18f.022_ 
60,805 

940,827 

572,981 
1,000 

71,165 
174,453 

13,219 
-22_5]_ 

3,110 

34,541 

880,022 

60,805 

484,241 
484,.241 

183,Cl3J. 
J:..7,930 
55,727 
4,120_ 
6,60Q_ 

962 
Other Services an~ Suppliti ==- - 25,400- - 18,402 __ 17,647 18,196 --~·3_8z_ __ 20,895_ - 20,89~- 20,895 -·-·- },9!89~ 
GF Overhead costs - _ _ - - ------Capitul - _ _ 

Sub-total Expenditure!l 160,349 159,240 162,232 17 1,036 244,934 285,586 288,825 296,220 299.265 

Revenue less Expenditures 199,376 280,670 314,597 286,560 220,066 184,414 185,875 183,227 184,977 

Appendix A Page 14of 14 H:\My Oocuments\Special Projects\forecasts\F•b 2015 H<!•lth 01$ttlct 3 Ye•r Forecast.leis 



Intentionally left blank 



Appendix B 
Washoe County Health District FY16 Recommended Budget 

Expenditure Fees, 
County General 

0;., Fees, 
(Exp.) Total Fund Support % of GF 

(include• Cou nty 
% of Charges for (GF) & Opening Charges for & 

OverltcJ\d Total Gran t Indirect Services, & Total Fund Balance % O/o Services, & Opening 
11lloc11tion) Rxp. Revenue Revenue O ther Revenue Required Grants Indirect O ther Fund Bal. 

ADMINISTRATION: - l Office of tho District Health Officer 558,908 1 2.8% - - - - 558,908 0.0% + 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% - ------ -
Administrative Health Services 1,034,0l9 5.2% - - - - 1,034,019 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 1,592,921 I 8.0% - - I - - 1,592,927 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 

2,710,8071 13~6% " 
-

26,?%J 1.2% I 55.7% = -AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT: - - ,_ __ 
Air Q~a.~i!¥.!?i~isi<?.~ 711,003 31,542 l,510,632 2,253,177 457,630 16.9% -
COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES (CCHS): 
Chronic Disease Prevention 490,224 2.5% 285,769 13,821 - 299,590_, 190,634 58.3% 2.8% 0.0% 38.9% -- - - - ,. ___ 
Community & Clinica!._ Health 1,373,615 6.9% - - - - 11373,615 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% - - - ·- - -
Family Planning 93 1,871 4 .7% 780,688 23,312 59,000 863,000 68,87 1 83.8% 2.5% 6.3% 7.4% - - ,_ __ 
l1mnunizations 1,174,523 5.9% 295_,619 39,434 130,500 ~_253 2 08,970 25.2% 3.4% 11.1% 60.4% 

- -----
Maternal, Child & Adolescent Health 172,922 0.9% 53,118 _ 5,144 - 58,262 114,660 30.7% 3.0% 0.0% 66.3% 

- - - - · 
Sexual Health - HIV 437, 17~ 2.2% 437,172 33,38 1 - _ 470,553 (33,38 1) 100.0% 7.6% 0.0% -7.6% ,_ -- .._ - -
Sexual Health - STD 704,692 3.5% 119,519 l 0, 110 25,400 1 55,0~9_ 549,663 17.0% 1.4% 3.6% 78.00/o 

~ 
,.__ - - - - -

Tuberculosis 631,173 3.2% 94,431 6,564 5,400 l 06,39?__ 524,778 15.0% 1.0% 0.9% 83.1% 
-- ---

Women, Infants and Children 1,225,724 6.1% 1,059,144 3,000 - 1,062,144 163,580 86.4% 0.2% 0.0% 13.3% 

TOTALCCHS 7,141,915 35.7% 3,125,460 134,766 220,300 3,480,526 3,661,389 43.8% 1.9% 3.1% 51.3% 

ENVIRO NMENTAL HEATLH SERVICES DIVISION (EHS): 
Envimninental Health Services 2,509,783 ~6ti - - - 1 446,028 446,028 2,063,75?__ 0.0% 0.0% 17.8% 82.2% -- - - - - -- - - --
Food Protection · 1,892,15 1 ~.5% 63,000 ~300 579,000 648,300 1,243,85 1 3.3% 0.3% 30.6% 65.7% - - - ·-
Safe Drinking Water __ 81 ,2~ _Q.4% - 81,230 ~770 - 90,000 (8,770) 100.0% 10.8% 0.0% -10.8% 
Solid Waste Management 567,22_3 _ - 2.8%~ - 493,548 493,548 73,675 0.0% 0.0% 87.0% 13.0% - ·- ... - ··· ---- - ---
Underground Storage Tanks 208,237 1.0% 208,236 9 764 ~ - 218,000 (9,763) 100.0% 4.7% 0.0% -4.7% 
Veetor Borne Diseases 

- -- -~ 42,000 ---
802,168 4.0% 42,000 760,168 0.0% 0.0% 5.2% 94.8% 

TOTAL EHS 6,060,792 30.3% 352,466 24,834 I 1,560,576 1,937,876 4,122,916 5.8% 0.4% 25.7% 68.0% 
I 

EPIDEMIOLOGY & PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION (EPHP): 
Emergency Medical Services 308,795 _ ~ 1.5%~ -

- ~ 
48,90~ 48,905_ -~9,890 0.0% 0.0% 15.8% 84.2% -- - --

Epidemiology Surveillance 1,008,441 5.0% 124,520 15,480 - 140,000 868,441 12.3% 1.5% 0.0% 86.1% -
Public Health Preparedness 880,022 4.4% 880,022 60,805 - 940,827 ~0,805) 100.0% 6.9% 0.0% -6.9% -- ~ - - - _- 470,000 

-
Vital Statistics 285,586 l.4% - 470,000 (184,414) 0.0% 0.0% 164.6% -64.6% 
TOTAL EPHP 2,482,844 12.4% 1,004,542 76,285 518,905 1,599,732 883,112 40.5% 3.1% 20 .9% 35.6% 

TOT AL H E AL TH DISTRICT s 19.989,285 100.0% SS,193,471 $267,427 $3,810,413 $9.271.311 s 10.717.974 26.0% 1.3% 19.1% 53.6% 
Note: The bru>e general fund transfer as of February 2015 is $I 0,076,856 

Appendix B Page I of 1 H:\My Doc11onen1s\Special J>rojec1sWorecn1s\Fcb 2015 Hc~llh District 3 Year Forecast.xis 



Intentionally left blank 



Washoe County Health District History of Budgeted Full-time equivalents (FTEs) Appendix C 

F..U,.TJme 
rct!ltton 

F\'JC>t$161l'ntl m~ Pat11hm.Cmmt EflUh"alnt 
'Iota! (FTE) 

FYll FY12 F Y 13 FY 14 FY15 Full Part On-call/ Position F\'201!''16 

Title of FTEs FT Es Ff Es FT Es FTEs FT Es Time Time Seasonal Count IJ'lm.:tllm 
lumr~ ,_ - -ACCOUNT CLERK LOO 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 l 0 0 1 1.00 

ACCOUNT CLERK II 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 (} 0 0.00 
ADMINISTRA TTVE ASSIST ANT l 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
ADMfNISTRATIVE ASSIST ANT II 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEAL TH SERVICES OFFICER 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 l 0 0 1 1.00 
ADMINISTRA TJVE SECRET ARY 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3 0 0 3 3.00 
ADVANCED PRACTITIONER OF NURSfNG 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.38 0 3 l 4 2.17 
ATR QUALITY SPECIALIST II 7 .00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8 0 0 8 8.00 
AIR QUALITY SUPERVISOR 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
COMMUNITY HEALTH AIDE 7.45 7.45 7 .45 6.60 6.38 6 0 I 7 6.40 
COMMUNITY HEALTH NUTRITIONIST 2 .00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
DEPARTMENT SYSTEMS SPECIALIST 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2 .00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
DISEASE INTERVENTION SPECIALIST 4.00 4 .00 4.00 4.00 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
DIRECIOR OF PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1 0 0 1 1.00 
DISTIUCT HEALTH OFFICER 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 I 0 0 l 1.00 
DIV DIR AIR QUALITY MGMT l.00 1.00 l.00 LOO l.00 1 0 0 l 1.00 
DIV DIRECTOR-CCHS 1.00 l.00 l.00 1.00 1.00 1 0 0 l 1.00 
DIV DIRECTOR-ENVIRONMENT AL SERVICES 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 I 0 0 1 1.00 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COORDINATOR 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 l.00 I 0 0 l 1.00 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES PROGRAM MGR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1 0 0 l 1.00 
ENVIRONMENT AL ENGINEER II 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
ENVIRONMENT AL HEALTH AIDE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.44 0 0 1 1 0.00 
ENV.IR.ONMENT AL HEALTH SPECJALIST 21.40 21.40 21.80 20.75 20.80 20 0 1 21 20.66 
ENVIRONMENT AL HEALTH SPECIALIST SUPVR 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3 0 0 3 3.00 
BPI CENTER DIR.ECTOR l.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 LOO 1 0 0 t 1.00 
EPIDEMIOLOGIST 2.00 2.40 2.20 2.05 2.40 2 0 l 3 2.01 
FISCAL COMPLIANCE OFFICER 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SPECIALIST 1.00 1.0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
HEALTH EDUCATOR COORDINATOR 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2 .00 

Appendix C Page I of2 H:\M y Documents\Budget\FV 2015-2016\Health fYlG FTCs.xlsx 



Washoe County Health District History of Budgeted Full-time equivalents {FTEs) Appendix C 

F~Tlme 
l'osltf<m 

J'V»1! l'l6-- • PO!fltlcm Ceum .Dquh'8fent 
Total (IT[) 

FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 F Y 14 FY15 Full Part On-call/ Position F\'2015'16 

Title of FTEs FI Es FT Es FT Es FTEs FTEs Time Time Seasonal Count (llnn• :llJ-J 
flttur 1 - -

HEAL TH EDUCATOR II 3.00 3.18 3.10 2.72 2.88 2 0 1 3 2.91 
HUMAN SERVICES SUPPORT SPECIALIST II 4.00 4.00 4.00 4 .00 3.00 3 0 0 3 3.00 
LICENSED ENGINEER 2.00 2.00 1.30 0.00 1.00 I 0 0 1 1.00 
LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE 1.00 1.00 J.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
OFFICE ASSISTANT I 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0 0 1 1 0.50 
OFflCE ASSISTANT 1I (1-2015 l reclass to OSS) 18.60 18.60 17.61 17.15 18.00 16 3 0 19 18.00 
OFFICE ASSISTANT Ill 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1 0 0 l 1.00 
OFFICE SUPPORT SPECIALIST 4 .00 4 .00 4.00 4.00 6.00 6 0 0 6 6.00 
PLANS/PHR.MITS/APPLICATIONS AIDE 4.00 4 .00 4.00 4.00 3.00 3 0 0 3 3.00 
PROGRAM COORDINATOR 3.00 3.00 3.00 3 .00 1.00 1 0 0 l 1.00 
PUBLIC HEALTH COMMUNICATIONS PROGRAM MC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1 0 0 l 1.00 
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY RESPONSE COORD 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
PUBLIC HEAL TH INVESTIGATOR II 2.30 2.40 2.20 2.05 2 .05 2 0 1 3 2.01 
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE II 13.25 13.25 13.69 13.15 14.40 13 2 1 16 14.40 
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE SUPERVISOR 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3 0 0 3 3.00 
PUBLIC HEAL TH PREPAREDNESS MANAGER 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 LOO I 0 0 l 1.00 
PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER 3.00 l.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
PUBLIC SERVICE INTERN 3.39 3.51 2.76 2.26 2.17 0 0 1 l 2.54 
REGISTERED NURSE I 6.89 6.89 1.21 1.30 0.90 0 0 1 1 1.88 
SR. AIR QUALITY SPECIALIST 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3 0 0 3 3.00 
SR. ENVIRONMENT AL HEALTH SPECIALIST 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6:00 6 0 0 6 6.00 
SR EPIDEMIOLOGIST 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1 0 0 1 1.00 
SENIOR LICENSED ENGINEER 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
ST A TISTICIAN 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.53 1 I 0 2 1.53 
STOREKEEPER 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 I 0 0 1 l.00 
VECTOR BORNE DISEASE SPEClALIST 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.00 2 0 0 2 2.00 
VECTOR CONTROL COORDINATOR LOO 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 I 0 0 1 l.00 
WIC PROGRAM MANAGER 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1 0 0 I 1.00 
TO'l\U.i.~\IJJ'll DJJl'ftUIC'PIJ'l!l!S ~IJiJM 1165A 1t~n 'l~ "~ It» 9 11 11 1~ 4'!Un 

Appmdix C Page 2 of2 H:\My Documents\Budget\FY 2015-2016\Health FY16 FTEs.xlsx 



I 

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 

Recommended FY16 Budget 

DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

KEVIN DICK 

Appendix D 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEATLH SERVICES OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

ANNA HEENAN KEVIN DICK 

10 FTE's 4 FTE's 
I I 

Fiscal District Board of Health Support 
Human Resources Public Information 

Technology Quality Improvement 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
CHARLENE ALBEE ROBERT SACK 

18.0 FTE's 43.70 FTE's 

I EPIDEMIOLOGY & PUBLIC HEALTH 

COMMUNITY & CLINICAL HEALTH PREAPREDNESS 

I Monitoring/Planning SERVICES RANDALL TODD 

STEVE KUTZ General Environmental 19.55 FTE's I Permitting/Enforcement 
54.76 FTE's 

Food Protection 
Safe Drinking Water 

Solid Waste Management Emergency Medical l Chronic Disease Prevention Underground Storage Tanks Services 
Community & Clinical Health Services 

t 

Vector Borne Disease Epidemiology Surveillance 
Family Planning I Public Health 
Immunizations Preparedness 

Maternal, Child & Adolescent Health Vital Statistics 
Sexual Health - HIV & STD 

Tuberculosis 
Women, Infant and Children 

Total FTE's 150.01 

Appendix D Page 1 of 7 



I 
Admin Secretary 

Dawn Spinola 
PC 2151/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Office of the District Health Officer 
Recommended FY16 Budget 

DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
Kevin Dick 

PC 0173/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

j>ubli.e Hea,lil) Cpmmuni~ations 

Program Manager 
i>bil l:.l libari;l 

PC 3·2·~6/+.0 FTEt40 h.r. 

Apptmdix D Page 2 of7 

I 
Director of Programs & Projects 

VA~ANT 

PC ¢2·'.!,2/l.0 FTE/40 br 

4.0FTE's 



Dept Systems Specialist Dept Systems Specialist 

- Steve Fisher - Brantley Hancock -
PC4851/1.0 FTE/ 40 hr PC 2187/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

FCO 

Administrative Health Services 
Recommended FY16 Budget 

Administrative Health Serivces Officer 
Anna Heenan 

PC ZZ79/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I 

FCO 
Patsy Buxton Erin Dixon -

PC 2272/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2273/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Appendix D Page 3 of 7 

II 

Admin. Assist I oss 
Laurie Griffey ,._ Edwin Smith 

PC 2170/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2150/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Acct. Clerk 
..__ Darleen Bid lake 

PC 2177/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

OA11 
,._ Molly Diaz 

PC 2140/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

OAll - Ashley Tatomer 
PC 2124/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

10 FIE's 



AQSupvr. 
Mike Wolf 

PC 2223/1.0 fTE/40 hr 

I I 
Sr. AQSpec. 

Environ. Eng. II 

Dennis Cerfoglio 
Collin (Willi~m) 

Emmerson 
PC 2266/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 230111.0 FTE/40 hr 

AQSpec. 11 AQSpec.11 
Suzanne Dugger Kristina Craig 

PC 2264/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2268/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

AQSpec.11 AQSpec.11 
Mike Osborn Joshua Res tori 

PC 2262/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2269/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

AQSpec.11 
Lauri Mendoza 

PC 2265/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I 

Admin Secretary 
Janet Smith 

Air Quality Management 
Recommended FY16 Budget 

Division Director -AQM 
Charlene Albee 

PC 2270/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I 
I I 

oss Public Service Intern 

Christina Burton Pooled PC0160/ 

PC 2157 /1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2176/1.0 FTE/40 hr 
Intermittent Hrly .OFTE 

not funded 

AQSupvr. 
Dan Inouye 

PC 2224/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

I I 
Sr.AQSpec. Environ. Eng. II 
Julia Hunter Yann ling-Barnes 

PC 2263/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2300/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

AQSpec.11 Sr. AQSpec. 
Daniel Timmons Craig Petersen 

PC 2267/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2260/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

AQSpec. I AQSpec ll 
Genine Wright Brendan Schnieder 

PC 2261/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2303/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

18.00 FTE's 

Appendix D Page 4 of 7 



PHN Supvr. 
Linda Gabor 

PC 0170/LO FTE/40 hr 

H .. lth Educator Coord PHNll 
Xelll Goatley-s .. ls Lynnie Shore 

PC 2169/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2215/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Health Educator II PHNll 
Nicole Albartl·Sooudf Kathy Dickens 

PC 0161/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC2199/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

He a Ith Educator f PHNlr 
fntermittent Hourtv Kllthy Sobrlo 

PC8377/.09 FTE PC 2284/1.0 Fl'E/40 hr 

Stor•beper PHNll 
Oala Brfce Nicole M•rt1 

PC 2179/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2203/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

055 
RN I 

Pooled Position Jessica cabr.11es 
PC4102/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

PCOl63/ Int Hourly 
1.88FTE 

OAll OA fl 
Virginia McDonald Josie Rtvera 

PC 2188/.60 FTE/24 hr PC 2126/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Public Ser•u lntet11 
Pooled l'o$1tlo!l OA ll 

Lorena ~lorlo PC8832/.0 FTE not 
funded PC 2125/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

OAll 
Graciela Flores 

PC2127/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Community and Clinical Health Services 
Recommended FY16 Budget 

Division Director - CCHS 
Steve Kutz 

PC 2281/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

PHN Supvr. PHN Supvr. 
Lisa Lottritz Stacy Ha rd ie 

PC0171/1.0 ITT/40 hr PC 0169/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

PHNll 
PHNll TB PHNll APN APN 

Olan-e- FrHdman 
Vf<.torr.a Nlcolson~ 

Becky koster Chris Cifelli Emily Ba mos 
PC 2216/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Hornblower 
PC 2283/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2191/.SS FTE/2 2 hr PC 2192/.SS FTE/22hr 

PC 2208/1.0 ITT/ 40 hr 

PH~lll TB PHNll PH~lll APN APN 

Judy Med1 .. d-Gonzalez Jun Houk Nicole Kfefna Theresa Goins Pooled Position 
PC 2197 /ln~rmruent PC 2217/.80 FTE/32 hr PC 0167/1.0 FTE/40hr PC 2204/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC857S .90FiE/~6hr Hourly .17FTE 

OA ll OAll PHNll CHA CHA 
Noelia Yaran S1ndr1 Maestas Cory Sobrio Isabel Chalde1 Ellzabot Muno• 

PC 2134/.60 FTE/24 hr PC 2128/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 22BS/lll FTt/40 hr PC 2183/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2185/ 1 . .0 FTE/40 hr 

CHA PHNll PHNU PHN ll CHA Peeled P<nllion Rebecc-a Gonnl-es Juffe Poml Angie Penny Ruth C.utllo 
PC 5200/.60 FTE/24 hr PC 2214/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2282/1.Q FTE/40 h' PC 2182/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 3SS7/lntwrmittent 

Hfly.o3ffi 

PHN II Pooled Position 
Health Educator Coard. OAll ass PC 795Zf.O FTE/ 

PHN II 
Holly McGee Jennifer Howell Ruben Estrada-Campos Marla Magana Intermittent Hourly not 

PC2210/t.o FTE/40 hr PC 2271/1,0 FTE/40 hr PC 2136/.80 FTE/32 hr PC 2153/1.0 FlE/40 hr 
funded 

OAll OAll 
Ana Gon2ale1 ClntMa Arredondo 

PC 2135/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2152/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

Health Ed""'tor II 
Pooi.d POJltlon 

PCn?S/ .82 FTE/15 
Intermittent Hot.1rrv 

Appendix D Page 5 of 7 

I 

WIC Prosram Mgr. 
Bev Dayan 

PC2288/1.0 FT£/40H1 

I I 
CHA HSSS II 

Pooled Position 
PC 7279/. 37 FTE 

Angela Tibaduiza 
PC VJ07/1.0 FTE;/40 hr 

I I 

Comm. Hlth. Nutrit. Comm. Hlth. Nu[ri1. 
Janel Piette Sunlta Monga 

PC 2221/l.O FTE/40 hr PC 2220/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

- -
OAU OAll 

carmen Mendoza Tlm8ultmn 
PC 2142/1.0 ITT/40 hr PC 2141/1.0 FTf/40 hr 

OAll OAll 
Julio Pech-Garcia Ulia Sandmial-Huffman 

PC 2144/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 212z!l.O FTE/40 hr 

OAll CHA 
Marla G.Jlmenez Maria Rodriguez 

PC 2143/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2308/1.0 FTE/40hr 

OtA 
Frank C.Uble 

HSSS ll 

PC 2123/1,0 FTf/40 hr 
~ Marb?lla caballero 

PC2167/1.0ITT/40hr 

CHA 
Jacqueline Chaldot 

PC 2306/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

HSSS II 
Irene Ramos-Hernandez 
PC 2309/J.O FTE/40 hr 

54,76 FIE's 



Food 

Environmental Health Environmental Health 
Specialist Supervisor Specialist Supervisor 

Dave McNinch Tony Macaluso 
PC 2256/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2256/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I I 

Sr. Environmental Heatlh Sr. Environmental Heatlh 
Spec. Spec. - Kathleen Hanley - Jeff Brasel 

PC 2228/1.0 FTEt40 hrs PC 2226/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Sr. Environmental Health Environmental Health Spec. 
Spec. - Amber English - David Orozco 

PC 2227/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 2234/1.0 FTf/40 hrs 

Environmental Health Spec. Environmental Health Spec. - Brenda Wickman >- MarkWicl<man 
PC 2244/1 .0 FTE/40 hrs PC 2243/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Environmental Health Spec. Environmental Health Spec. - Scott Baldwin >- Byron Collins 
PC 2232/l.O FTE/40 hrs PC 4852/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Environmental Health Spec. Environmental Health Spec. - lee Bryant - Kim Tran Franchi 
PC 2248/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 2254/LO FTE/40 hrs 

Environmental Health Speo. 
Trainee II Environmental Health Spec. - Dianna Karlicek 

>- Latricia Lord 

PC 2255/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 2242/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Environmental Health Spec. Environmental Health Spec. 
Trainee I Trainee I - Chantelle Batton - Charles Gray 

PC 2235/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 4736/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Environmental Health Spec. 

'--
Pooled Position/ 
J Fuller..J Saum 

PC 3618/lnl Hourly .66 FTE 

Environmental Health Services 
Recommended FY16 Budget 

Division Director - EHS 
Robert Sack 

PC 2280/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Vector I Waste Mgmt/Land Dvlpmt/SDW 

Vector Coordinator Environmental Health 

Jim Shaffer Specialist Supervisor 

PC 2259/1.0 FTE/40 hr James English 
PC 2257/1.0 FTE 40 hr 

I 

Vector-Bome Disease Spec. Sr. Environmental HeaUh Sr. Environmental Health 
Spec. Spec. - Jeff Jeppson 

Mike Ezell -- Luke Franklin 
PC 2251/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

PC 2253/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 2230/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Vector-Borne Disease Spec. Environmental Health Spec. 
Sr. Environmental Health 

Spec. - Will Lumpkin Nick Florey -- Dave Boland 
PC 2250/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 2249/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

PC 2225/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Public Service Intern Environmental Health Spec. Licensed Engineer 
...... Pooled Position Krista Hunt - - Chris Anderson 

PC2165/lnt Hourly 2.13 FTE PC 2233/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 229911 .0 FTE/40 hrs 

Seasonal Vector-Control 
Aide Environmental Health Spec. Environmental Health Spec. - Pooled Position Richard Sanchez ...... - Dave Kelly 

PC 8715/lnt. Hourly .OFTE not PC 2247/1.0 FTE/40 hrs PC 2245/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 
funded 

Office Assistant I Environmental Health Spec. Environmental Health Spec. 
Pooled Position/ Teresa Long -- Mark Dougan 

._ KMcMain& PC 2'l.22./l.O FTE/40 hrs PC 2239/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 
J Salim 

PC 8831/lnt. Hourly .50 FTE 
Public Service Intern-Pools Environmental Health Spec. 

Pooled Position/ 
Scott Strickler ...... - Amanda Leighton PC 2240/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

PC 2166/lnl. Hourly .41 FTE 

Environmental Health Spec. 
Public Service Intern 

Vacant Mike Lupan -- PC 5653/lnt. Hourly .0 FTE not PC 2231/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 
funded 

Environmental Health Spec. 

I Wesley Rubio -
PC 2238/l.O FTE/40 hrs 

Appendix D Page 6of7 

Admin Support 

Admin Assist. I 
Paula Valentin 

PC 229611 .0 FTE/40 l'\r 

I 

Plans/Penn its - Applications Aide 
DeniseCona 

PC 2174/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Plans/Permits - Applications Aide 
Susan Lampman 

PC 2173/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Plans/Permits 

,__ Applicatlons Aide 
Trudy Enfield 

PC 2175/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

Office Assistant II 
...... Susan Henkes 

PC 4853/l.O FTE/40 hrs 

Office Assistant II 

- Mary dauson 
PC 2132/1.0 FTE/40 hrs 

43.70 FTE's I 



I I 
Public Hlth Prep Mgr EMS Program Mgr 

- Jeff Whitesides Christina Conti-
PC 6876/l.O FTE/40 hr Rodri~JJez 

PC8981/1.0,FTE/40 hr 

PHERC 

- Sara McConnell-Dinga EMS Coordinator 
PC 4308/1.0 FTE/40 hr Brittany Dayton 

PC2289/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

PHERC 
,_ Andrea Esp STATISTICIAN 

PC 2292./1.0 FTE/40 hr 
V,,l\~/,l['ff, 

PC 89~9/.53; FTE/21 hr 

Health Educator I/II 
>-- Cara Ann Argall 

PC 3551/l.O FTE/40 hr 

Prog. Coord. 
.__ David Gamble 

PC 6650/l.O FTE/40 hr 

Epidemiology & Public Health Preparedness 
Recommended FY16 Budget 

EPI Center Director 
Randall Todd 

PC Z293/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I I 
Admin. Sec. Epidemiologist 

Jeanne Harris Susanne Paulson 
PC 2158/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2290/l.O FTE/40 hr 

I I 
Statistician Epidemiologist 

Elena Varganova Melissa Bullock (Peek) 
PC 22.02/1.0 FTE/40 hr PC 2291/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I I 

oss Public Hlth Invest II 
Cindy Hawks Heather Holmstadt 

PC 2149/1.0 FTE/40 hr PV 2206/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I 

Public Hlth Invest II 
VACANT 

PC 5975/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

I 

Public Hlth Invest II 
VACANT 

PC 7951/.0l FTE/ Int Hrly 

I 
Epidemiologist 

Pam Young 
PC 7950/.01 FTE/lnt Hrly 

Appendix D Page 7 of 7 

I I 
oss Sr. Epidemiologist 

Sandi Bridges Lei Chen 

PC 2146/1.0 fTE/40 hr PC 2295/1.0 FTE/40 hr 

OAll 
Norma Jackson 

PC 2145/l.O FTE/40 hr 

I 
OAll 

VAC.A.N;T: 
PC 85180/1.0, FTE/40 hr. 

19.55 FTE's 



Intentionally left blank 



\Vashoe County Health District AppendixE 
Components of Fund Balance 

FISCAL YEAR 2014 (FY14) FUND BALANCE: -
Pollution Control Fund NRS 4458.830 (IN20288-restrictcd for program.s related to the 
improvt:ment of the quality of the air per NRS 4458.830 section 2d) $ 233,982 
DMV Excess Reserve FY14/15 NRS 44SB.830 (IN20392-restricte<l for programs related to 

the improvement of the quality of the air per NRS 44513.830 :>ection 6) 312,389 
-- --

Tire Fees (restricted for solid waste management per NRS 444.616 section l(d) & 2) 458,107 -
Robert Wood Johnson Grant (IN20385) 52,886 
Medical Reserve Corps-NACCHO Grants (IN10655) 10,879 

1 $ -
Sub-total restricted as to use within the Health Fund 1,068,243 [a] ---- -- --
FY14 Fund balance used for the Qpening Fund ofFY15 666,788 
Reserved for budgeted ending fund balance in FY15 -- 125,399 

Unanticipated reimbursement from County Equipment Services Fund (ESD) for 
prior year replacement charges paid on grant funded vehicles that were not owned by 
ESD but by the Health District therefore should not have been paid 46,450 
Balance of fund balance is mainly due to salary and benefit savings on position held 
vacant during the year 248,919 

FY14 ENDING FUND BALANCE 
,_ 

$ 2,155,799 
I 

FISCAL YEAR 15 (FY15) OPENING FUND BALANCE $ 2,155,799 fb] 
----

FYlS Estimate to complete: 
Budgeted Revenue for FY 15-anticipate receiving the original budgeted revenue 18,901,863 -
Antic.ipated changes compared to Opening Budget for FY15 Revenue: 

Additional Licenses and Pennits revenue 16,413 
Additional Funding in Grants and Restricted funds 483,643 
Reduction in revenue for Charges for Services - (29,381) 
Increase in Mi'«:ellaneous Revenue 21,794 

Total Estimated FY15 Revenues (incl General Fund transfer) I 19,394,333 [c) -
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $ 21,550,132 [b]+fc] 

Budgetc~Expenditures for FY IS-anticipate spending the original budget (19,443,252) --Restricted funding carried over from FY14 (a) is assumed to be 100% spent (or is already 
spent) so that it would not fall to fund balance and be reallocated to general operating 
expenditures - excludes the portion that we rebudgeted in FY 16 (b) (1,052,064) [a] less [e) 

Anticipated changes compared to Opening Budget for FY15 Expenditures: 
-

Savings in Salaries & Benefits due to vacancies reduced the budgeted expenditure level -- 82,619 
Savings in Services & Supplies cot related to grants & restricted funding 145,976 
Savings in Capital not related to grants & retricted funding 39,492 
Additional Expenditures due to additional grants and restricted funding (512,375) 

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $ (20,739,604) [<lJ 

FY15 ESTIMATE TO COMPLETE ENDJING FUND BALANCE $ 810,528 [bJ+[c)+[d] 

FISCAL YEAR 16 (FY16) ANTICIPATED OPENING FUND BALANCE $ 810,528 
FY16 Recommended Budget: . -
Restricted Tire Fee revenue in FYI 5 (IN20269) rebudgeted FY16 (16, 179) [c] ---- -- -
Estimated FY16 Revenues (incl General Fund transfer) 19,348,167 -- -
Estimated FYI 6 Expenditures (excluding the restricted funds rebudgeted (h) in FY 15) (19,973,106) 

11F'Yl 6 RECOMMENli>ED BUDGET ENDliNG FtJND BALANCE $ 169,4Hl 

Appendix E I of I H:\My Documents\Budget\FY 2015·2016\Revised $810k fund balance.xlsx 



STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 26. 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Leslie H. Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
775-324-3297, Ladmirand@da.washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Review, discussion and direction to staff regarding the provisions of the Interlocal 
Agreement (ILA) entered into by the Cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County for the creation 
of the Health District.  Take action to accept the ILA in its current form or direct staff to forward any 
recommendations for possible amendments to Reno, Sparks and Washoe County.  

SUMMARY  
Section 7(c) of the Interlocal Agreement requires annual review of the Agreement by the Board and 
that recommendations for possible amendments may be made to Reno, Sparks and Washoe County.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Strengthen WCHD as an 
innovative, high- performing organization. 

BACKGROUND 
On November 27, 1972, the governing bodies of the Cities of Reno and Sparks and the County of 
Washoe formed the Washoe County Health District by adopting an Interlocal Agreement in 
conformance with the provisions of NRS 439. 

The Interlocal Agreement was amended in August of 1986 to delegate to the Health District the 
powers granted to the Cities and County to displace or limit competition in the grant of any franchise 
for ambulance services. 

The Interlocal Agreement was further amended in August of 1993 after a legislative revision to the 
composition of the Board of Health pursuant to NRS 439.390.  The revision required the seventh 
member of the board, the member appointed by the other six, to be a physician. 

There have been no further amendments to the Agreement. 

This item will be calendared for review annually. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There are no fiscal impacts for the Board’s review of the Interlocal Agreement. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10



RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the District Board of Health review, discuss and provide direction to staff regarding 
the provisions of the Interlocal Agreement entered into by the Cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe 
County for the creation of the Health District.  Staff further recommends the Board take action to 
accept the ILA in its current form or direct staff to forward any recommendations as discussed for 
possible amendments to Reno, Sparks and Washoe County.  

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to accept the 
ILA in its current form or direct staff to forward any recommendations as discussed for possible 
amendments to Reno, Sparks and Washoe County.” 



····----'. _L_ 

WEEREl'l.S, the· District Board of Health qf Ren.a, Sparks 

and Washoe County \Vas created in 1959 in accordance ·with Nl1.S 

439.370; and 

\-lHEREAS, said Dist::i:ict Board of Eealth has been and is 

now cc;irnposed of r-epresentatives appointed hy the Board of 1'1ashae 

County Commissioners, the Reno City Council and ~parks City 

Council 1 ~ogetber with one member ·appointed by ·snid District 

Board
0

"0·f Healthr all in aCcordance w·ith ~TRS 439.390; und 
J.iJ: 

WHEREJ>..S, officials representihg the cities of Reno . . 
, and Sparks and the County of \Vashoe entered into an informal, 

unwritten agreement in the spring of 1962; by which, agreement 

the County of ~iashoe was ta· assume r~sponsibility for the funding, 

campensatiOn. and administ~ation of the District.Eealth Depart-

ment and District .Health Officer 0£ Reno, Sparks and Washae cou:ii;.Y 

and the Cities Of Rgfio arid ~parks w~re to contribute to the fund

ing o:f said District Health Department and Officer by relinquish

ing their right to re!=eive certiain moneys from t.'rie tax revenu·es 

based on tl1e assessed' property valuation within the juri.sdiction 

of each aforesaid political subdivision; and 

\'lHEREAS, pursuant to the aforesaid .-3greem.e.nt, the 

6.maunt of tax rev~nues received by tl1e County of \'lashoe have 

been increased and the District Health Department has been ad-

ministered and funded as a DEpartment within w·ashoe county Govern-

ment under the supervision of tli.e Board of t'J'ashoe County Commis-

Sioners; and 

i'11-IEREAS, it is in the best interests of the county of 

w·ashoe and cities of Reno and Sparks to regularize and normaliz2 

the operations of the.District .Health Department of Reno, Sparks 

and Washoe Count.Y by setting forth in a \'Tritten agreement the. 

exact terms and conditions of the afor.r:.said informal agreement 

respecl:.ing the aaministration ana funding of said. Health DepaL·t.-

men t. 



----------------· ~.L. 

NGI'1. TBEREFORE, BE IT RESO:!:..VED·.t:.hat the District Bo.:trd 

of Health of Rena, -?parks, ana was~Oe county requests that the 

City Councils of Reno and Sparks and the Boarcl of Washoe County 

Corruniss_ione!:s enter into a writlen cooperative agreement pursuc.nt 

to Chapter 27i 0£ the Nevada Revised Statutes setting forth the 

terms and -canditio_ns of the informal ~greernGnt which has· 11ereto-

fore existed among saia political· subdivisions with respect to . . . . 
the operation, adm~nistration, and funding of the District flealth · 

Deparf.'Jirent ~£ Reno, ~parks, cind iVashoe county, 'it'.icluding but not 
,,, 

limited to t11e folloWirig matte:i:s: 

1: The percentage of such Hea.'lth Department's annual 

budget, including compensation of the Dis_trict Efealth 

Officer, to be providea by, the Cities of Renq ana Sparks 

and -t;:he County 0£ 1'1ashae respectively; 

2. Th17 _designation o·f-· the" local gave-rnrnant responsib~~. 

for tli.e actual aa~inistrai:ion and operation of said 

District Bea.1th D.ePiJrt.rnent, inciuding matters r~lated 

to.the juri!idiction aila ·control. of Health Department 

employees .. ·such i3S the responsibility fo:!" providi1lg. 

for the health-benefits, unemployment.benefits, and 

retirement bcn~£its of said employeGs; 

3. The.enumeration of th~ powers and duties of saicl 

District Board of Bealtl1 i'lith respect to saia Health 

Department and the.District Ilealth Officer. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of the District 

Boa.id-of Health of Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County forward the 
·c 

above request ana a copy of this Resolution to.the Area Council 

of Governments, the city managers and city attorneys of Rt:!no and 

Sparl>.s and the was:rioe. county Manager and the Chief Civil neputY 

District Attorney of ~·Tasl1oe Col1nt?r'" together with the directive 

0£ this Board t11at said officials immecliately begin the Drafting 

of the ;:;foresaia cooperative agreement, so t11ut sa.J..c'I At-ea Council 

-2-



·... --·---·-~---·---. 

of Goverrunents can forward this matter to the local governments 

for execUtipn r.3 quickly 2s possible, t!~ereby regularizing and 

normalizing the operatio!Js of· tne aforesaid District Health 

Department. 

IT IS FINALLY RESOLVED that upon the execution of the 

aforesaia cooP~iative agreement, the. original copy be forwarded 

by the .responsible officials of the cities of Reno ancl SparJi;;s 

ana the county of Washoe to the Chairman of the afqresaid District 

Boara of Health for inclusion in the ·official minutes of saia Board. 

~·.,,., Proposea on th.e 21st day of March, 1912·. ,,, 
Proposed by Dr. Myl_es. 

Passed on thG 21st day of March, 1972. 

Vote: 

Ayes: 

· N2yes: 

Absent: 

~·- - -·- : .... 
Mayor John E. Chism 

CoITLrnissioner D\.,iqht A. Ne1son 

Councilmaii Micl1ael R. Schulz 
.. 
Dr. Robert I\. Myles 

Dr. J. Stephen Phalen 

Dr. Frank c. Stoke's 

!1Toi1e 

None 

f6_;J{dAl c.24v&: ri-.-~ 
calrman of the District l!.oara 
a·f Heal t11 of Reno; ~par.ks, and 
Vlashoe County 

ATTEST: . 

· /lti!fd~L/]>r- ::J.f) 
Secretary of tbe District Board 
of Health of Reno, Sparks, anO 
itla shoe county 

-3-



. •··. ,..:=.....-:._. ..... 

I " 
/: 

I 
_,--.. --t .· ' 1Vf1I·:REAS, n IIe.alti1 District \•.1ith a Hcal::h Depa;:.=m-~1_rt.: 

i 

"· 

I 

·7) 
·---

... 
'· ' 

011·1]_ ·-

'· 

con~.!.sting o:= a District Ifealth Of:Ei-:cr and a District Eo.:ird 0£ 

}Jea;t.t!.1 af 11er.o, Sparks and t•Tushoe County, ·cor.iposed of r.e:pres~ata-

tivcs oppointea by t.l1c Board or ~·7ashoe Count::ir .. Com.l'.issio:-ie=s I the 

City Councils a£ Reno anC Spark.s, toget11er witb one mernb.ar app:::>in\.:cd ... 

by t11e aforesaia representatives of s~id Boar~ of }fe.t!ll:h, :J.11 iu 

accordance 't'li th !ffiS 439 _ 390, has bee-n created b~l a Resaluticrn .-
duly passed by t!H? uforesaia govcrr1ing boaies of 1·1ashoe Cour..ty 

and the. cities of Rena and Sparks, all o~ '\Jl1ich a-re politic2l. 

suhdi\'isions 0£ the State of ~i°o;?Vada; and 

tVHEH.EAS, the Di::;trict Board of Ee3lth of Re!"lo, Sparks 

and t'lashoa County l1as e::ercised since. its creation all the po\o1c.rs, 

duties ana authority as a District .Boi?rd of He.al th pu-::s·oant to 

Chapter 43!:1 of the Nevada F.ec·ised Statute"; and 

~lHEREf\S, the County of t-Ja.shoe and the City of Reno and 

the City of Sparks, acting through t11eir respective goyernlng 

boaie:-s, desire to regularize and normalize: the operations of -:.i:!2 

aforesaid District H.ealth Departntent Ei.n::l District Eowrd of Hea.ltl!, 

thereby mci}:.ing the ·mast efficient use of ·their po•,.,ers t::!ld rcsou=ces .. 
in providing health ser"rices and f2cilities to t.he residents a= 

tbe aforesciicl E!ea.:!.th District; 

NOtV, .T}lEREFOill, BE IT RESOL"VED as folla·,rs: 

I.. DISTRICT BOAP.D OF HEALTH OF \·TASHOE COUNTY f!E!'-:.L'l'H 

DISTRICT: 

appointm2nt and qualifications of memb~rs of 

,.saicl Eoilrd. 11 

l. 'l'he Di·stricl: tir u.rd of I!calth of ~cno, 

Sp8.rk.s •• and \•Tashoe County !:hull h.::::rc.::iftcr 

-1-



. ' 

'l·-. --;~- ... _ ... ,:--:-:-, __ ,, .... . . . __ , 
,, 
. : •. 

.. 

i' ~ 

• .. 
I 

I : 

. ..... 

·.:. 

·- ~ . 

1 . 
·.:·. 

. · 

of Washoe County Health District and shall 

consist of Seven m~mbers as follows: Two 

members shall be a;::po:Lnted by the Mayor af 

the City of Reno with the consent of the Reno 

City Council 1 T\·10 members shall be appaintea 

by the }layer of the City of Sparks with the 

consent of the Sparks city Council, Two 

··· .'. members shall .be appointed by the Chairman 

. ,' 

of the Board of I\Tashoe Count_{· Cpmmissianers 

·With the consent of sai9 Board, ana One additi-

anal member shall be chosen arid appointad by 

the aforesaid members appointed to the District 

.Board !"f Health of Washoe County Health District . 

2. Each of the members of the District Board 

of Health of Washoe county Health District 

·: .. ... appointed ta said Board by the Mayors of Reno 

· ... 

·:. 

· · or Sparks or the Chairman of the Board of .. · 
l\l'asboe county Commissioners shall be. ap.pointea 

.to serve either a Two year or Four year term 

corrun~ncing on _January 1, 1973, and each member 

so appointed or any ne\'1 such member may be 

" reappointed or appointed to serve any number 

of Two year or Four year terms upon appropriate 

action by said Mayors and Cliairman ana the 

respective governi:.3 bodies.of the cities, f 

.Reno and Sparks and the County of Washoe • 

. 3. The member chos2n and appointed by the 

afu:csaid mc:nbcrs· ap;>ointca to the District: 

Board of llcalth of >'l<ishoc County Health Diftrict 

,by the Mayors of tho Ci tics of !<eno and Sp< rk!l 



.. 
.. ... ".-.. . .. •' 

I 

... 

..... 

_. ~ . . 

J 

and the Chairm<Jn of the Board of Washoe County 

commissioners shall be appointea to serve CJ. 

Two year term commencing on January 1, 1973,, 

. and saia member or any ne\'1 such member so 

appointed may be reappointed or appointed ta 

. serve any number of T\110 year .. terms upon appropri

ate action by the other aforesaid members c£ 

the District Board of Health of Washoe County 

Health District. ·-· 

4. If any additional incorpo~ated towns or 

citi.es. are formed in the County of ~Vashoe, 

State of Nevada, the governing body of each 

said town or city shall appoint Two members 

·to serve on the District Board· of I-Iealtl1 of 

Washoz County H.ealth District for a Tt.·10. year 

or Four year term, subject to reappointment 

as set forth in Paragraph 2. above; in_this 

event, the number of ntembers comprising saia 

,District Board of Health sha:tl.be increased 

·accoraingly and all other p~ovis~o~s of.this 

,-

Agreement shall be made to conform to the 

new conditions created by the inc~eased number 

of mentbers an said Board. 

5. Not.less than One of the Two members of 

the District Board of Health of Washoe County 

Health D~strict appointed by the Cli.airmen of 

the n:aard of l•Tashae County COm.'Tlissioncrs .:::;hall 

be a physician licensed to practice·'med.icine 

in the state of ~evaaa. 

6. If the mc;:i!Jcn of the Di.strict Daar::l a: 

Health oE l'/ashoe L'•~<.rnty HcaJ.th Di,;trict 

-3-



... " 
.. 

. . 

I 

I. 

.-. 

appointed by the Mayors of Reno and Spork.s 

and the Chairman of the Board of Washoe 

County Commissioners fail to c~oose the / 

additional member ••it:_hin Thirty days after 

January 1, 1973 or at any time thereafter 

when the term of said additional member 

expires, said memb~r may be appointed by 

the Nevada State Health Officer. 

7. No later than January 31, 1973, the 

·appointed rnen1bers of the District Board of 

Health of the Washoe County Health District 

shall meet and elect a Chairman ana Vice-

Chairman from among its members and such 

other officers as said Board deems necessary 

'to carry out its as.si9ned functions in accord

ance with this Agreement; and said Chai.:onan 

ana Vice-Chainnan and any other officers so 

elect.ea shall serve a t"tvo-year term :from the 

date of their election in Ja~uary, 1973, and 

they or their successors shall be re-elected 

or elected for any nurnb~r of succe~aing t\oJo

year terms .by the members serving on said 

Boa1:d when . any t\'/O-year term of each afore-

said offi~er expires. 

8. The District. Board of riea1th 0£ '\\"ashoe 

County Heal th District is 11ereby authorized 

to establish any 9.·oceaural rules for the 

org~nizat~on of meetings of said Board on a 

icgulur boGis und to odopt any other aper-

ational or praccdur·c:il rulC"s and guidelines 

to C'C.1rrY out tho n :;signed !unctions cind 



I 

I 
I 

duties of saia Eourd in an efficient und 

orderly munner .. 

B. Powers 1 du ti.es, authority and jurisdiction 

of District Boara of He:=ilth of Vlc::ishae County 

Health District. 

1. The District Eoard of Health of Washoe 

County Health District shall e..xercise all 

powers, duties and authority, including rule 

·making authority, conferred on a dis.trict 

board of liealth in Chapter 439 of the Nevada 

Revised Statutes and any·o~her.powers, duties, 

and authority conferred on suCb a board by 

either the Nevada State Legislature or the 

Nevada State Eoard of Health. 

2. The District Board of Health of Washoe 

County Health District shall have jurisdiction 

over all pub:I,i.c. h~.alth matters in the Washoe 

County I-Iealth District, the boundaries of 

which are coterminous \'1ith the Coun:ty of 

Washoe, State of Nevada. 

3. The District Board CJf Health of Washoe 

County Health District shall appoint the 

District Health Officer, \.,rho shall ser•Je at 

f.he pleasure of said District Board of fieal th. 

4. The District Board of Health of Washoe 

County Health District shall, pursuant to 
( 

t"he statutory po\'1El.3 and auties conferred 

on. said Boarcl: 

Cc.unty llc:ult11 1 ibtricl: in accorcl.:.i:--t".:r.:: 

with lniJ 

-s-



·. 
·-~1 

.'! 

,. 

'· 

,, ,_ 

·'' ,, 
.... 

" .,-<. 

' ., 

5. 

'· 
l;;. Take wl1att::.v1:::r dt..;LJ.t:iL i::i ne.cessary 

to control c~ncagious or infectious 

or cc:nmunicable aiseases l'tTithin ~'12.shoe 

· county Health .Jistrict, including all 

necessary ste?s to restrarn, quarantine, 

and di sin feet any person sicJ~ \'Ii th or 

exposed to such diseases that are 

dangerous to the public health; 

c. [oversee ell sanitary conditions ·1 .. 1ith

in. the Washoe County Health.Distric;J 

and 

a. Promote and protect the public 

health generally by establishing and 
l 

·implementing a comprehensive health 

program, including all appropriate 

measures to prolong the life and to 

·promote the physical well being of t~e 

People of ~'lashoe. Count.y, State of Nevada . .... 
The District B:iard of Health of Washoe 

county Health District shall direct the 

District Eealth Officer or his authorized 

representative~ to make periodic insp~ctions 

of any. establishment, build.ing- or a,..,elling, 

ve't1icle or area t\l"ithi-q the tVashoe County 

Health DiStrict far the purpose of determi

nin~~ \·.'hether. or ncr'. said placesr structure?., 

or locutions campl.:,r ·.\l"it11 all state and local 

'hc.alt.h regulatio:is and !"l~i:!l tl-l requirements 

or stancl"rds. 

6. ~'he D.istr.ict Bc 0ard of lleulth of \'lushoc 

County !lc'1lth Dist: ict muy- clirect the Distr!.cl: 



. . . . 
.. 

': 

•. 

Health Officer to disseminate information 

Health or Nevada Stote Health· Officer to . 

other public agencies, persons, boards, et~~, 

or to any other p~~sons, firms, corpors.tior1s, 

or entities iii thin the Washoe County Heal th 

District and to cooperate with the Nevada 

State Board ·of Health and Nevada 'State Health 

·officer or ,.,,ith other agencies in p~rnoting 

the pul,lic health within the Washoe County 

Health District. 

7. The District Board of H~alth of Washoe 

County H:aalth District shall. cooperate with 

the Board of Washoe County commissioners or 

.£ts authorized representatives in the admini

stration of the District Health Dep~rtment 

of l'lasboe County Healtl1 District in the manner 

as.hereinafter set forth, except that the 

District Board of Health of Washoe County 

flealth District is hereby declarea to be 

supreme in all ng_oadmi~i.:;;tra.~i~e_.~c.:_al "t:h .. I?atters 

arising within the ~lasl1oe County .Health District .. 
vis-a-vis any other local governing body or 

entity. 

C. Preparation of annual budget; accounting £0~ 

fund.s of District Health Department of l·7ashoe 

County Health District supervision of Distric' 

f!ealth Department of i'7ashoe County f!colth District .. 

L,, On or ,.bout thee 1st clay of January of 

~ach year tl1c District D::Jard of IIcnlth of 

Washoe co1111ty Health District shall rcc•iew 

-7-



: . 
I 

'I 

.. 
; 

. . ~ . . .. 

the proposed annual budget for the oper~tion 

of the District Health Department of l'lash"!" 

County Health District submitted by the 

District Health Of·::i,cer, which budge,t shal"c · 

include the compenSation to be received Dy 

the District Health Officer of Washoe County 

Health District. 

2. Following review and approval of the 

proposed.- annual budget as stated above, either 

the Chairman of the District B:>ard of Health 

of Washoe.County Health Disti:-ict or the District 

·Health Officer shall immediately forward same 

to the County Manager of the County of Washoe, 

the City Manager of the City of Reno, and 

the City Nanager of the City of Sparks for 

their review, recammena=ations 11 and ultimate 

approval. 
. ·: 

3. Upon the approval of the proposed annual 

budget of the. District Health Department of 

the 1-lashoe County Health Di.stric~ by the afore

said f.!anagers in accordance with the preceding 

paragraph, the Washoe county Manager shall 

include said proposed budget in the annual 

budget to be adopted_ by the Eoard of Washoe 

County Commissioners for the operation of ali 

divisions, depurtrnents, agencies, offices, .etc.,. 

of ~•'ashae County government; and said l·Ianager 

shall forward a copy of the approved District 

I-lcal~th Depurt:nent b·tclg~t to 1:11e Chairman of 

the Di.strict Do~rcJ vf HcaltO of t'1u.s11ae ·Coun :.y 

Jlcal th Dis t:r ic t. 

-[]-



; 

' ' 
.. 

I 
'i 
I 

· .. 

"· 

. . . 
.-

: 
. 

.. 

cannot reduce, inc~ease, or ather·w·ise altcJ. 

an· annual budget fer the District Health 

Department of ~'lashne County Clealth J;listrict 

approved by the aforesaid Managers without 

adequate notice to the Reno .City Council and 

Sparks City .Council and without obtaining the 

reconuneri<lations of botl1 said Councils or their 

:- authorized repres.entatives concerning any 

budget alteration . 

5. Neither the District Health Department 

nor·the District Health Officer of Washoe 

county Health District may petition the Boara 

of l'lashae county Co~issioners to increase 

or otherwise alter an approved budget for the 

Di£,trict flealth Department t.-Jithout obtaining 

prior approval of the city Councils of Rena 

a~d Sparks; However, nothing contained herein 

shall prevent the t-V_ashOe County ~"lanager. from 

malting or reco:r.menaing .an interfund transfer 

of funds under the control of the Board of 

lV"ashoe County Commissioners i:E done lav1:fully 

within t11e provisions of t11e ~1evaaa Local 

Government Budget Act, PROVIDED such transfer 

shall not materially affect the funding of or 

the tax levy to .be.permitted for the support 

of said District I!Galth De;;iartment by the 

Cities of H.eno ancl Sparks.. 'In addition, ~ny 
.-

nonlocal funds rcc.2i vccl Curing uny fiscal y':!t:!.'.'.." 

from other soUrc~s, such· as the stEite nn.:J 

Fedcr<ll Governments·, m<ly bo ac1dcd to CJn UP!·Covt: .. i 



.· 

' . i 
.. 

! 

l, 

budget of the ·District Health Departrn.ent by 

th~ t'lasl1oe County l•lanager upon recom.'llendation 

of the District Health Officer or District 

Board of Health without the prior approval of 

the City Councils of Reno and Sp~rks. 

6. All local funds, Le. thos'e t'o be provided 

each year in accor~ance with the provisions 

herein by th·e parties to this Agreement, for 

.the ope~ation 0£ the District Health Department 

of l·~ashcie County f!ealth District must be 

appropriated by the Board of Washoe county 

Commissioners on or before the start of each 

fiscal year from available tax revenues or 

any other source of monies or revenues avail-

able to ana under thi control 0£ saia Board. 

7. ~1he Board of t·lashoe county Commissioners 

or its authorized representative shall requ~re 

the District Health Officer 0£ said District 

to ·keep a proper accounting for all e.>:penses 

incurred in the operation of tfle DistriCt 

Health Department of said District. 

8. No obligations shall be incurred or paymen.ts 

made in the operation of said District Health 

Department, except by the approval of the 

District Health Officer af ~2id District or · 

by his clesigne.e. All such approved claims 

shall be submitte.:i to the Office of the \"ln~hoe 

County Comptroller for paymqnt by the County 

9.. 'I'he \Vashoe Cour.ty Trcc:15urer 1 s Office s: ,llll 

be· clesignntcd as c"ic Office ta ancl from wh· ch 

-10-



.· 

1.' 

funds o.E the aforesaid District Hcal.\·h 

Department shall ht:• clcpasi tea oi dispersed. 

10. The District Bonrd of EeaJ.,'th of l·l•shoe 

County Health Distiict shall supervise all 

public haalth progr~ras of the aforesaid 

District Health Department and shall auth

orize new public health programs upon t11e 

recommendation of said District Health OfficEr, 

providep sufficient funds are available to 

implement and operate such programs at the 

time they are authorized~ Notbing contained 

herein shall preclude the three go1Jerrunents 

from cutting back on any programs authorized 

by District Board of Healtl1 if insu£ficient 

local funds are av.!iilable t.o maintain such 

progran1s. Nothing contained herein shall 

preclude the parties to this Agreement or 

their respective .toiJenagers from reco.:n;nenaing 

and approving an annual budget £or the ap~r

ation of .the Dist~ict Health Depart~ent of 

Washoe County Health District that may result 

in the r8strir.tion of or 'elimination of any 

public health prngrams ~uthorized by the 

aforesaid District Bozircl of Hea.ltl1 if. in

sufficient local funds are.available to 

maintuin such programs. 

II. DIST!UC'.l' HEALTH OFFICiO« OJ:' WASHOE COUNTY HEAL'J'a: 

DIS'l'RICT: Quulifica tions; pow·ers; Cuti es; responsi

bili lics; ~11cl removal frora GCfic~. 

I\. ThC! District. IJc.:iltl. (1ff:jc:cf 0£ the \·/2.sh-:J::-> :.-,11~1i::.' 

11.:.?~llh Di!:it:rict r;hall ·.Jc c11Jp::>inted by tft~ Oi:...r:·ir_:L 

-11-



'.• 
I 

I 
I 
I 

Board of HO!alth of Washoe County llewlth District, 

Health District durins the tenure of his offi~o. 

B. The District Health Officer shall hold office 

at the pleasure of th~ District Board of H"'altn 

of Washoe county Health District, but he shall 

not be ·removed from office except upon a 2/3 vote 

of all members o.f the District Board' of Health. 

c. Qualif.:.cations of District Health Officer of 

Washoe County Health District. 

1. The District Health. Offi.ce:i;- of the Washoe 

Cou~ty Health District shall have the follow

ing basic education and experience: 

a. He shall have had a minimum of two 

years of premedical education, including 

courses in the natural and social sciences 

and humanities; 

b. He shall have graduated with a degree 

of doctor of n1edicine from a medical scbool 

·of recognized stanaing; 

c. He shall have served an internship 

' and/or residency 0£ at least one year in 

an approved hospital; 

d. He sl1all be licensed and in good stand-

ing to practice. medicine in ·the State of 

Nevada; 

e~ He shall t3ve gr2aUated or have or~ained 

at least one year's tri'.lining at the graau.::tc 

level from an accr~Uitca school of pcb~ic 

hc!;:lth, or, in tl1c c:iltc~rnativc, he: ~11~1ll 

-12-

.. 



.. 

"' 

I . 
' 
I. 

ing in pt1blic heal th or gen,,,rill pnov"nti ve 

£. Ee._ shall h-.we 11ad at least throm 'y<ears' 

experience in " public health agency w1'ich 

includes plann.:!d and supervisea·· instruction 

and .Participation in a co1nprehensivc public 

health program. 

" 2. The District Board of Health ·of Washoe 

County Health District shall have the power 

to waive or modify the ~ualifications of the 

aforesaid District Health Officer set forth 

in Paragraph C 1. above but only for good and 

sufficient cause 1 except said Board shall not 

waive t?e qualification that said District 

Health Officer must be a graduate of a medical 

school of recognized ~tanding or the qualifi-

cation that said District Health Officer sl,all 

.he licensed to practice medicine either in the 

_State of Nevada or one of the other states of 

the United States or the District of Columbia. 

3. Nothing contained berein shall be construea 

to prevent' any other1,,·1ise qualified person from 

·being appoinfea as ·the Dis.trict 1-Iealth Officer 

of Washoe County I-Ieal th District on 2:.ccoun~ 

of sex, race, religia~, Qr national origin. 

DM '11he District Health Officer of ~·lashoe County 

Health District shcill hav~ full authority ciS t 

county hc21.lth of:ficcr in t11c \·!ashoe County Iiealth 

District ~na sh~ll receive =uch co~pcn~~~i~n ~3 

is cigrced upon hy th·~ 90·;-._•1:":iin:1 bCJdic!J uf lh·:-

,• politicul suJ.i~livi!:iion: .. 1.<Jithiri ::;3j,cJ Ilc:ult?i D.i~-~~.:ic..:::t 

-13-



-. 

.. 

!. 
and as is included in the budget or the District 

Health Dcpnrtnient of said District submitted to 

the Board of tiashoc County Commis:=-t.Oners in the 

manner specified.in Section IC above. 

'E. '.!'he District Health Officer of saicl District 

is empo\vered to appoint such depUties, assistants,. 

:/. and other empl~yces of the a£oresaia District 

Health Department as may be necessary to carry otJt 

the authori.zed health programs of the t'l"~shoe count~r' 

Health District; and said. persons sl1all receive 

such compensation as provided in the approved 

salary schedule of Washoe County and as adopted 

by the Board of \-Jashae County Coiilffiissioners, pro

vided sufficient funds are available in the approved 

annual budget of said Dis.trici;:. Health Department. 

In addition, said District Hea1tn Officer shall 

comply with the provisions of Section III C. below 

in making any appointments to the staff of s2id 

District Health Department. 

F.. The District'. Health Offi.cer of \.Yashoe County 

·Health District shall require complete recorcls to 

be kept of all pubJic health programs adr.iinisterea 

by the aforesaid District Health Departn1ent.. 

G. The District Health Officer of Washoe. county 

llealth District, upon request, sl1all proviae the 

Wc:ishoe County !·lanager, the Reno City !·lanagcr, the 

Spar~s cit~r l·IanCJ.ger, ·.:t•~d the Chairman of t11e ..i..:'"ore

saicJ. District Board of Health with any desired 

report of the c:icti\'.i ti: .r. of t;l!c Dict:.""ict I1calt 11 

Dcpu~tn1cnt c1;': :· ... :'..:::ue Cc unty Itcaltf1 District. 

-14-



·i 

H. 'l'he District· I1i:!alth Officer of t'lus11oc county 

said District Board of' Heal th and Nevada Sta tc; 

health authorities and shall make suc11 reports 

or return such inform~tiart to said District Bc-Jrd 

of Health or Nevada St.ate Doard of Hcalth or 

Nevada State Health Officer as such Boards or 

Officer may require. 

I. The District Real th Officer of lV'ashae County 
. -

Health District shall be the chief executive 

officer of the aforesaid District Health Department, 

and he shall be responsible to the Vlashoe County 

Z.1anager and Board of t•lashoe Count1r Corrunissioners 

for tne proper administration of all affairs of 

said·Department not subj~ct to the supervision 

and control of the District Board of Esalth of 

Washoe County Health District as set £orth above. 

J. To perform his duties during his temporary: 

absence or disability, the District Health Officer 

of. Wasl1oe County Health District 1) shall designate 

by letter filed 't'1i th the ~'f';lsl1oe County !•tanager and 

Chairman of the District Board of Health of wasl1oe 

County Health District and b;[ proper notice to the 

staff of the District Health Department a qualified 

.Peison to act as adiuinistrative head of said 

~epartment with the tit.le of "Acting E.."(ecutivc 

Officer of the Distri;:-t He<>lti1 Departm:ont of W'lshoe 

County Hc<>lth District"; and 2) shall dcsign'1tc 

·by letter filac1 with the h1ashoe County ~-11:1n0gcr und 

Chai!:'mc:i.n of: tht:? Di~tri<;:t Da.:iid of Health of :·1,...1shoc. 

County r:1calth District and b}' prop~r nciticc. ta t~1~ 



I· 

i 

I 
! 
I 

III. 

staff of the Diztrict HO?alth Department a physician 

licensed to practice in the state of Ne:v2da \o'1h~1 

shall act as a can.su:t..:i.nt on all medical mtJ.tt.::!1:.:; 

0£ concern to the District Health Department ai:d 

its staff. In the event of failure of the DisLrici: 

Eealth Officer to make such designation, tbe District 

Board of Health of Washoe County Health District 

may by resolution appoint an Acting E..xecutii..re 

Officer of the District Health Department and a 

licensed physician 'tvho shall advise said Department 

on all medical matters. 

K. During any vacancy in the office of the District 

Health Officer other than said Officer's temporary 

absence or disability, the District Board of I-!ealth 

shall appoint an acting n'istrict Health Officer 

with the same qualifications as a District Health 

Of£icer 1 \'Iha shall have the powers an·a duti!=s of 

the District Health·Officer until a new Offi~~r is 

appoin_ted- No member of the District Board of 

Health of Washoe County Health District sha.11 be 

~pPointed acting District Health Officer_ 

DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTNENT OF WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH 

DISTRICT: Po\'vers; duties; ancl administra tio11. 

A.. .'J'he District IIealth Department of tiashae County 

Health District shall be cir9anized in the S'1Jne 

man nor as other di visions / depp.rtments, c:\S~ncies, 

offices, etc.. of ~\I' a she.-!. County government. 

B. The District Iiculth Dcpurt:ue:nt of t'1ashqa County 

Ilealth ·Di.ctrict sl1ull have jur lsalctio11 0•1cr c).l 

public hcalt11 .mutl:i!!rz lrizing \·Ji thin_ the ~·.·:i~hor 

County !Jenlth Di:.;trict llnd slii.ill have the rcsp·.'nsi-

·. 
-lG-

J 

.. 

·. 

! 



.-.· 

' .. · 

.·· 

' 

bility of implementing and enforcing all public 

healtl1 programs approv.:d by the District. Board 

of Health of Washoe (;aunty Health District. 

c. The Distri"ct Healtc1 Department of irashoe County 

l!ealth District shall be administered under the 

· · · auspices of t11e lVaShae County !·Ianag~ and Eaara 

of 't\l'asiloe County corrunissioners, except as ta those 

matters under the exclusive control and supervision 

· of the District Board of Healtli of -i;iashaa county 

Health District 2s enumerated above_ 

i. AJ.l personnel matters, except for the 

appointment or removal of su~li deputies, 

· a·ssistan ts. and other employees appointed 

by the District Health Officer of Washoe 

County.Health District, shall be regulated 

by those t·rasho~ County ordinances applicable 

to all Washoe County employees. 

2. ·said District Heal th Officer shall be··· 

charged wfth employing qualified person~el 

under the merit system established by the 

State of Nevada. until such time as tbe 

County of 1Vashoe devises a merit system 

for its employees that is acceptable to 

the Federal Government, at \·1hich time said 

County merit system shall apply. 

3.· All employees of the District Health 

Depc:irtrnent involveU in any Federal or ~;evc.ua 

State-assistec1 he2.ltl1 prog.!:";;ims sliall b;::? .sub-

ject to ull r.2gul2tions of the I.o!evadLJ 5'.:at~ 

Personnel S1.rstc1n w1 .• c1 . shc:Jll huve all rights . . 
accorcle!d to omploy 1.!1:1s in suid regulations. 

-l.7-



,, 
' 

'·. . . 

·. 

IV. 

4. All other employees of said Dist:-ict 

Health Departme.nt "'.1all serve at the pleasure 

of the District Health Office;,,, subject ta any 

applicaQ.le pro"visierns of ~qashoe Cou11;ty Ord:1.nan::e.S 

in force no\</ or in the future., 

D. 'The District Health Department shall be charged 

with the responsibility of cooperating with the 

District Board of Health of \Vashoe County I-!ealth 

District and the Nevada State health authorities 

·in carrying out and implementing all public health 

programs i.,rithin the ~Vashae County Health District. 

'nlis interlocal agreement shall be in effect for a 

Period of .one-year from January 1, 1973~ shall continue 

on a year-to-year basis, and shall _automatic~lly be 

renewed for a O_ne-year period an eEch ~nniversary date 

after January 1, 1973, unless either the Board of t·lashoe 

County commissioners or.the City Council of the City of 

Reno or the City Council of the City of Sparks serves 

by· certified mail on the at11er parties to this agreement 

a writter; notice of termination Fif·teen (15) days prior 

to_ the date of e:x:piratiqn (\'1hich shall coincic1e \·Jith 

each anniversary date of this agreement). in i·1hic11 event 

·this .agreement shall termin~te on the aay of ex~iration. 

AS used herein, the 11 eY.pirution · aate·" or 11 day of ex-

piration 11 shall refer to the last day 0£ this agreement 

or tJ1e last day of any exte:-iJcd One-year period under 

the terms of this asrccment. If no v1rittcn notice of 

tcrmir.ntio~ ... hus b~cn received by ·uny pE'lrty to this 

ai;;ire ~mcnt from any otficr pr=ir·:y to tl1i[; agrceracnt at 

the c:nd of any One-yuor pcric.r:J uftcIC the dote this 

-18-



·. .. 

.:· 

., 

'·· 

..; 

agreement coramences,. it shall automatically bP. rencvrcd 

for another One-year period and \'Jill continue in full 

force and effect during Such ren17\..ral .. -Ho,v-ever, nothing 

Con':ained herein shali prev1!nt any participating lot.al 

entity in any year nexL sucCeeding the election of any 

members to any governing body which is a party to this 

Agreement after January l,· 1974 from terminating th~s 

Agreement \'1ithout c·ause upon \'lritten notice to the 

other parties to this Agreement at any time up to Thirty 

(30) clays after said newly elected members are sworn 

into office .. 

v. 
All property acquired by the District H"'alth Department 

of Washoe County H2alth District during the term of this 

agreement shall be subject to the jurisdiction ana con-

... trol of the l?=Jara of t'1ashoe County Cbmmiss.ioners" except 

that property purchased with Federal funds •. Upon the 

tennination of this agreement, all property held for 

said District Health Department shall revert to and 

become t11e property of the County of Washoe, State of 

Nevada, except that t11e aforesaid property purchased 

with Peaeral funds must be disposed of by a pro?er agency 

of ~he Federal Government and compensation must be made 

to the cities of RenO 2na Sparlcs in proportion. to their 

'cbntribution to the District Health Department for the 

year inunediately preceding termination of this Agreement~ 

VI. 

The original copy of this agreement as signed by· all 

parties sh"ll be filed in t:- c Office of the \·/a.sl1oc:: 

c~Un.tY· Cler}~ \.o/ith. cJt.ipli~atc 'signed co~ies to be fil~:d 

in the Offica of the Rena CLty Cle:k and Office of fhc 



·-----. '• . 

'. ' 

- . 
• 

,. 

( .. 

. . . 

I. 

•• _I •• : 

··.···: ..... -. : ... .. 

.. 
Spnrks City Clerk and Office n f t:h" Distd.-::1: f!~;;l tli 

Of.Elcer. . . 
IN WIT:-!ESS WHEREOF, the par ties he·reto have exE?cu b:d .. 

thi.5:i. agreement 
0

i:IS of the day and year 2ppe2ring by the sign;;:1l'..1rcs 

below • 

.•, 

·/ 
"TITJ,E: Cl/ICF JJG"vTy ecc0<!1'( 

I 

THE COUNTY OF \·/ASHOE, STJ'.TE OF llEVADl. 
By and Through its BOA.RD OF COm<TY 
COMMISSIONERS 

By: r1?,_ · 1?_ . 
cfuf.tfnfhn ~ 

.··. 

THE CITY OF RENO By and Through its 
City c 0 uncil 

By ,<:/2iiv1_, f!rfbJY. &~-u~~~-
()1ayar 

DATE: N::ivember· i3, 1972 

.. ~t •.• • ·. : ..... _, . . ,:': .· .. ,· .... ;: . 

THE CITY OF SPARKS By and Through its 
City Council 

·~---< ,,('-'<L:0,{ 

DATE: :?(&l-z:r--:' 4'7,, /,f:Z? / 

. ... . . 

' ,. 

' ... ·.· . 



'" 
1101865 

AMENDMENT OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

CONCERNING THE WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Washoe County Health District has 

heretofore been established with a District Health Department 

including a District Health Officer and a District Board of 

Health, composed of representatives appointed by the governing 

bodies of the cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County, 

together with one member appointed by the members of the Boar.d of 

Health, all in accordance with Chapter 439 of Nevada Revised 

Statutes and an Interlocal Agreement adopted as of.November 27, 

1972, by those governing bodies; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Health of the Washoe 

( 
County Health District has exercised, since its creation, all the 

en 0 powers, duties and authority of a District Board of Health 

pursuant to Chapter 439 of the Nevada Revised Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the District Board of 

Health that certain revisions be made to the Interlocal Agreement 

by which the Board and the Department were created; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Interlocal Agreement Concerning the 

Washoe County Health District is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT CONCERNING THE 

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT HEALTR DEPARTMENT 

SECTION 1. Definitions, 

A. As used in this agreement, unless the context 

otherwise requires: 

1101865 



·' ' I 

I 1. "Board" means the Washoe County District Board of 

Health. 

2. "Chairman" ~eans the chairman of the Board. 

3. "County" means Va shoe County 1 a political 

subdivision of the State of Nevada. 

4. "Department" means the Washoe County District Health 

Department. 

S. "Health Officer" means the health officer of the 

Washoe County Health District. 

6. "Reno" means the City of Reno, Nevada. 

7. "Sparks" means the City of Sparks, Nevada. 

B. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

agreement or required by the context: 

1. The masculine ·gender includes the feminine and 

neuter genders. 

2. The singular number includes the plural number, and 

a... :::n the plural includes the singular. 

0 
3. The present tense includes the future tense. 

The use ~f a masculine noun or pronoun in conferring a benefit or 

imposing a duty does not exclude a female person from that 

benefit or duty. The use of a feminine noun or pronoun in 

conferring a benefit or imposing a duty does not exclude a male 

person from that benefit or duty. 

SECTION 2. District Board of Health; Creation; composition. 

A. The Washoe County District Board of Heal th, 

consisting of seven members appointed by Reno, Sparks and the 

County is hereby created. 

B. Two members of the Board shall be appointed by the 

Reno Council only one of whom shall be an elected member of the 

governing body. 

2 



:-.... 
C') 

v 
::::> 

J •.... _ 

C. Two members of the Board shall be appointed by the 

Sparks ~ouncil only one of whom shall be an elected member of the 

governing body. 

D. Two members of the Board shall be appointed by the 

Board of County Commis~ioners. One of those members shall be a 

physician licensed to practice medicine in this State and the 

other shall be an elected member of the governing b~dy. 

E. The remaining member of the Board shall be appointed 

by the other members of the Board at their organizational 

meeting. If the members of the Board appointed by Reno, Sparks 

and the County fail to choose the additional member within 30 

days after January 1, 1979 or within 30 days after the term of 

the additional- member becomes vacant or expires, that member 

shall be appointed by the State Health Officer. 

l.. :n F. Except as provided in subsection J, below, members of 

:::> 
c::z- the Board shall serve four year terms commencing January 1, 1979. 

:"J 'D Each member may be reappointed in the same manner as their 

original appointment to serve not more than two additional terms. 

Upon the expiration of this term of office, a member shall 

continue to serve until his successor is appointed and qualifies. 

G. Not later than January 31, 1979, the Board shall meet 

and conduct an organizational meeting. At that meeting, the 

Board shall select a chairman and vice-chairman from among its 

members and may appoint such officers from among its members as 

it deems necessary to assist it in carrying out its prescribed 

duties. The chairman and vice-chairman shall serve two years and 

until their successors are appointed by the Board and qualify. 

H. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or by 

law, a majority of the Board constitutes a quorum for the conduct 

of business and a majority vote of the quorum is necessary to act 

on any matter. 

3 



I. If a vacancy occurs on the Boa rd, the entity which 

appointed. the member .whose position is vacated shall appoint a 

person to fill the remainder of ~hat member's unexpired term. At 

the end of that term, the appointee may be reappointed to serve 

not more than two additional terms. 

J. When a person appointed to the Board as a member of 

the governing body of Reno, Sparks or the County no longer 

qualifies to serve as a member of that governing body, his term 

of office on the Board expires and a vacancy automatically 

occurs. That vacancy shall be filled in the same manner specified 

in subsection I, above. 

K. If the boundaries of the Health District are 

enlarged to include any additional political subdivision of the 

( State of Nevada, or if any additional political subdivison is 

created within the District's boundaries, the political 

subdivision, upon request, may become a party to this agreement. 

In that event, the number of members on the Board shall be 

increased by appointment of two persons by the political 

subdivision, only one of whom shall be an elected member of the 

governing body of that political subdivision, and this agreement 

shall apply in all particulars to the new party thereto. 

L. The Board may adopt procedural rules for the 

organization of its meetings and may adopt any other operational 

or procedural rules and guidelines to carry out their assigned 

functions and duties in an efficient and orderly manner. Such 

operational or procedural rules and guidelines must be consistent 

with the other terms of this agreement. 

SECTION 3. Board of Health; Jurisdiction; powers; duties. 

A. The Board,. through the Department, has jurisdiction 

over all public health matters in the Health District. 
As used 

4 



I. 

in this subsection, "Health District" means the lfashoe County 

Health ·District with boundaries conterminous with the boundaries 

of the County and as those boundaries may be amended from time to 

time. 

B. The Board may exercise all powers conferred on such 

boards by the Nevada Revised Statues, regulations and other laws. 

C. The Board shall perform, or cause to be performed 

through the Department, all duties prescribed by Nevada Revised 

Statutes, regulations and other laws. 

D. The Board of Health may exercise the power granted 

to the cities of Reno and Sparks regarding ambulance services 

specifically set forth in NRS 268.081 and NRS 268.083 and may 

exercise the power granted to Washoe County regarding ambulance 

( services specifically set forth in NRS 244.187 and NRS 244.188. 

In that regard, the District Board of Health may displace or 

limit competition in the grant of any franchise for ambulance 

service. 

E. The Board of County Commissioners shall assist the 

Board by providing the administrative procedures by which the 

Board, through the Department, shall exercise the powers and 

perform the duties specified in Subsections B, C and D of this 

section. 
However, the Councils of Reno and Sparks and the Board 

of Commissioners recognize and that ultimate agree 
County 

responsibility for establishing policies and procedures relating 

to public health programs rests solely with the Board. 

SECTION 4. Preparation of annual budget; accounting for funds of 

District Health Department; supervision of District Heal th 

Department. 

A. A proposed annual budget for the Department 

including estimates of revenues to be derived from service 

5 



a_ 
en 
0 
v 
N 
cc 

charges, permits, donations, contracts, grants and any other 

sources other than local tax resources for the budget period as 

well as planned opera ting expenditures shall be prepared by the 

Health Officer or his designee prior to the start of the fiscal 

year for which that budget is prepared and in accordance with the 

budget preparation time frame established by the County. Copies 

of the proposed budget shall be transmitted to the City Managers 

of Reno and Sparks and to the County Manager for their review or 

a review by their designated representatives. 

B. Prior to the adoption of a final budget by, the Boa.rd 

of County Commissioners, the Board shall review the proposed 

annual budget for the Department. Comments received from the 

City Managers of Reno and Sparks and the County Manager shall be 

presented to the Board for consideration as part of that budget 

review. The Board will approve a tentative budget for the 

Department and transmit that budget, in a format designated by 

the County, to the County for action by the Board of County 

Commissioners and inclusion within the County budget documents, 

being separately designated a special revenue fund known as the 

Health Fund in accordance with the Local Government Budget Act. 

C. The Board of County Commissioners shall allocate the 

local tax resources and approve a final budget for the Department 

using the same policies and procedures that are used to allocate 

and approve budgets for County Departments. However 0 the 

allocation shall not be determined on the bas is of the public 

health policies, procedures or programs established by the Board 

pursuant to Subsection E of Section 3 of this Agreement. The 

Board of County Commissioners shall notify the Board of the total 

amount of the allocation for each fiscal year. The Board shall 

be responsible for carrying OU t the public heal th goals, 

objectives and priorities established for the Department within 

the limits of that final budget as approved by the Board of 

County Commissioners. 

6 



·- ·--··-··-· -··- ......•• ·- --L ·-····-,··-·-- -------

D. Once the budget for the Department has been 

included within the final approved budget for the County and 

filed with the State irr accordance with applicable law, it cannot 

be reduced, increased or otherwise altered by the County wi thou.t 

the approval of the Councils of Reno and Sparks except under the 

circumstances hereinafter described. 1) Should it become 

necessary to increase the budget as a result of salary and/or 

benefit increases negotiated with recognized employee 

associations of the County in effect now and in the future, the 

budget for the Department will be increased by that necessary 

amount through appropriation of local tax resources by the County 

in the same manner as County Department budgets are increased as 

a result of those negotiations and in accordance with the 

provisions of the Local Government Budget Act. 
2) Any nonlocal 

funds made available to the Department from such sources as the 
"Q"' 
<q-·:::::i State or Federal government, foundations or through donations may 

en be adqed to the final approved budget upon approval by the Board 

a ~ and through action of the Board of County Commissioners in 

N a::r accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Budget Act 

and consistent with County policy or ordinance on budget 

amendments. Any proposed decrease by the County in the 

unappropriated fund balance of the Health Fund will be brought to 

the notice of the Board who may make comment to the County 

regarding the proposed action. 

E. The Health Officer or his designee shall keep a 

proper accounting for all expenses incurred and revenues received 

in the operation of the Department. 

F. No obligation may be incurred or payment made in the 

operation of the Department except by the approval of the Health 

Officer or his designee. 
Approved claims shall be submitted to 

the Office of the County Comptroller who shall execute payment of 

such approved claims. 

7 



···----. l. ________________________ : __ . __________ J _____________ _ 

G. The County Treasurer's Office is hereby designated 

as the office to and from which funds of the Department shall be 

deposited or disbursed. 

H. The County Purchasing De par tmen t is hereby 

designated as the office through which the Board shall exercise 

its authority under the Local Government Purchasing Act. 

I. The Board shall establish a policy for supervision 

of all public health programs of the Department. 

J. The Board may authorize new public health programs 

upon the recommendation of the Health Officer or his designee 

provided sufficient funds are available to carry out such 

programs at the time they are authorized. 

( 
K. In the event that grant, dona ti on, contract or 

foundation funds for a specific program are terminated, that 

en C> program will also be terminated, including its personnel, unless 

v C'-J it is determined by the Board that continuation of the program is 

co necessary and sufficient local t.ax resources are appropriated by 

the Board of County Commissioners for the program. 

L. If insufficient funds are available to maintain a 

program and it becomes necessary to restrict or eliminate the 

program, the Board shall notify the City Managers of Reno and 

Sparks and the County Manager of the proposed restriction or 

elimination. 

M. If an external fiscal audit of a grant or contract 

funded program requires a fiscal adju~tment in the benefit of the 

contractor or granter, such fiscal adjustment will be made within 

the existing appropriations of the Department. 

SECTION S. Health Officer; position created; appointment; 

qualifications; powers; duties and authority. 

8 



( 
A. There is hereby created the position of Health 

Officer of the Washoe ~aunty Health District. 

B. The Health Officer shall be appointed, and may only 

be removed, by a majority vote of the total membership of the 

Board. 
The Health Officer shall hold his position and .serve at 

the pleasure of the Board. He shall reside within the boundaries 

of the Washoe County ~ealth District. 

C. The Board may only appoint as Health Officer a 

person who possesses the qualifications set forth by law for that 

position. 

D. The salary of the Health Officer shall be 

(") 
established and approved in the manner. specified in Chapter 439 

( 
v 
"Q"" 

:::i 

of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

1-
0) 

a E. The Health Officer ls empowered to appoint such 

v 
N deputies and delegate such authority as he deems necessary to 

ca 
carry out the authorized health programs of the Washoe County 

Health District and those deputies shall receive such 

compensation for the classification designated as provided in the 

approved salary schedule of the County and as adopted by the 

Board of County Commissioners; provided sufficient funds are 

available in the approved annual budget of the Department. In 

addition, the Health Officer shall comply with the provisions of 

Section 6 below in making any such appointment to the staff of 

the Department. 

F. The Health Officer shall be responsible to the Board 

for the_proper administration of the Department in areas not 

directly subject to the supervision and control of the Board as 

set forth above. 

9 



( 
G • 

The Health Officer and his deputies shall maintain 

complete records concerning public health programs provided by 

the Department. 

H. The Health Officer, upon request, shall provide to 

the City Managers of Reno and Sparks, the County Manager and to 

any member of the Board a copy of. any report or record of any 

activity of the Department. 

I. The Health Officer shall cooperate with the State 

Board of Health, State Health Division and Federal agencies in 

all matters affecting public health. 
He shall make such reports 

and provide such information as the State Board, State Health 

Division and Federal agencies require. 

J. 
The Health Of~icer shall designate a person to act 

"'Q"' 
"'Q'" in his stead during his temporary absence from the District or 

during his temporary disability. 
The Health Officer shall make 

en 0 such designation by letter to the Chairman of the Board, to the 

staff of the Department, to the City Managers of Reno and Sparks 

and the County Manager. 
The person so designated shall occupy 

the position of "Acting Health Officer" during the Health 

Officer's absence or disability. 
If necessary, the Health 

Officer shall also designate a physician licensed to practice 

medicine in this state to act as a consultant on all medical 

matters with which the Department is involved. 
If the Real th 

Officer fails to make the designation or designations required by 

this subsection, the Board may do so by resolution. 

K. If the position of Health Officer becomes vacant, an 

Acting Health Officer shall be appoi~ted by the Board to fill the 

position until the Board appoints a new Health Officer. 

L. No member of the Board may be appointed as Heal th 

Officer or Acting Health Officer. 

10 



Ln 
v 
v 

SECTION 6. 
District Health Department of \.lashoe County Health 

District. 

There is hereby established a District Health Department 

of the Washoe County Health District, subject to the following 

provisions: 

A. The Department shall be organized in the same manner 

as divisions, departments, agencies, offices, etc. of the County 

are organized for the purpose of providing a structure for the 

day-to-day execution of the public affairs of the Department. 

B. The Department has jurisdiction over all public 

health matters arising within the \.lashoe County Health District 

and shall carry ciut all public health programs approved by the 

Board. 

c. All personnel matters in the Department shall be 
:::::::> 
a_. 
0) 

a -q- regulated by those ordinances applicable to County employees, 

N a:> except as otherwise provided herein. 

D. The Health Officer or his designee shall employ 

qualified persons under the County's Merit Personnel Ordinance. 

Those persons shall receive the compensation specified for the 

classification designated in the approved salaiy schedule adopted 

by the Board of County Commissioners provided sufficient funds 

are available in the approved budget of the Department. The 

Heal th Officer or his des ignee may only select persons to fill 

authorized vacancies within the Department. 

E. The Health Officer or his designee may take 

disciplinary action against any employee, including suspension or 

termin~tion of any employee of the Department in accordance with 

any applicable provisions of County ordinances in effect now and 

in the future and any negotiated contracts with recognized 

employee associations in effect now and in the future. 

11 



( 

- .1.--..-----·---·--·-

F. The Department shall cooperate with the State Health 

Div is ion and State Board of Heal th in carrying out all public 

health programs within the Wash~e County Health District as 

p'ermitted or required by the Nevada Revised Statutes and other 

laws. 

SECTION 7. Term of agreement. 

A. Except as provided in subsection D, this agreement 

shall be in effect for a period of one year from January 1, 1979. 

B. After the initial one-year term has exp ired, this 

agreement shall automatically be renewed for a one-year period on 

each anniversary date after December 31, 1979, unless either 

(.!) Reno, Sparks, or the County serves by certified mail on the other 

"Q"" -q- parties to this agreement a written notice of termination 15 days 

n_ prior to the date of expiration (which shall coincide with each 

m 
0 
"'T 
N 
CD 

in which event this 
anniversary date of this agreement), 

a~reement shall terminate on the day of expiration. 
As used 

herein, "the expiration date" or "day of expiration" means the 

last day of this agreement or the last day of any extended 

one-year period under the terms of this agreement. 
If no written 

notice of termination has been received by any party to this 

agreement from any other party to this agreement at the end of 

'its initial term or at the end of any one-year renewal period 

after the initial term of this agreement has expired, it shall 

automatically be renewed for another one-year period and will 

continue in full force and effect during such renewal. 

C. This agreement shall be reviewed annually by the 

Board, and recommendations for possible amendments may be made to 

Reno, Sparks and the County. 

12 



D. This agreement may be amended by mutual consent of 

the patties hereto not later than 90 days before i~s annual 

renewal date. 

E. Reno, Sparks or the County may terminate this 

agreement for cause, including the breach of any provision 

thereof, upon written notice to the other parties to this 

agreement. 
In that event, the agreement shall terminate 60 days 

after the parties have received the written notice of termination 

for cause. 

SECTION 8. 
Property acquired by District Health Department. 

A. All property acquired by the Department during the 

term of this agreement shall be subject to the jurisdiction and 

control of the Board through the Health Officer and the 

r--
( "Q'" 

"'¢" 

Department. 

0 
a_ 
(J') 

B. Upon termination of this agreement, all property 

0 
"l;f" acquired by or held in the name of the Department shall become 

N 
co the property of the County, except that any property purchased 

with Federal funds must be disposed of in accordance with Federal 

Grants Administration policies. 

13 



( 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed 

this amended agreement on the day and in the year appearing by 

the signatures below. 

ATTEST 

ATTEST 

ATTEST 

./." 

its 

through its 

CITY OF SPARKS, by and through its 
City Council 

.1101865 

-. -:: '. J ,.\ J 
. •,''•\ 

'"L: .,I::· .. 

l1J Aq tto ~ a o 4 1.n•1 1> A-

86SEfI9 Pl: 12 

14 



>] •• 

.-· ,J . \ 
-.,;' 

AMENDMENT TO THE 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT CONCERNING THE 

WASHOE COUN'rY DISTRICT HEAL'rH DEPARTMENT 

J,-2029 
A.I. 5.12 
8/9/93 

WHEREAS, the Washoe County Health District has been 

established with a District Health Department including a 

District Health Officer and a District Board of Health, composed 

of representatives appointed by the governing bodies of the 

cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County, together with one 

member appointed by the members of the Board of Health, all in 

accordance with Chapter 439 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, and 

pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement adopted as of November 27, 

1972, by those governing bodies and amended from time to time; 

and 

WHEREAS, the D~strict Board of Health of the Washoe 

County Health District has exercised, since its creation, all the 

powers, duties and authority of a District Board of Health 

purusant to Chapter 439 of the Nevada Revised Statutes; and· 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the District Board of Health 

and of the governing bodies of the cities of Reno and Sparks and 

Washoe County that certain revisions be made to the Interlocal 

Agreement by which the Board and. the Department were created in 

order to comply with legislative amendments to Chapter 439 of the 

Nevada Revised Statutes; 

NOW THEREFORE, Sections 2.D. and E. of the Interlocal 

Agreement Concerning the Washoe County Health District are hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

II 

{ '(OF £¢ARKS 
0... c OF THE CITY CLERK 

AUG 1 3 1993 -1-



( 

(, 

2. D. Two members of the Board shall be appointed by the 

Board of County Commissioners only one of whom shall be an 

elected member of the governing body. 

2. E. The remaining member of the Board shall be 

appointed by the other members of the Board at their 

organizational meeting. This member must be a physician licensed 

to practice medicine in this state. If the members of the Board 

appointed by Reno, Sparks and the County fail to choose the 

additional member within 30 days after January 1, 1979 or within 

30 days after the term of the additional member becomes vacant or 

expires, that member shall be appointed by the State Health 

Officer. 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 
II 

II 

II 
II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

PITY OF SPARi'\S 
)rFICE OF THE CITY CLERK -2-



' . 
- ' 

·~ ~-· ~ .. ,., \• 

~ .•' . 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 

Amendment on the day and in the year appearing by the signatures 

below. 

( 

CITY OF SPARKS 
:FICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

AUG 1 3 1993 

WASHOE COUNTY, by and through its 
Board of County Commissioners 

CITY OF 
City 

by and through its 

CITY OF SPARKS, by_ and through its 
City Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: , 

-~Jttut~f r:7fdfic? 
STEVEN P. EL~IOTT, City Attorney 

-3-



STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 17, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
775.328.2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Presentation, Discussion and Possible Adoption of the draft Washoe County 
Health District 2015 Legislative Principles, Acceptance of the February 2015 Nevada Legislative 
Session Report and Provide input and/or direction as DBOH may feel is appropriate. 
.  
SUMMARY 
This is a monthly update regarding bill draft requests (BDRs) or bill drafts which may be of interest to 
the District Board of Health.  Legislative Principles have been drafted for consideration by the Board 
to guide the Health District’s legislative activities.  

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Demonstrate the value and 
contribution of public health, secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact, strengthen WCHD 
as an innovative, high- performing organization and achieve targeted improvements in health 
outcomes and health equity. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Each biennium, WCHD has monitored Legislative activities and acted on them as directed by the 
District Board of Health.  A staff report for the 2015 legislative session has been provided monthly 
since the December 18, 2014 meeting.   

BACKGROUND 
Staff will monitor and provide comment as bill drafts are released and/or legislative action occurs 
during the period between DBOH meetings.  DBOH will be briefed on these comments and activities 
during the monthly 2015 meetings.  These monthly briefings can be used for discussion and for any 
specific direction the DBOH would like to provide for the Health District’s legislative activities. The 
attached Legislative Principles have been drafted based on the suggestion of the DBOH Chair to 
provide a guiding framework for Health District legislative activities. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve staff’s recommendation, there will be no fiscal impact to the adopted FY15 
budget  

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board adopt the draft Washoe County Health District 2015 Legislative 
Principles, accept the February 2015 legislative session report,  provide their input on legislative 
priorities or concerns, and direct staff to monitor and act upon 2015 Legislative Session bill drafts 
affecting the Health District and/or public health. 

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11



Subject: OHDO Board Report 
Date: February 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
A possible motion would be: Approve the draft Washoe County Health District 2015 Legislative 
Principles, accept the February 2015 Nevada legislative session report, and [provide input and/or 
direction as DBOH may feel is appropriate]. 



Washoe County Health District 
 2015 Legislative Principles 

Partners Providing Service to Our Shared Constituents 

All Governments in Nevada (State, County, Cities, Health Districts, School Districts, and Special 
Districts) are partners in providing consistent and reliable services to our shared constituents, and 
therefore all levels of government must be viable in order for our citizens to enjoy an outstanding 
quality of life. A great State requires strong, effective, mutually-respectful government at all 
levels. 

Prevent, Promote, and Protect 

The District Board of Health recognizes that public health is an essential health and safety 
function of government.  The District Board of Health does not support actions at the State level 
that will negatively impact the health of Washoe County residents or visitors.  The District Board 
of Health supports prudent actions that enhance public health in cost effective manners within 
the resource constraints of State and local governments. 

Focus on Outcomes 

Public health services should be provided efficiently; should be effective; and must demonstrate 
measurable results. The Washoe County Health District should be held accountable for 
measurable outcomes and cost-effective performance, while at the same time be given the 
flexibility to let the District Board of Health decide how best to achieve those outcomes. 

Local Determination 

Statewide public health policy decisions should be made by State leaders; local public health 
policy decisions should be made by local health boards. Legislation should foster local flexibility 
and assist local boards of health and the citizens they represent in addressing problems in ways 
that best serve their community.  Local health boards should have discretion on delivering State 
programs and services when funding is reduced or diverted by the State.   

Unfunded Mandates 

The District Board of Health believes the Nevada State Legislature should not impose mandated 
functions, activities, or regulations on local governments without providing financial resources 
or means to meet the costs of carrying out those mandates. 



Long Term, Sustainable Solutions 

The economy and tax revenue base on which all governments in Nevada rely are undergoing a 
fundamental restructure. Simply shifting the service burden or revenues from one government 
service provider to another will not responsibly and sustainably meet the needs of the citizens of 
Nevada and Washoe County. All governments need to be working together toward long-term 
solutions for service provision and equitable, stable funding for those services, and not at one 
another’s expense. 

Legislative Relations 

The District Board of Health recognizes that local governments in the region have numerous 
areas of mutual interest, and that a cooperative and integrated approach to legislative relations 
best serves the interests of the residents of Washoe County. 

Washoe County Health District 2015 Legislative Principles Page 2 of 2 



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 1 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

407 AB107 Legislativ
e 
Committ
ee on 
Educatio
n

Active Revises provisions 
relating to information 
included in the annual 
report of accountability 
prepared by school 
districts and sponsors 
of charter schools

CD Monitor KS  - AB107 is something that I think many of our 
partners in the area of childhood nutrition would 
support.  I don’t see us playing an active role in this 
legislation but we may want to continue to monitor 
it.  I think it would supply good data related to 
income and academic success.

15 AB146 Assembly 
Committ
ee on 
Transpor
tation

Active Revises provisions 
governing motor 
vehicle licensing.

AQM Track Yes Oppose CA - Extending smog check on new vehicles from 2 
to 4 yrs has fiscal impact. Extending renewal smog 
check to every 2 yrs has potential environmental 
impact on ozone attainment status.

623 AB152 Assembly
man 
Araujo

Active Establishes provisions 
to address childhood 
opesity for children in 
child care facilities.

CCHS 
CD

209 AB156 Asembly
man 
Thompso
n

Active Revises provisions 
governing family 
resource centers 

CCHS 
ODHO

Monitor



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 2 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

66 AB158 Leg 
Comm 
on 
Health 
Care

Active Provides for certain 
businesses to obtain 
and use auto-injectable 
epinephrine in certain 
circumstances

CCHS 
EPHP

Monitor

43 AB163 Assembly
man 
Hansen

Active Provides for the 
establishment of 
Rangeland Fire 
Protection Associations

EMS 
ODHO

804 AB169 Assembly 
Committ
ee on 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Active Provides for the 
collection and 
applicaiton of 
graywater for a single-
family residence. 

EHS

456 AB19 Nevada 
League 
of Cities 
and 
Municipa
lities

Active Revises provisions 
governing timing of 
adoption of tentative 
budgets by local 
governments.

AHS 
ODHO

Monitor AH - yes AHS should keep an eye on this AB but 
given that they are not changing the time frame for 
when the Property Tax projections are due to the 
County March 25th is the final proforma from the 
State I cannot imagine the County ever moving the 
public hearing into March but you never know. 
 Health always has the budget done long before the 
County completes the consolidated budget for the 
County so I think we are in good shape.



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 3 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

474 AB36 Clark 
County

Active Revises provisions 
governing 
requirements for 
hospitals to provide 
emergency services 
and care.

CCHS 
EPHP 
EMS

228 AB4 Hickey Active Revises provisions 
relating to the 
operation of wineries 
in Nevada.

AQM 
EHS

Monitor No Neutral BS It does apply to our county but there is no 
negative impact to us as a Public Health Agency.

192 AB52 Leg 
Comm 
on Child 
Welfare 
and 
Juvenile 
Justice

Active Revises provisions 
relating to child 
welfare

CCHS 
CD

309 AB60 Comm 
on Ethics

Active Revises provisions of 
the Nevada Ethics in 
Government Law

ALL CA - No significant AQM impact.  As an EPA 
delegated agency AQM already addresses conflict 
of interest issues (ethics).

445 AB65 Secretary 
of State

Active Revises provisions 
relating to notaries 
public.

EHS Monitor CA - Looks like the District impact will be as an 
employer of a notary: We can't prevent them from 
performing notary tasks and we can't advertise 
thier services.  The rest is about training 
appointments and penalties.  

161 AB72 Attorney 
General

Active Revises provisions 
governing state 
professional licensing 
boards

CCHS 
EHS 
EPHP

Monitor SK - it seems like it pertains to the State Board of 
Nursing.



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 4 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

346 AB77 State 
Dept of 
Ag

Active Makes various changes 
relating to the 
regulation of 
agriculture

EHS Monitor Yes BS - We are neutral but that could change after we 
talk to Dept of Ag.  CA - AB77 is not applicable to air 
quality.  SK no interest.   BS Testified 2/19/15.  BS 
attended meeting but did not testify 2/19/15.

345 AB79 State 
Dept of 
Ag

Active Revises provisions 
relating to the State 
Department of 
Agriculture and the 
regulation of 
agriculture

EHS Monitor Yes BS - Not sure yet.  This is being proposed by State 
Ag. With no discussion with any of the health 
authorities.  Joe Pollock is trying to set up a 
meeting with Ag. To talk about what is driving this 
and how they would carry out the program.  It may 
be okay but it may also be bad if they want to 
loosen requirements.  BS testified 2/19/15.  BS 
attended meeting but did not testify 2/19/15.
 

175 AB83 Attorney 
General

Active Revises provisions 
governing the sale of 
electronic cigarettes 
and licensure of 
machinery used to 
manufacture 
cigarettes.

EPHP 
CD

Monitor KS - AB83 relates to licensing of cigarette rolling 
machines.  While it’s not directly applicable to the 
HD it may be something that we would support 
because it would strengthen continuity of 
regulations impacting access of cigarettes. This 
would be something that I would recommend we 
support but not necessarily take action on. 



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 5 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

326 AB87 Dept of 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Active Revises provisions 
governing duties of 
insurers self-insured 
plans pharmacy benefit 
managers group health 
plans other 
organizations that 
issue policies of health 
insurance and service 
benefit plans regarding 
payments made by 
Medicaid for health 
care

CCHS

391 AB90 Emergen
cy Mgt 
DPS

Active Establishes the Nevada 
Intrastate Mutual Aid 
System to create a 
flexible and scalable 
method of 
implementing 
intrastate mutual aid 
among political 
subdivisions special 
districts and federally 
recognized tribes 
within the State for all 
hazards

ALL Monitor CA - EPHP bill – no AQM impact other than staff 
with ICS training may be requested to respond.  SK 
it could impact the entire Health District depending 
upon the emergency.



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 6 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

27 AB93 Frierson Active Requires suicide 
awareness and 
prevention training for 
licensed educational 
personnel and certain 
other professionals

CCHS 
EPHP 
CD

Monitor SK - Still no mention of nursing so still no interest 
on CCHS’ behalf. I  would continue to monitor 
should they decide to add nursing in somewhere 
along the way. BS - No impacts to us.  RT This bill 
does not appear to have any direct impact on EPHP 
programs
 

34 AB95 Hansen Active Exempts home-based 
businesses with an 
annual gross income of 
less than $60000 from 
the requirement to 
obtain a state business 
license

AQM 
EHS 
CD

Monitor No Neutral BS - no effect on our ability to issue permits

53 AB99 Assembly
man 
Ellison

Active Makes various changes 
relating to nonprofit 
camping programs for 
children.

EHS Monitor

484 SB102 Legislativ
e 
Committ
e on 
Public 
Lands

Active Creates a nonprofit 
Rangeland Fire 
Protection Association 
in each county in 
Nevada.

AQM 
EMS

Monitor CA - No significant impact for AQM.  Any approved 
rangeland fire protection associations will be 
required to submit Smoke Management Plans to 
AQM if they intent to perform any   prescribed or 
training burns.  If SB102 passes AQM will contact 
the State Forester Firewarden for contact 
information to notify the new association of the 
permitting requirements.



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 7 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

88 SB105 Senator 
Settleme
yer

Active Allows a stand-alone 
bar to permit dogs to 
enter the 
establishment at the 
discretion of the 
establishment's owner

EHS Monitor Yes Oppose BS - this bill allows dogs in bars.  It also allows dogs 
in any bar that chooses to serve food.  We can not 
support dogs or any animals in food prep areas.  SK 
No interest to CCHS.  BS testified 2/16/15.

284 SB11 Goicoech
ea

Active Grants power to local 
governments to 
perform certain acts or 
duties which are not 
prohibited or limited 
by statute.

ODHO

609 SB110 Senator 
Goicoech
ea

Active Revises provisions 
governing the disposal 
of abandoned 
recreational vehicles.

EHS

691 SB117 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Active Revises provisions 
relating to 
immunizations. 

CCHS Monitor Yes Support SK - this bill adds HPV and Meningococcal 
vaccinations to the list of required immunizations.



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 8 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

893 SB122 Senator 
Denis

Active Revises provisions 
relating to recyling.

AQM 
EHS

Monitor May
be

Neutral EHS - Does not affect us directly but that could 
change if amended   AQM - may result in an 
increase in the number of recycling facilities 
operating in the area affecting permitting & 
compliance staff resources.  BS testified 2/13/15.

715 SB139 Senator 
Gustavso
n

Active Makes various changes 
relating to certain 
businesses.

EHS Monitor CA -  SB139 has no AQM impact.  Emissions from 
microbreweries are below permit trigger levels.

718 SB142 Senator 
Gustavso
n

Active Revises provisions 
governing the 
equipment and training 
required to operate a 
motorcycle.

CD

72 SB144 Manend
o

Active Revises provisions 
governing traffic laws

CD

3 SB15 Senate 
Comm 
on 
Health & 
Human 
Services

Active Revises provisions 
relating to mental 
health

CD Monitor Support SK - We’ll monitor and would support. No fiscal 
impact. Nurses already are mandatory reporters 
this appears to expand the scope of what and to 
whom to report to.



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 9 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

52 SB151 Senator 
Atkinson 
Assembly
woman 
Kirkpatric
k

Active Makes various changes 
concerning 
infrastructure for 
natural gas

EHS Yes

17 SB152 Senator 
Spearma
n 
Senator 
Woodho
use 
Senator 
Manend
o

Active Makes various changes 
to provisions governing 
public safety

CD

797 SB172 Senator 
Farley

Active Revises provisons 
relating to medical 
students.

CCHS 
EPHP



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 10 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

464 SB28 Nevada 
League 
of Cities 
and 
Municipa
lities

Active Clarifies provisions 
governing the fees that 
may be charged for 
providing copies of 
public records.

ALL Monitor No Support SK - Not of particularly high interest to CCHS.  CA - 
This bill establishes the “extraordinary” effort so 
supply public records as more than 30 minutes or 
25 or more pages (paper or electronic).  I believe 
this bill supports our Fundamental Review for cost 
recovery when fulfilling the Freedom of 
Information Act. A bill to monitor with testimony 
only if recommended by AHS.  AH - It would be a 
good idea to keep an eye on this one.
 

465 SB29 Nevada 
Associati
on of 
Counties

Active Grants authority for a 
Board of 
Commissioners to 
adopt ordinances 
regulating specific 
health and safety 
issues.

ALL Track No Neutral CA - Grants authority to BCC unless otherwise 
assigned to another agency.  DBOH has authority so 
this shouldn't have an effect

475 SB33 Clark 
County

Active Revises provisions 
relating to the public 
records of county 
hospitals and meetings 
of the governing 
bodies of county 
hospitals.

EPHP 
ODHO

498 SB49 Clark 
County

Active Revises provisions 
governing the 
regulation of county 
emergency shelters for 
children.

EHS 
EPHP

SK - No impact to CCHS.



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 11 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

448 SB59 Secretary 
of State

Active Revises provisions 
governing the State 
Business Portal

ALL Monitor Yes Neutral SK - No interest to CCHS.  CA - This bill has the 
potential to have a significant impact on the 
District.  The Secretary of State’s Office was made 
aware of the Accela Project at the last session so I 
expect an update will be provided by someone 
during this session.  The other problem is the State 
portal is not the most efficient at receiving 
information so IT continues to work on the 
problems.  BS testified 2/4/15.
 
 

366 SB65 State 
Dept. of 
Conserva
tion & 
Natural 
Resource
s

Active Makes various changes 
relating to the 
adjudication of vested 
water rights 
appropriation of public 
waters underground 
water and wells and 
planning and 
development of water 
resources

EHS



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 12 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

155 SB70 Attorney 
General

Active Revises provisions 
governing meetings of 
public bodies

AQM 
EHS 
ODHO

Monitor No DS - no fiscal impact as the only alteration of the 
secretary’s tasks involves signing a form and 
retaining it with the meeting records.   However 
retrieving records in the case of a complaint could 
be time consuming if they are not maintained in a 
concise and easily accessible way.  
CA - I agree there should be no significant fiscal 
impact since the completion of the Attorney 
General’s form would be the only change.  We 
already keep records and provide them upon 
request.  The Committee’s that we are members of 
already have alternate delegates assigned in 
writing.  
I don’t believe there’s anything else that would 
have an impact on Air Quality.    KD - I agree.  BS - 
Other than the form listed below I think we are 
already doing what this bill says

307 SB79 Departm
ent of 
Taxation

Active Clarifies provisions 
governing taxation of 
tobacco products other 
than cigarettes to 
specifically include the 
consumable part of e-
cigarettes and nicotine 
heated in a vapor 
device

CD Monitor Support



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 13 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

347 SB86 PUC of 
NV

Active Revises provisions 
governing pipeline and 
subsurface safety

EHS

370 SB89 EPA Div 
of 
Conserva
tion & 
Natural 
Resource
s

Active Clarifies provisions 
governing expenditure 
of money from the 
Fund for Cleaning Up 
Discharges of 
Petroleum

EHS Monitor Support BS - no impacts but we support if needed to.
 

951 Senate 
Majority 
Leader

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to civil actions.

AHS 
AQM 
CCHS 
EHS 
EPHP 
ODHO

954 Senate 
Majority 
Leader

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to medical 
malpractice.

CCHS 
EPHP

955 Senate 
Majority 
Leader

Pending Makes certain changes 
relating to public 
safety.

AQM 
CCHS 
EHS 
EPHP 
CD



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 14 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

957 Senate 
Majority 
Leader/A
ssembly
man 
Thompso
n

Pending Revises provisions 
governing health 
districts.

ALL

959 Senate 
Minority 
Leader

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to animals.

EHS

961 Assembly 
Minority 
Leader

Pending Rvises provisions 
governing Medicaid 
reimbursements.

AHS 
CCHS

Track

967 Assembly 
Minority 
Leader

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to tow trucks. 

AQM

970 Senate 
Majority 
Leader

Pending Makes various changes 
relating to real 
property.

AQM 
EHS



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 15 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

972 Senate 
Majority 
Leader 
Joint 
with 
Senator 
Atkinson 
Senator 
Kihuen

Pending Makes various changes 
relting to state 
financial 
administration.

AHS

978 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to services for 
persons with 
disabilities. 

CCHS

980 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Pending Makes various changes 
relating to medical 
marijuana.

AQM 
EHS



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 16 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

981 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Pending Makes various changes 
relating to public 
health.

ALL Track

982 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to persons 
who are blind.

CCHS

983 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Commer
ce Labor 
and 
Energy

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to insurance. 

AHS 
CCHS

988 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Commer
ce Labor 
and 
Energy

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to cottage-
food industries.

EHS



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 17 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

991 Senate 
Committ
eee on 
Commer
ce Labor 
and 
Energy

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to business.

ALL

992 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Commer
ce Labor 
and 
Energy

Pending Makes various changes 
relating to business.

ALL

994 Assembly
woman 
Titus

Pending Revises provisions 
governing off-highway 
vehicles.

AQM

996 Senator 
Segerblo
m

Pending Revises provisions 
governing medical 
marijuana dispensaries.

AQM 
EHS

998 Assembly
man 
Wheeler

Pending Revises provisions 
governing foster care.

CCHS

1003 Assembly
man 
Stewart

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to insurance.

AHS 
CCHS



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 18 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1008 Senator 
Gustavso
n

Pending SJR: Proposes to 
amend the Nevada 
Constitution to enact 
the Health Care 
Freedom Protection 
Act.

CCHS

1015 Senator 
Spearma
n

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to children.

CCHS Monitor Need additional info.

1016 Senator 
Denis

Pending Makes certain changes 
concerning registration 
of mopeds and similar 
vehicles.

AQM

1017 Senator 
Farley

Pending Revises certain 
provisions governing 
air ambulances.

EPHP 
EMS

1020 Assembly 
Committ
ee on 
Health 
and 
Human 
Services

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to emergency 
medical services.

EPHP 
EMS



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 19 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1021 Senate 
Committ
ee on 
Governm
ent 
Affairs

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to local 
financial 
administration.

AHS

1023 Senator 
Goicoech
ea

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to local 
financial 
administration.

AHS

1028 Senator 
Hardy

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to 
environmental 
restorations.

AQM 
EHS

1031 Senator 
Kieckhef
er

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to public 
safety.

ALL

1039 Assembly
man 
Silberkra
us

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to craft 
distilleries.

AQM 
EHS

1050 Assembly
woman 
Seaman

Pending Revises provisions 
governing 
cosmetology.

EHS

1052 Assembly
man 
Carrillo

Pending Revises provisions 
governing motor 
vehicle registration. 

AQM



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report
Includes BDRs introduced since January 22, 2015 report

and Bills actively being tracked by WCHD

Page 20 of 20

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisio
n

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Test
ify

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1055 Assembly
man 
Oscarson

Pending Revises provisions 
governing service 
contracts.

AHS 
CCHS

1058 Assembly
woman 
Joiner

Pending Establishes a Health 
Professional Workforce 
Program.

CCHS 
EPHP

1066 Assembly
man 
Jones

Pending Repeals provisions 
creating and providing 
for the Silver State 
Health Insurance 
Exchange.

AHS 
CCHS

1068 Assembly
woman 
Dooling

Pending Establishes an 
independent citizens 
commission to set 
salaries of certain 
public officers.

AHS 
ODHO

1071 Asembly 
Committ
ee on 
Transpor
tation

Pending Revises provisions 
relating ot special 
license plates.

AQM



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 26, 2015 

DATE: February 13, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 
775-784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Program Update

a. Idle Free Schools wins Truckee Meadows Tomorrow Award

The District Board of Health previously recognized the efforts of students from the
Washoe County School District promoting the Idle Free Program with the goal of
reducing emissions from car and bus idling on school campuses.  To date, twenty (20)
Washoe County schools have voluntarily been designated as Idle Free Schools.  The
efforts of the students are now being recognized in the community.  Truckee Meadows
Tomorrow (TMT) is a volunteer organization that collaborates with business owners,
community leaders, educators, policy-makers and active citizens across Washoe
County to establish measurable indicators to monitor how the community is preserving
and enhancing the quality of life.  The Air Quality Management Division supports
TMT through the adoption of the air quality indicator.

TMT sponsors an annual Take It Personally Contest to recognize citizens involvement 
in improving the quality of life in our community.  This photo of the students from 
Reed High School was submitted to represent the Idle Free Schools partnership 
between Washoe County Health District AQMD, Alliance for Climate Education 
(ACE), GREENevada, WCSD Transportation Department and Safe Routes to School. 
TMT selected the photo as an award winner in recognition of the benefits of reducing 
engine idling on school campuses including making for cleaner air, healthier lungs for 
kids, and more money in people’s pockets. 

The success of the Idle Free Program is also being recognized by the Washoe County 
School District Board of Trustees.  At the request of Trustee Veronica Frenkel, the  

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.A



February 13, 2015 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 2 of 6 

Idle Free partners gave a presentation on the status and future goals of the program at the 
February 10th School Board meeting.  The ultimate goal is to have the Idle Free Program 
adopted as a policy for all Washoe County schools. Turn your key and be Idle Free!  

Charlene Albee, REM 
Director, Air Quality Management Division 



February 13, 2015 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 3 of 6 

2. Divisional Update

a. Below are two charts detailing the latest air quality information for the month of
January.  The top chart indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and includes the
highest AQI from the previous three years in the data table for comparison.  The
bottom chart indicates the number of days by AQI category and includes the previous
year to date for comparison.

Please note AQI data are not fully verified and validated and should be considered 
preliminary.  As such, they should not be used to formulate or support regulation, 
guidance, or any other governmental or public decision.  For a daily depiction of the AQI 
data, please visit www.OurCleanAir.com for the most recent AQI Summary. 

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


February 13, 2015 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 4 of 6 

3. Program Reports

a. Planning & Monitoring

There were no exceedances of any National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS)
during the month of January.

The Know the Code totals for January were 19 Green, 7 Yellow, and 5 Red Burn Codes.
The public’s support of the Yellow and Red Codes prevented fine particulate matter
(PM2.5) from exceeding the health based NAAQS.  A 2014-15 Know the Code summary
will be included in next month’s report.

Planning Staff participated in an American Planning Association (APA) “Safe Mobility
Planning” webinar hosted by the Washoe County Planning and Development Division.
The built environment strongly influences the health of our community.  Staff is
collaborating with local APA members to find opportunities to incorporate healthy
solutions into local projects and policies.

AQMD and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) will be
implementing a pilot program to extend the Spring residential open burning season.  Per
AQM Regulation 040.035, residential open burning is currently prohibited from
November 1 through February 28/29.  The pilot program will advance the end date of the
prohibition from February 28/29 to February 14.  Residential open burning will be
allowed if weather conditions meet air quality and fire safety criteria.  This pilot program
only applies to areas in TMFPD’s jurisdiction and includes other specific requirements.
Staff developed a form to be included with the TMFPD burn permit application to collect
data during the pilot project.  Data including the burn dates, location, and quantity of
materials burned, will be used to evaluate the effectiveness of the pilot project.  For more
information on the pilot project burn period, contact the TMFPD or check their website at
www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd .

Daniel K. Inouye 
Chief, Monitoring and Planning 

http://www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd


February 13, 2015 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 5 of 6 

b. Permitting & Enforcement

Type of Permit 

2015 2014 

January YTD January 
Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing Air 
Permits 

97 97 104 1328 

New Authorities to Construct 8 8 6 133 

Dust Control Permits 6 
(58 acres) 

6 
(58 acres) 

9 
(118 acres) 

114 
(1172 acres) 

Wood Stove Certificates 20 20 17 322 

WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 18 
(13 replacements) 

18 
(13 replacements)  

6 
(5 replacements) 

105 
(80 replacements) 

WS Notice of Exemptions 356 
(1 removed) 

356 
(1 removed) 

570 
(8 stoves 
removed) 

7143 
(63 stoves 
removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 79 79 65 862 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 

22 22 13 199 

Staff reviewed twenty-eight (28) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe 
County Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality 
requirements. 



February 13, 2015 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 6 of 6 

COMPLAINTS 
2015 2014 

January YTD January Annual 
Total 

Asbestos 2 2 2 27 

Burning 0 0 0 9 

Construction Dust 5 5 2 53 

Dust Control Permit 0 0 0 20 

General Dust 5 5 2 52 

Diesel Idling 0 0 0 3 

Odor 4 4 2 16 

Spray Painting 3 3 0 8 

Permit to Operate 0 0 2 31 

Woodstove 7 7 1 12 

TOTAL 26 26 8 231 

NOV’s January YTD January Annual 
Total 

Warnings 1 1 2 41 
Citations 1 1 5 11 
TOTAL 2 2 7 52 

*Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur due to data entry delays.

• Inspection staff continues working with RTC, Aspen Development and various
asbestos abatement contractors to monitor and ensure continued compliance for
the Pyramid Highway expansion project.  The project will involve asbestos
abatement in 63 homes currently owned by RTC.

Staff conducted fifty two (52) stationary source and fifty two (52) gas station inspections in 
January 2015.  Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos removal and construction/dust 
projects.   



CCHS DIVISIONAL STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: February 26, 2015 

DATE: February 12, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH 
775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update – Divisional Update, Program Reports 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update
a. Electronic Health Record (EHR) Database – CCHS management, along with

Administrative Health representation, has begun evaluation of alternative EHRs.
Rationale for this is the need for a database that is easier to use, will provide more robust
reporting and productivity metrics, along with software that allow us to meet Meaningful
Use requirements when the time comes (the driver being percentage of Medicaid
population in Family Planning). One database looks promising and appears to meet
divisional needs. We have scheduled an onsite demonstration next month.

b. Affordable Care Act (ACA) – I am finalizing an agreement with Immunize Nevada for a
contract staff member to work with CCHS on third party billing/reimbursement and
contracts. This contract staff member will be of great assistance in executing insurance
plan contracts, developing policy and procedure, training staff, and enhancing coding for
maximum reimbursement.

COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2441   I   Fax: 775-328-3750   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.B



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report
Date: February 26, 2015 
Page 2 of 6 

c. Data/Metrics –

*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC clinics operate to the end of
the month and participants have 30 days after that to purchase their WIC foods. 

Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community demand, changes in staffing and 
changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, all which may affect the availability of services. 

452 

120 185 207 

515 

16 

1495 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

IZ Clinic IZ Offsite TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
January 2014 and January 2015 

January 2014 January 2015

419 334 410 1,184 

2,873 

5220 

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000

Number of WIC Participants Served 
December 2014* 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report
Date: February 26, 2015 
Page 3 of 6 

2. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities
a. Sexual Health – Syphilis morbidity continues to be an area of high concern, related to

the public health implications and indicators of high risk behaviors in the community.
Testing and appropriate treatment of syphilis also offers the opportunity to test for HIV,
which is accessible through WCHD. The importance of co-testing for HIV and Syphilis is
highlighted by 2014 syphilis case analysis.  Of the 55 infectious syphilis cases reported in
the community to the WCHD, 29 (52%) were among men who have sex with men
(MSM). Of those 29 MSM cases, 14 (48%) were co-infected with HIV. Unknown HIV
status was documented in 10% of the infectious syphilis cases. With regard to age, 50%
of the total cases were 30 years of age and younger. A campaign to promote syphilis and
HIV testing while assessing for sexual risk of all clients was disseminated to over 1,300
Washoe County physicians. In this campaign, information on identifying and working
with MSM clients was also included, along with provider requirements for disease
reporting. In addition to the burden of syphilis in the MSM community, two congenital
syphilis cases identified in 2014 were recently reported to the Nevada Division of Public
and Behavioral Health, based on clinical and surveillance case definitions.

Reaching MSM impacted by the syphilis outbreak has been challenging.  A large portion 
of the case load are young MSM who are not co-infected with HIV, however their risk 
behavior indicates that they are at high risk for HIV infection. Staff has stressed the 
importance of testing through media ads on social media, TV, and print advertisements. 
Partner Services activities among MSM are also difficult. Many clients deny contact 
information for disease investigation of syphilis, therefore preventing a means to identify 
and prevent HIV infection in a very high-risk population.  Special events targeting young 
MSM of color and offering testing also have not yielded positives.  Also, MSM recruiters 
have been identified to participate in social network strategy for HIV and STD testing. 
Recruiters have not been successful in convincing their social networks to test, mainly 
because of disclosure and stigma concerns.  Staff continues to work with the recruiters to 
identify new approaches and engage in skill building to address these barriers. 

Staff recently participated in a syphilis visual case analysis webinar, which is part of the 
“Passport to Partner Services”. Staff will be attending the instructor led portion of the 
training at the end of February, completing this training.  Additional training is vital in 
enhancing skills and tools in order for staff to best combat the ongoing increase of STDs 
in Washoe County. This is apparent when looking at STD case and contact increases 
from 2009-2014: 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report
Date: February 26, 2015 
Page 4 of 6 

Disease Cases Contacts 
Chlamydia  +47% +27% 
Gonorrhea  +284%  +186% 
Syphilis – primary and secondary +1700% +319%  
Syphilis – early latent  +750%  NA 

Sexual Health team members met with staff from HOPES on February 11, 2015 for a 
meet and greet amongst new staff, as well as to discuss reporting issues. Staff is 
conducting a small scale continuous quality improvement project to address scheduling 
issues. The team will be piloting having the STD results line open all day, thus opening 
additional appointment slots as well as making it easier for clients to obtain their test 
results.   

b. Immunizations – The program has increased immunization clinics to meet the increased
demand for immunizations due local suspect and probable measles cases.  The team has
also been working closely with the Epi team for immunization record review, specimen
collection, MMR administration, Physician Alerts and other immunization related
technical assistance.

Staff participated in Project Homeless Connect on January 27, 2015, to provide
immunizations in partnership with the Kids to Seniors Korner program.

Beginning with this month’s Board report, offsite immunization clinics will be captured 
in the “Data/Metrics” section above under “IZ Offsite”, in addition to a narrative section. 
In January 2015, all offsite clinical services were provided in partnership with Kids to 
Seniors Program. 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – Staff currently have several complex
cases which require extensive case management, as well as three cases requiring daily
direct observed therapy.  Staff is working closely with Pulmonary Medical Associates
and community medical providers to assure that the clients are receiving optimal care.
Staff recently collaborated with Access to Healthcare Network to insure that clients have
a medical home, and a primary care provider.  Staff participated with tuberculosis related
continuing education via webinars twice this past month.



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report
Date: February 26, 2015 
Page 5 of 6 

d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – Staff is in the process of completing the Family
Planning Annual Report (FPAR). The FPAR is the only source of annual, uniform
reporting by all Title X family planning services grantees. The FPAR consists of 14
tables and provides a summary of clients served and services provided. The report
indicates a 2% increase in clients served this past year from 2,847 clients to 2,919 clients.
Although this increase is small it is important to note that the program experienced the
retirement of a Nurse Practitioner and it took three separate recruitment efforts to locate a
replacement. Also of interest was a 179% increase in clients with Medicaid (189 in 2013,
versus 527 in 2014).

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) – Kelli Goatley-Seals has been selected
to be on the Washoe County School District (WCSD) Student Wellness Advisory
Committee.  The goal of this committee is to align WCSD nutrition and physical
education policies with the current Nevada State Wellness Policies.

The CDPP team participated in the Nevada Chronic Disease Planning Summit at the 
University of Nevada Reno on January 27, 2015.  The State of Nevada Division of Public 
and Behavioral Health, Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion Section and 
statewide local Chronic Disease Prevention Program leadership staff collaborated in 
planning this event. Stakeholders from throughout Nevada met to discuss building 
capacity to address chronic disease prevention activities throughout the state by working 
together to improve surveillance and communication activities, address modifiable risk 
factors and promote policy, systems and environmental change.   

CDPP ran a tobacco cessation campaign in January with TV ads, billboards and a video 
posted on YouTube - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uGMWdAX6NQ0. The campaign 
targeted adults ages 18-54 and met the goal for reach for this target population.  The 
YouTube video got nearly 40,000 views by the time of this report, while the TV 
campaign ran on the four major networks and reached 75.6% of the target population 
(with an estimated frequency of 6.2 views). 

Staff attended Project Homeless Connect on January 27, 2015, to provide Tobacco 
Cessation information, Quit Cards as well as other program information.   

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – The Fetal Infant Mortality Review
(FIMR) team held a Case Review Team (CRT) meeting on January 21, 2015. The team
will continue to meet monthly to review fetal and infant deaths in Washoe County.  The
first Community Action Team (CAT) meeting is tentatively scheduled for April 22, 2015.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uGMWdAX6NQ0


Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report
Date: February 26, 2015 
Page 6 of 6 

The CAT team is comprised of community representatives and local health professionals 
who take the recommendations from the CRT team and develop interventions to be 
implemented into the local health system and community. The FIMR coordinators 
attended a CRT meeting in Yolo County on February 12, 2015 in order to gain 
knowledge and obtain assistance for the FIMR process.  The Maternal Child Health clinic 
continues to see pregnant and parenting clients to provide education and resources. The 
Public Health Nurse (PHN) continues to provide education and assistance for children in 
the community with elevated lead levels. The PHN also assists with locating and 
providing education to families who have children with an abnormal metabolic screening 
who have not returned for follow up testing or medical care.   

g. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) –
Staff attended a demonstration of the new WIC system for client data that the Health
District will be piloting for the State in August. The WIC State Office is also changing
their conference call format to a web meeting which enables participants to follow
presentations via computer while still interacting with the group via teleconference.



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada   |   Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer 

EHS DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 26, 2015 

DATE: February 12, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
775-328-2644; bsack@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, Land Development, UST/LUST, 
Vector-Borne Disease, Waste Management and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan 
Review. 

DIVISION UPDATE 

• Fifteen new development applications have been submitted by the three entities through the middle of
February and Land Management, Vector and Waste Management staff are busy reviewing.  Vector
staff attended meetings discussing the Program's comments associated with these projects.

PROGRAM UPDATES 

Food 

• An intern student from the University of Nevada Reno, School of Community Health Sciences
joined us February 9 for the next several months.  She will be assisting with public/industry
outreach projects related to the proposed food regulation amendments, specifically working on
educating industry on the proposed “no bare hand contact with ready-to-eat foods” requirement.

• Food Safety Program staff held two internal workshops on January 29 and February 4, 2015, in
order for staff to provide comments and/or input regarding the proposed regulations Governing
Food Establishments.  Staff from the Food Safety and Land Development programs attended both
workshops in preparation for the upcoming public workshops.

• Special Events staff completed 15 inspections in January, which is average for the past 3
years.  Staff is gearing up for one of the largest indoor tasting events of the year, Rotary Fat
Tuesday on February 17, at the Atlantis where 22 permits were issued to sample vendors with
various cuisines.

Land Development 

• The residential septic and well program is seeing substantial growth year over year.  Plan reviews
continue to increase and this ongoing trend demonstrates sustained economic growth in the
housing market.  Test hole inspection permits have increased over 125% year over year for the
month of January.

• Water projects related to new residential and commercial construction continue to be submitted.
The merger of TMWA and Washoe County Water Resources has been a smooth transition as it
relates to our project review and program objectives.

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.C

mailto:bsack@washoecounty.us


EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  February 26, 2015 
Page 2 of 2

• Silver Knolls Mutual Water Company has been issued a formal Findings of Alleged Violations
and Order from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) for failure to meet the
water system’s arsenic exemption which expired on January 23, 2015.  EHS staff continues to
work with the water system to assist them in achieving compliance with the State’s order.

UST/LUST Program 

• The Program received concurrence correspondence with a request sent to the Nevada Division of
Environmental Protection (NDEP) to close a historical fuel release located at the former National
Car Rental property at the airport.  This case had been pending closure for over two years.

Vector-Borne Disease 

• The Nevada Department of Agriculture requested a
PowerPoint presentation from staff on components of a
Vector Program at the Annual Nevada Landscape
Association Trade Show & Conference on February 4.
Staff’s fifty minute presentation on "Elements of a
Vector Program" included Prevention, Identify,
Monitoring, Action and Control.

Waste Management 

• The program has been working in conjunction with the City of Reno in updating some of the
City’s Codes related to development and special use permit reviews as they relate to facilities
which handle and or store hazardous materials and wastes.

• Program staff continues to review multiple waste management plans and permits for medical
marijuana facilities.  Staff expects to begin issuing permits in the month of February as growing
facilities begin to open.  Growing facilities will be the first operations to be permitted.

• Staff has begun training another Environmental Health Specialist in the program to help build
program depth with the ongoing anticipated growth in the program.

EHS 2015 Inspections/Permits/Plan Review 
JAN 2015 vs. JAN 2014 + / (-) 

Child Care 5 6 (1) 
Complaints 49 70 (21) 
Food 404 499   (95) 
General 63 63 0 
Plan Review (Commercial) 19 14 5 
Plan Review (Residential Septic) 46 21 25 
Residential Septic Inspections 33 22  11 
Temporary Food/Special Events 26 28 (2) 
Well Permits 8 11 (3) 
Waste Management 8 12 (4) 

 TOTAL 661 746 (85) 
* General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; Pools;

Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping.

http://agri.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/agrinvgov/Content/Plant/Environmental_Compliance/2015NLATradeShowProgram.pdf


EPHP DIVISON DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: February 26, 2015 

DATE: February 17, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 
775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

Subject: Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

Communicable Disease (CD) –  
Measles – CD staff investigated and evaluated 21 suspect cases reported by local healthcare 
providers between January 30 and February 11.  One probable case in school resulted in a large 
contact investigation and exclusion of non-immunized students.  Staff continue to track suspect 
cases as they occur to determine whether symptoms fully develop to identify them as probable or 
confirmed cases. 

Pertussis – CD staff investigated two pertussis cases.  One of these was a student who attended 
school while infectious.  Therefore, a large contact investigation had to be initiated. 

Influenza – For the week ending February 7 (Week 5), the twelve participating sentinel 
healthcare providers reported a total of 294 patients with influenza-like-illness (ILI) out of a total 
of 6,807 patients seen.  This represents an ILI percentage of 4.3% which is above the regional 
baseline of 2.7%.  During week 4, the percentage of ILI patient visits to US sentinel healthcare 
providers was 4.1% which is above the national baseline of 2.0%.  On a regional level the ILI 
percentage ranged from 2.1% to 6.7%.  Unfortunately, analysis of deaths certificates listing 
pneumonia (P) or influenza (I) as a factor contributing to death is still not possible due to a 
continuing technical problem at the State.  Overall, the ILI surveillance appears to have peaked 
for this season during the last week of 2014 at about 6%.  This is relatively high compared to 
other recent influenza seasons.  A secondary peak later in the season is not uncommon.  
Currently the ILI activity appears to have plateaued but is holding at a relatively high level 
compared to most recent seasons.  

In terms of severity, among laboratory-confirmed cases of influenza there have been 179 
hospitalizations, 20 admissions to intensive care and 4 deaths cumulatively this season.  By 
comparison, for the entirety of last year’s influenza season there were 101 hospitalizations, 29 
admissions to intensive care and 9 deaths. 

Countywide Antibiogram - An antibiogram is a report that reflects the percentage of a given 
list of organisms that is susceptible to each of the antimicrobial agents routinely tested.  It is 
intended to help guide physicians with empiric therapy decisions.  As such, it is one way of 

EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.D



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 

helping to control antimicrobial resistance.  The Health District produces an antibiogram based 
on local data every other year.  The antibiogram based on local data from 2013 has now been 
published and is available online. 

Public Health Preparedness – 
Vaccination Training - In January 2015, PHP staff coordinated additional Fire Vaccination 
Administration Trainings to continue the certification process for Reno, Sparks and Truckee 
Meadows firefighters.  A total of 283 intermediate and advanced EMTs have now been trained to 
assist with vaccination administration during a public health emergency, such as pandemic 
influenza.  This training is a collaboration between EPHP, CCHS, RFD, SFD, TMFPD and State 
EMS.  Dr. Larson serves as the Physician of Record. 

Ebola Funding Applications - PHP staff applied for three separate Ebola grants: 

1) CDC Public Health Emergency Response Supplemental- Monitoring
-Funding for Direct and/or Direct Active Monitoring of potential Ebola patients and plan
revision

2) CDC Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity
-Funding for infectious disease consultant, epidemiologist to participate in Statewide
Hospital Acquired Infection Advisory Group, conduct assessment of Ebola Assessment
hospitals and address gaps determined by assessment, and funding for management
oversight and guidance for these activities

3) CDC Public Health Emergency Response Supplemental
-Funding for updating of Ebola Virus Disease (EVD)Emergency Response Plan and
Infection and Bloodborne Exposure Control Plan
-Sharing of information through healthcare coalitions and the Northern Nevada Infection
Control Committee
-Updating of Isolation and Quarantine Plan as it relates to EVD
-Legal review of this plan
-Exercise with Law Enforcement and Public Health to test plan
-Purchase of Personal Protective Clothing for local Law Enforcement and Public Health
workers
-Exercise involving transport of Ebola patient from a rural location to a Washoe County
Ebola assessment hospital and an exercise involving transport of Ebola patient to a
California Ebola treatment hospital

Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) - WCHD’s Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) Volunteer Program 
is a member of the Volunteer Association of Northern Nevada (VANN) and will host their 
meeting on February 18, 2015 here at the WCHD. VANN is comprised of approximately 15 
different volunteer organizations with the purpose of sharing information to increase the 
effectiveness of Northern Nevada’s Volunteer Organizations.  



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 

On March 19, 2015 the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR) will be conducting an active 
assailant exercise.  The MRC Coordinator has signed up to be an observer during this exercise.   
WCHD’s MRC is also collaborating with the Washoe County Community Emergency Response 
Team (CERT) to help identify volunteers from their organization to participate as “players.”  

WCHD’s MRC volunteers are signing up to take training classes at REMSA’s Educational 
Facility.  Volunteers have four different levels of Basic Disaster and First Aid/CPR classes that 
they may attend.   

PHP staff are partnering with EMS Program Manager, EHS staff, Washoe County Emergency 
Manager and regional partners on a water restoration tabletop.  The exercise will provide an 
opportunity for the water restoration guidelines, developed during FY 2013-2014 to be reviewed. 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) -  
The EMS Program Manager conducted interviews for the part-time Statistician and is pleased to 
announce that Heather Kerwin was the successful candidate.  Heather has extensive experience 
with data analysis to include matching different data sets and compiling reports for community 
partners.  Heather will begin immediately and will work on the Quarter 2 EMS data report.   

EMS staff met with regional Fire Chiefs regarding Quarter 1 data report. Several items were 
discussed and consensus was reached for next steps.  With the addition of a statistician that is 
100% devoted to the EMS program, inquiries into outliers will be further expedited, 

EMS staff, in cooperation with Carson City Health & Human Services, sponsored a Family 
Assistance Center (FAC) tabletop exercise held on February 5th. Over 50 people were in 
attendance and the recently updated Washoe County FAC plan was reviewed during the process.  
Valuable feedback was given from the partner agencies and the plan will reflect those 
suggestions before its finalized.  Carson City Health & Human Services has requested that 
Washoe County FAC trained personnel participate as trainers in their full scale exercise in the 
spring. 

As reported last month, EMS Program staff will provide the Board with calculations on a 
monthly basis of REMSA’s compliance with Article 7.1 of the Amended and Restated Franchise 
for Ambulance Service.  The calculations are based on the data pulled from REMSA’s Online 
Compliance Utility (OCU). Below are the compliance percentages (for priority 1 calls) for Zone 
A and Zones B, C and D combined.  Zones B, C and D are also broken out separately to facilitate 
a more detailed performance analysis.  Also, 90th percentile response times are shown by zone. 

REMSA Percentage of Responses Meeting Time Standards 
Month Zone A Zone B Zone C Zone D Zones B, C and D All Zones 

July 2014 93.1% 93.1% 93.7% 100% 93.4% 93.1% 
August 2014 91.9% 97.5% 98.0% 100% 97.8% 92.4% 
September 2014 91.5% 98.6% 93.0% 100% 96.6% 91.9% 
October 2014 92.3% 97.6% 100% 100% 98.4% 92.7% 
November 2014 93.2% 100% 100% 100% 100% 93.7% 
December 2014 92.5% 94.9% 98.5% 100% 96.6% 92.8% 
January 2015 93.1% 100% 95.6% 100% 98.6% 93.4% 
YTD 92.5% 97.5% 97.1% 100% 97.4% 92.9% 



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 

REMSA 90th Percentile Response 

*There were 5 or less calls per month in Zone D, therefore a statistically meaningful 90th
percentile analysis cannot be conducted. However, no calls in Zone D exceeded the 30:59 time 
requirement. 

Month Zone A 
8:59 

Zone B 
15:59 

Zone C 
20:59 

Zone D 
30:59 

July 2014 8:30 13:58 18:11 N/A* 
August 2014 8:39 13:51 18:12 N/A* 
September 2014 8:43 12:22 19:22 N/A* 
October 2014 8:27 11:46 16:50 N/A* 
November 2014 8:17 12:00 17:22 N/A* 
December 2014 8:32 12:22 18:21 N/A* 
January 2015 8:23 12:22 19:16 N/A* 



DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: February 26, 2015 

DATE: February 12, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer  
(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report - Measles, Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities 
Conference, Fundamental Review, Other Events & Activities and Health District 
Media Contacts. 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Measles 

The Health District responded to notification of two possible measles cases on February 2.  WCHD 
worked closely with the Washoe County School District on student and staff exclusions and with a 
local factory on a worker exclusion.  Both efforts included assisting with communications to parents 
of children and/or employees.  Several media advisories and over 25 media interviews were provided.   
I attended the Assembly Health and Human Services Committee meeting on measles on February 6. 
My speaking point notes are attached. 

Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities 

Meetings and interviews with 89502 residents were conducted to assist in developing 
projects/initiatives to address community identified needs that would be supported community 
members.  Several committee meetings were held to plan progress forward from the conference in 
support of project activity in the 89502 area code and development of a Community Health 
Implementation Plan.  A conference evaluation survey was distributed to conference participants.  I 
met with Care Chest representatives regarding the Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities 
Conference and potential engagement in 89502 area projects on January 29. 

Fundamental Review 

Progress continues: 

• Workshops for proposed fees were held on February 18 and 25.(Fundamental Review
Item 5)

• Recruitment continues for the ODHO Director of Programs and Projects Position. The
position will support the Health District Community Health Improvement Planning, QI
and Performance Management Initiatives.  (Fundamental Review Items 8, 19, and 20)

• The Community Health Needs Assessment was completed.  (Fundamental Review Item
14)

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.E



Subject:  
Date:  
Page 2 of 2 
 
The current dashboard on progress implementing of the Fundamental Review recommendations 
implementation is attached. 

Other Events and Activities 
 
I met with the Division Directors on February 4 and 18.  I conduct individual meetings with the 
Division Directors and Communication Manager on a bi-weekly schedule.  My monthly meeting with 
the County Manager occurred on February 6. 
 
I provided opening remarks, “Mobilizing Around a Common Vision,” for the State Chronic Disease 
Prevention and Health Promotion Summit at UNR on January 27. 
 
A Nevada Health Authorities coordination conference call was held on February 2. 
 
I attended the Air and Waste Management Association Dinner meeting on February 3.   
 
I participated in a tour, with other Health District staff, of High Sierra Industries on February 4. Sparks 
Councilman Ron Smith had suggested that the facility might be useful as an emergency shelter for 
individuals with developmental disabilities during the Regional FEMA Training and exercise last year 
in Emmitsburg.  The tour was informative and provided initial information to assist with public health 
preparedness planning. 
 
I attended the American Lung Association Honor Awards Dinner on February 5. 
 
Dr. Todd, Mr. Kutz and I met with Sheriff Allen, Under Sheriff Spencer, and Chief Deputy Sheriff 
Pederson on February 9, to discuss cooperation and coordination between the two agencies. 
 
I attended the Truckee Meadows Fire Board meeting on February 10 to address comments regarding 
the Quarterly EMS Oversight Data Report and issues with the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District Emergency Medical Services Review. 
 
I was unable to attend the REMSA Board Meeting on February 13; Christina Conti attended on my 
behalf. 
 
I attended the RTC Blue Ribbon Committee on Transit on February 19. 
 
I attended the Health District Land Development User Group at BANN on February 19. 
 
I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada / EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit Home 
Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada.  
 



 

Assembly Health and Human Services, 2/6/15, Measles Discussion 
Kevin Dick, District Health Officer, Washoe County Health District 
(WCHD) 

Measles Response – Speaking Points 

Staff working before first probable cases occurred and have been 
working during weekend and just about around the clock for almost a 
week. 

Epi-News Physician Alert and Addendum on Measles distrubuted 1/26 
and1/28, and on laboratory testing for measles on 2/5. 

Saturday 1/31 – CD Team contacted regarding probable Churchill case, 
handed on to State Division and provided assistance to them. 

Monday, 2/2, received original reports of 2 possible measles cases. 
One diagnosed by an urgent care on Friday 1/30, one that presented 
with symptoms and diagnosed as probable over the weekend, that 
had notified the school.   

Obtained and reviewed medical records.  Interviews with families, 
active monitoring of contacts, and identification of suspect cases and 
similar follow-through with them. 

Coordinated with Washoe County School Distict (WCSD). Identified 
unvaccinated or immune-compromised students for exclusion from 
school. Connect Ed communication to SSES families by WCSD.  WCHD 
Mecia Advisory issued. Calls to notify parents of exclusion on children.  
Currently 11 children excluded. 

Coordinated with Factory of second case, regarding exclusion of 
worker and letter from WCHD to notify employees. 

1 
 



Activated WCHD Outbreak Response Team.  Additional suspect cases 
identified. 

Providing guidance and recommendations in response to numerous 
questions from school personnel.  Providing recommendations for 
staff exclusions and attending WCSD Crisis Action Team meetings. 

We’ve expanded staffing for immunizations (IZ), 95-100% of calls to IZ 
regarding measles.  Traffic way up and additional vaccine ordered.  
Also making referrals to Pharmacies offering MMR after hrs to 7+ year 
olds. 

Coordinated with facilities to provide recommendations for them to 
provide vaccinations. 

Used TB clinic to collect samples in negative pressure environment. 

Participating in CDC and CA health official calls to remain current n 
status and information. 

Daily Line listings to NDPBH. 

Coordinating with Physicians on WCHD protocols and procedures with 
Dr. Larson, UNR re: IZ, and Dr. Murphy re: CD. 

Working with affected business to maximize public health benefit 
while minimizing disruption of business. 

Lead entity on communication and outreach to the community with 
25 media contacts and over 1000 local media stories on measles 
boradcast.  ImmunizeNevada significant partner for information to 
community through media interviews and website. Recognize Heidi 
Parker, CEO. 

Awaiting lab results for confirmation of measles or to eliminate the 
virus as cause of illnesses.   

 

2 
 



Health District Media Contacts: January 14 - February 13, 2015
DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY

2/12/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal Marcella Corona Measles - Ulibarri
2/11/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal Marcella Corona Measles - Ulibarri
2/11/2015 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Measles Testing - Todd
2/6/2015 KKOH Radio - 780AM Jim Fannon Measles - Ulibarri
2/6/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Erin Breen Measles - Ulibarri
2/6/2015 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Measles - Ulibarri
2/6/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal David Jacobs Measles - Ulibarri
2/6/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal Marcella Corona Measles - Ulibarri
2/5/2015 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Ryan Kern Measles - Ulibarri
2/5/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Erin Breen Measles - Ulibarri
2/5/2015 Las Vegas Review Journal Steve Moore Measles - Ulibarri
2/5/2015 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Measles - Ulibarri
2/5/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal David Jacobs Measles - Ulibarri
2/5/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal Marcella Corona Measles - Ulibarri
2/4/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal Marcella Corona Measles - Todd/Ulibarri
2/4/2015 UNIVISION Laura Calzada Measles - Todd/Ulibarri
2/4/2015 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Ryan Kern Measles - Todd/Ulibarri
2/4/2015 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Measles - Todd/Ulibarri
2/4/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Erin Breen Measles - Todd/Ulibarri
2/3/2015 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Terri Hendry Measles - Todd
2/3/2015 KNEWS Radio - 107.3 FM Sean Patrick Measles - Todd
2/3/2015 Reno Gazette-Journal Marcella Corona Measles - Todd
2/3/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Erin Breen Measles - Todd
2/3/2015 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Measles - Todd
2/3/2015 KUNR Radio - NPR Reno Michelle Bliss Measles - Todd
1/29/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Jeff Martinez mPowered Program - Schnieder
1/29/2015 Sparks Tribune Alana Ridge Know the Code/Air Quality - Inouye
1/26/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Gabby Tafolla Measles - Ulibarri
1/26/2015 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Alex Sacks Measles - Ulibarri
1/23/2015 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Kaasic Bahta Measles - Ulibarri
1/23/2015 KKOH Radio - 780AM Jim Fannon Measles - Ulibarri
1/23/2015 RTC/KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Joe Harrington RTC The Road Ahead - Hunter
1/22/2015 Sacramento Bee Dale Kasler Death Certificates/Vital Statistics - Ulibarri/Whitesides
1/21/2015 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras Measles - Ulibarri
1/21/2012 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Measles - Ulibarri
1/20/2015 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Noel Bond Chronic Disease - Seals

Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials

2/9/2015 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Spanish Springs Student Measles Case Tests Negative
2/6/2015 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Adult Suspected Measles Case Tests Negative
2/2/2015 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Suspected Measles Cases



2/18/2015

Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective 1/21/14
2

a. Design an orientation program and compile a draft manual 
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Land development user group established
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ five days a week, accept IZ walk ins on a limited basis
b. Extended IZ hours established.  Consider opportunities and costs for weekend clinical services
c Staffing Vital Statistics five days a week
d Discussion has begun with Interactive Voice Response software companies

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Third-party billing service began July 1, 2014
b. Identify costs for permits and services that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
c. Identify costs for regulatory programs that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
d. Identify community and clinical services for which reimbursement is available/bill

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary
Parking Lot

February 26, 2015



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

2/18/2015 2

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections
a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context

7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county
a. ILA and contract with Accela signed.  16-month implementation proceeding.

8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer
a. The Office of the District Health Officer was established on July 1, 2014. Staffing in process. 

9
a. Time coding in EHS has been expanded, AQM timecoding is underway. CCHS timestudy occuring.

10
a. A proposed schedule approved on June 26, 2014 by DBOH.  Pilot analysis of Administration completed.

11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies
a. Will be performed in conjunction with program const analysis.  See 10a

12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs
a. Additional General Fund transfer provided in FY 15 adopted budget to support unrecoverable indirect costs.

13
a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHA CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. Complete.

15 Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health
a. In FY15, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Franchise Agreement approved, Regional EMS Oversight Program and Advisory Board estblished.

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to repeat

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. Conduct a strategic planning initiative following the completion of the CHA and a CHIP

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis, performance metrics and SP to develop & implement performance mgmt. system
Implement a performance management system

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shifted home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services on June 1, 2014

Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

2/18/2015 3

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a.
b. Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. Cross-Divisional Q-Team established and Div. QI projects conducted. Additional mgmt. training completed.

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

Health District efforts to focus on internal and local issues

Consider alternative governance structures

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations

DBOH - District Board of Health
NALBOH - National Association of Local Boards of Health



Inter-Hospital Coordinating 
Council 

Kent Choma, Ph.D., P.E. 
IHCC Chair 



IHCC 

Hospitals 

EMS/Fire 
Agencies 

Volunteer 
Organizations 

Public Health  

Mental Health School District 

Emergency 
Management 

Nevada 
Hospital 

Association 

Tribes 



Accomplishments 

• Regional Emergency Water Restoration Plan 
– Collaboration between TMWA, WCHD and IHCC 

• Public Information / Public Warning Annex 
– A healthcare specific annex was added to the 

regional plan 

• Medical Reserve Corp MOU 
• Regional Hazard Mitigation  
    Plan 

 



Exercises 
• ARkStorm Flood Tabletop Exercise 

– Tested community impact and response to 
sequential storms 

• Federal Coordinating Center Plan Training 
– May 7, 2014, VA Sierra Nevada Health System 

• Broken Wing Exercise 
– Reno Tahoe Airport Authority, Triennial exercise 
– Includes field triage, transport, medical surge and 

mass fatality 

• POD Full-Scale Exercise 
 



Thank you 



District Health Officer’s Recommended 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget 

District Board of Health 
February 26, 2015 

1 

EXHIBIT A



• Health District Programs 
• Summary of Revenue and 

expenditures 
• Trend of FTEs per 100,000 

population 
• FY16 Sources and Uses 
• Impact of Recommendations on 

Future Fund Balance 
• Steps to close the gap 
• External Challenges 
• Next Steps 

2 

Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 

Recommended 
Budget 



Office of the District Health Officer 

Administrative Health Services  

Air Quality Management 

Community and Clinical Health 
Services  
  Chronic Disease Prevention 
  Community & Clinical Health  
  Family Planning 
  Immunizations 
  Maternal, Child & Adolescent Health 
  Sexual Health – HIV 
  Sexual Health – STD 
  Tuberculosis 
  Women, Infants and Children 

Environmental Health Services 
  Environmental Health Services 
  Food Protection 
  Safe Drinking Water 
  Solid Waste Management 
  Underground Storage Tanks 
  Vector Borne Diseases 

Epidemiology and Public Health 
Preparedness 
  Emergency Medical Services 
  Epidemiology Surveillance 
  Public Health Preparedness 
  Vital Statistics 

3 

Health 
District 

provides 
twenty-two 

different 
programs    

to the 
Community 



Office of the District Health Officer 
• Total program FTEs: 4.0 
• Total FY 2016 Revenues $0 
• Total FY 2016 Expenditures: $558,908 

 
Administrative Health Services 

• Total program FTEs: 10.0 
• Total FY 2016 Revenues $0 
• Total FY 2016 Expenditures: $1,034,019 

 
Air Quality Management 

• Total program FTEs: 18.00 
• Total FY 2016 Revenues $2,253,177 
• Total FY 2016 Expenditures: $2,710,807 

 

4 

 
FY16 

Recommended 
Expenditures 
(includes County 

Indirect Costs) 
and FTEs for 
each Division 

No Above  
Base Funding 

is being 
Requested 



Community & Clinical Health Services 
• Total program FTEs: 54.76 
• Total FY 2016 Revenues $3,480,526 
• Total FY 2016 Expenditures: $7,141,915

Environmental Health Services 
• Total program FTEs: 43.70 
• Total FY 2016 Revenues $1,937,876 
• Total FY 2016 Expenditures: $6,060,792

Epidemiology and Public Health 
Preparedness 

• Total program FTEs: 19.55 
• Total FY 2016 Revenues $1,599,732 
• Total FY 2016 Expenditures: $2,482,844

5 

FY16 
Recommended 
Expenditures 
(includes County 

Indirect Costs)  
and FTEs for 
each Division 

 

No Above  
Base Funding 

is being 
Requested 



Total projected revenue - $19,348,167 a 
2.4% increase over FY15 
• Licenses and Permits - $1,372,583, up 6%  

 Includes $100,000 for anticipated new fees 
• Grants - $5,460,898, up 1.3% 

 No new grant funding is anticipated in the budget 
• Tire Fees and Pollution Control revenue - 

$1,018,548, up 29.4% 
 Increase due to a change in budgeting methodology – 

prior to FY16 this was not included in the budget 
• Charges for services - $1,332,827, up 0.2% 
• Miscellaneous Revenue – $86,455, down 12.4%  
• County General Fund Support - $10,076,856 

 No additional County support will be requested 

 
6 

Summary 
Of  

Health 
Fund 

Revenue 



7 

Summary 
of  

Health  
Fund 

Revenue 



Total projected Expenditures: $19,989,285 a  
 2.8% increase over FY15 adopted budget 
• Salaries and Wages - $10,415,954, up 1.1% 

 150.01 FTEs up from 149.83 due to adjustments in the 
intermittent hourly & seasonal staff funding available 

 Includes merit increases  
• Employee Benefits - $4,492,931, up 7.1% 

 Assumes no increase in group insurance 
 Retirement up from 25.75% to 28.0%  

• Services and Supplies - $4,980,353, up 2.1% 
 Operating supplies - $23,295, up 22.8%, from grants 
 Advertising - $58,117, up 49.6% from grant funding 
 Fleet Operations - $23,285, up 12.6%, County billings 
 County Overhead - $54,821, up 2% 
 Miscellaneous accounts down $58,796, 3.4% 

• Capital - $100,047, up 49.2% 
 Air Monitoring Equipment &  Electronic Health 

Records 

8 

Summary  
Of 

 Expenditures  



9 

Summary  
of  

Expenditures 



10 

FTE Trend 
since  
Pre-

Recession 
Fiscal Year 

2007 



11 

Sources 
and Uses of 

Funds 

ETC Recommended

FUND SUMMARY:
 FY 2010-

2011 
 FY 2011-

2012 
 FY 2012-

2013 
 FY 2013-

2014 
 FY 2014-

2015  
 FY 2015-

2016 

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Opening Fund Balance 3,194,988      3,745,034   3,916,042    2,811,464    2,155,799    810,528 
Revenue:
Licenses and Permits 1,042,434      984,267 1,179,756    1,406,086    1,310,833    1,372,583    
Federal & State Grants 5,944,967      5,968,145   5,772,186    5,795,912    5,670,868    5,460,898    
Tire Fees 450,911        513,800 432,642       314,136       468,548       468,548 
Pollution Control (Note (1)) 306,945        313,965 314,903       634,731       618,667       550,000 
Birth & Death Certificates 359,725        439,910 476,829       457,596       465,000       470,000 
Other Charges for Services 928,440        825,839 837,422       881,963       812,881       862,827 
Miscellaneous 44,676          52,432       73,204 172,819       47,344 86,455        
Total Revenue 9,078,098      9,098,358   9,086,942    9,663,243    9,394,141    9,271,311    

Total General Fund transfer 8,192,500      7,250,850   8,623,891    8,603,891    10,000,192  10,076,856  
Total Sources of Funds 20,465,586    20,094,242 21,626,875  21,078,599  21,550,132  20,158,695  

USES OF FUNDS:
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages 10,502,906    9,861,088   9,803,867    9,591,107    10,229,748  10,415,954  
Employee Benefits 3,749,582      3,745,285   3,794,135    3,829,396    4,135,517    4,492,931    
Contract/Professional Srvs 614,224        557,610 713,360       809,059       641,657       396,852 
Chemical Supplies 321,497        265,304 231,490       231,398       231,437       231,500 
Biologicals 130,575        180,620 226,789       247,975       214,322       225,961 
Cost of District Fleet 164,958        176,543 136,051       161,263       190,241       197,849 
Other Services and Supplies 1,151,440      1,075,820   1,143,722    1,007,779    2,248,911    1,132,309    
GF Overhead costs - - 2,553,372    2,898,034    2,741,062    2,795,882    
Capital 85,369          315,930 212,624       146,788       106,709       100,047 
Total Uses of Funds 16,720,552    16,178,200 18,815,411  18,922,800  20,739,604  19,989,285  

Ending Fund Balance (FB) 3,745,034     3,916,042 2,811,464    2,155,799    810,528 169,410 
FB as a percent of Uses of Funds 22.4% 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 3.9% 0.8%

Actual

Note: (1) Pollution Control funding increase from FY13 to FY14 is due to a shift from the revenue being reported
as a grant to reporting as a separate restricted source of revenue.



12 

Fiscal Year 2016 
Recommendations

Impact to  
Health Fund 

December 2014 
reported negative 

fund balance of 
$780,256 in FY17 

the deficit has 
been reduced by 

$531,110 

ETC Recommended

FUND SUMMARY:
 FY 2014-

2015  
 FY 2015-

2016 
 FY 2016-

2017 
 FY 2017-

2018 
 FY 2018-

2019 

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Opening Fund Balance 2,155,799    810,528 169,410       (249,146) (986,974) 
Revenue:
Licenses and Permits 1,310,833    1,372,583    1,747,785    1,865,074    1,990,235    
Federal & State Grants 5,670,868    5,460,898    5,474,557    5,474,557    5,474,557    
Tire Fees 468,548       468,548 468,548       468,548       468,548       
Pollution Control (Note (1)) 618,667       550,000 555,500       561,055       572,276       
Birth & Death Certificates 465,000       470,000 474,700       479,447       484,241       
Other Charges for Services 812,881       862,827 862,827       862,827       862,827       
Miscellaneous 47,344 86,455        86,996 88,226 88,730 
Total Revenue 9,394,141    9,271,311    9,670,913    9,799,734    9,941,414    

Total General Fund transfer 10,000,192  10,076,856  10,076,856  10,076,856  10,076,856  
Total Sources of Funds 21,550,132  20,158,695  19,917,179  19,627,444  19,031,296  

USES OF FUNDS:
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages 10,229,748  10,415,954  10,487,708  10,566,253  10,659,354  
Employee Benefits 4,135,517    4,492,931    4,594,224    4,903,589    4,970,751    
Contract/Professional Srvs 641,657       396,852 396,852       396,852       396,852       
Chemical Supplies 231,437       231,500 231,500       231,500       231,500       
Biologicals 214,322       225,961 225,961       225,961       225,961       
Cost of District Fleet 190,241       197,849 178,064       188,652       195,255       
Other Services and Supplies 2,248,911    1,132,309    1,128,500    1,119,625    1,116,021    
GF Overhead costs 2,741,062    2,795,882    2,851,800    2,908,836    2,967,012    
Capital 106,709       100,047 71,715 73,149 74,612 
Total Uses of Funds 20,739,604  19,989,285  20,166,324  20,614,418  20,837,319  

Ending Fund Balance (FB) 810,528 169,410 (249,146)     (986,974)     (1,806,023)  
FB as a percent of Uses of Funds 3.9% 0.8% -1.2% -4.8% -8.7%

Projected



• Greater cost recovery for licenses & permits 
• Anticipated reduction in fleet billings due to a 

Quality Improvement project focusing on 
reducing fleet costs  

• 5.5 % Growth in salaries and benefits for merit 
increases, health insurance(FY17-19), and cost 
of retirements due to accumulated vacation and 
sick leave payouts 

• Assumes grant reimbursement is flat and 
expenditures will be adjusted to match the 
grant award with no transfer of costs to the 
local dollars 

(Note: Adjustments being anticipated that require a vote for a policy decision will be brought back) 
        to the Board for direction and possible approval prior to implementation (i.e. fee increase) 

 

13 

Steps to 
be taken  
to close 
the Gap 



• Cost to implement Medical
Marijuana Regulations

• Affordable Care Act
• Employee workers compensation

insurance, unemployment, and
property and liability insurance

• Labor and insurance negotiations
• Final funding and indirect billings

from the County General Fund
• Impacts of the Legislative Session

14 

External 
Challenges not 

included in 
FY16 

Recommended 
Budget 



• February, 2015
 Recommended FY16 Budget due to the County

• March, 2015
 District Health Officer delivers FY16 budget to County

and City Managers
 DBOH update on the Managers meeting for FY16 Budget

• April, 2015
 Health District budget presentation to the Board of

County Commissioners (BCC) if required
• May, 2015

 May 12, BCC meeting, Manager’s recommendations for
FY16 budget, General Fund support should be finalized

 May 18, BCC Public Hearing and possible adoption of
the FY16 Final Budget

• June, 2015
 June 2, Final County Budget due to the Department of

Taxation

15 

Next Steps 



16 

Staff requests 
approval of the 

FY16 Budget and 
direction to 

submit to the 
Cities and County 

Managers for 
comment as 

outlined in the 
Interlocal 

Agreement 

Staff recommends that the DBOH approve the Fiscal 
Year 2015-2016 Budget which in summary includes: 

• Approval to fund 22 programs
• Total Revenues budgeted of $19.3 million
• Use of FY15 anticipated savings, opening fund

balance, for FY16 to cover the shortfall in revenues
compared to expenditures in FY16

• Total Expenditures budgeted at $20.0 million
• Budget authorization for 150.01 FTEs
• Anticipated ending fund balance of  $169,410

Approval today does not prevent adjustments that 
may be necessary prior to the final adoption of the 
budget by the Board of County Commissioners on 
May 18, 2015 



Questions? 

17 

Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 

Recommended 
Budget 



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 1 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

15 AB146 Assembly 
Committee 
on 
Transportati
on

Active Revises provisions 
governing motor 
vehicle licensing.

AQM Track Yes 24-Feb Oppose CA - Extending smog check on new vehicles 
from 2 to 4 yrs has fiscal impact. Extending 
renewal smog check to every 2 yrs has 
potential environmental impact on ozone 
attainment status.

66 AB158 Leg Comm 
on Health 
Care

Active Provides for 
certain businesses 
to obtain and use 
auto-injectable 
epinephrine in 
certain 
circumstances

CCHS;
EPHP

Monitor No Neutral SK - CCHS already has an extensive training 
and skills evaluation /competency program 
for Epi admin. No impact to Division at this 
point.

804 AB169 Assembly 
Committee 
on Health 
and Human 
Services

Active Provides for the 
collection and 
application of 
graywater for a 
single-family 
residence. 

EHS Monitor Yes Support Mandates that local jurisdictions allow grey 
water disposal systems on those lots which 
are allowed to have insite sewage disposal. 
 We already allow for it in our regulations

854 AB186 Assemblywo
man Seaman

Active Makes various 
changes to liquor.

EHS Yes

EXHIBIT B



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 2 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

335 AB38 Public and 
Behavioral 
Health, 
Division of - 
Health and 
Human 
Services

Pending Revises provisions 
governing 
certification and 
decertification of 
persons for 
involuntary court-
ordered 
admissions.

CCHS Monitor No Neutral SK - depending out outcome, may affect our 
Registered Nurses.

346 AB77 State Dept 
of Ag

Active Makes various 
changes relating 
to the regulation 
of agriculture

EHS Monitor Yes 19-Feb BS - We are neutral but that could change 
after we talk to Dept of Ag.  CA - AB77 is not 
applicable to air quality.  SK no interest. 
                                                 

345 AB79 State Dept 
of Ag

Active Revises provisions 
relating to the 
State Department 
of Agriculture and 
the regulation of 
agriculture

EHS Monitor Yes 19-Feb BS - Not sure yet.  This is being proposed by 
State Ag. With no discussion with any of the 
health authorities.  Joe Pollock is trying to set 
up a meeting with Ag. To talk about what is 
driving this and how they would carry out 
the program.  It may be okay but it may also 
be bad if they want to loosen requirements
 



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 3 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

88 SB105 Senator 
Settlemeyer

Active Allows a stand-
alone bar to 
permit dogs to 
enter the 
establishment at 
the discretion of 
the 
establishment's 
owner

EHS Monitor Yes 16-Feb Oppose BS - this bill allows dogs in bars.  It also 
allows dogs in any bar that chooses to serve 
food.  We can not support dogs or any 
animals in food prep areas.  SK No interest to 
CCHS.

893 SB122 Senator 
Denis

Active Revises provisions 
relating to 
recyling.

AQM;
EHS

Monitor Mayb
e

13-Feb Neutral EHS - Does not affect us directly but that 
could change if amended;  AQM - may result 
in an increase in the number of recycling 
facilities operating in the area affecting 
permitting & compliance staff resources

235 SB178 Hardy Active Makes various 
changes to 
encourage 
physical activity in 
schools

CCHS;
CD

121 SB185 Kieckhefer Active Makes various 
changes relating 
to fire and 
emergency 
medical services in 
Washoe County

EPHP;
EMS;
ODHO



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 4 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

448 SB59 Secretary of 
State

Active Revises provisions 
governing the 
State Business 
Portal

ALL Monitor Yes 4-Feb Neutral SK - No interest to CCHS.  CA - This bill has 
the potential to have a significant impact on 
the District.  The Secretary of State’s Office 
was made aware of the Accela Project at the 
last session so I expect an update will be 
provided by someone during this session.  
The other problem is the State portal is not 
the most efficient at receiving information so 
IT continues to work on the problems.
 
 

153 SB85 Attorney 
General

Active Clarifies provisions 
of the Nevada 
Insurance Code

CCHS Monitor Currently only pertains to insurance fraud. 
Plan to monitor to ensure no other language 
added that may pertain specifically to the 
WCHD.

1095 Assembly 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to public 
notices.

AHS;A
QM;E
HS;EP
HP;E
MS;O
DHO



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 5 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1099 Assembly 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to local 
governmental 
financial 
administration.

AHS

1101 Assembly 
Committeee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to local 
governmental 
administration.

ODHO

1102 Assembly 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Extends the 
deadline for 
approval of the 
revision of the 
boundary line 
between Storey 
and Washoe 
Counties. 

AQM;
CCHS;
EHS;E
PHP;E
MS

1105 Senate 
Committee 
on 
Transportati
on

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to 
transportation.

AQM;
EHS

1107 Senate 
Committee 
on 
Transportaio
n

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to motor 
vehicles.

AQM;
EHS



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 6 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1111 Senate 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to 
regional 
transportation 
commissions.

AQM;
EHS;O
DHO

1114 Senate 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Limits the 
information that a 
city or county may 
request from a 
public utility.

AQM;
EHS

1115 Senate 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to 
government.

ODHO

1116 Senate 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to 
government.

ODHO

1117 Senate 
Committee 
on 
Government 
Affairs

Pending Makes various 
changes relating 
to government.

ODHO



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 7 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1127 Assembly 
Committee 
on 
Commerce 
and Labor

Pending Makes various 
changes relating 
to mobile home 
parks.

EHS

1132 Seanta 
Committee 
on Finance

Pending Revises provisions 
relating to 
inspections of 
certain medical 
facilities and 
offices.

CCHS

1144 Assembly 
Committee 
on 
Transportati
on

Pending Revises provisions 
governing special 
license plates.

AQM

1159 Administrati
on, 
Department 
of

Pending Revises the list of 
preferred 
prescription drugs 
used for the 
Medicaid 
program.

CCHS

1165 Administrati
on, 
Department 
of

Pending Requires the 
licensing of 
commercial 
animal food sold 
in Nevada.

EHS



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 8 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1175 Administrati
on, 
Department 
of 

Pending Revises provisions 
governing the 
financial 
administration of 
off-highway 
vehicle titling and 
registration.

AQM

1179 Administrati
on, 
Department 
of

Pending Provides for the 
rolling reissuance 
of license plates 
by the 
Department of 
Motor Vehicles.

AQM

1182 Administrati
on, 
Deptartmen
t of

Pending Increases cigarette 
tax.

CCHS;
CD

1184 Administrati
on, 
Department 
of

Pending Provides for long-
term 
mondernization of 
the Nevada Plan 
for providing state 
financial aid to 
school districts. 

CCHS



 2015 Legislative Tracking Report
Includes Bills added or updated and 

BDRs introduced since February 19, 2015

Page 9 of 9

BDR Bill Sponsor Status Summary Divisi
on

Track/ 
Monitor/ 
No Int.

Testif
y

Testify 
Date

Support/ 
Oppose

Evaluation

1190 Administrati
on, 
Department 
of

Pending Provides for the 
certification of 
Community Health 
Workers in 
Nevada.

CCHS;
CD

1200 Governor Pending Provides for the 
implementation of 
a "Breakfast After 
the Bell" program 
in certain public 
schools.

CCHS;
CD

1214 Administrati
on, 
Department 
of 

Pending Revises provisions 
governing the 
additional fee for 
the issuance of 
license plates for 
motor vehicles, 
trailers and 
semitrailers.

AQM


	Agenda
	5. Approval of Draft Minutes
	January 22, 2015

	6. Recognitions
	IHCC Presentation

	7. REMSA
	Reports

	8. Financial Review
	Staff Report

	9. Budget
	Staff Report

	10. Interlocal Agreement
	Staff Report

	11. Nevada Legislative Session Report
	Staff Report

	12. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	AQM
	Report

	CCHS
	Report

	EHS
	Report

	EPHP
	Report

	ODHO
	Report



	Leg Report Update 022515.pdf
	owssvr




